






 
                                                                          MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ July 2, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

 
1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Seiler delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments: Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director updated Council on Liberty Fest 
 

       4.   Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
 
             No Citizen Comments 

 
 
 

  5.  Approval of the minutes: June 18, 2015 
 
  6.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #15-Z-006: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for the property located to the southwest corner of Crystal Falls Parkway  
       and Lakeline Blvd., Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
        
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve the consent agenda.  Second by Council  
       Member Abruzzese.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
       Mayor Fielder moved to item #15 at this time 

 
 
 

  7.  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land, known as the Bradley tract,     
       126.098 acres, more or less, tract of land located north of the South San Gabriel River and east of   
       Ronald Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas 
 
       No speakers 
 
  8.  First public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land, known as the Ironwood   
       tract, 13.8481 acres, more or less, generally located at the southeast corner of SH 29 and Ronald  
       Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas 
 
       No speakers 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 

  9.  Public Hearing on Subdivision Case # 14-TOD-CP-014: the Leander Tract Concept Plan and 
       Designation of Transect Zones for 11.2 acres, more or less, generally located to the north of Mel  
       Mathis Avenue and RM 2243 on both the west and east sides, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Kristiana Alfsen on behalf of Sawtooth Enterprises, LTD. 
 
        Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
        Action on Subdivision Case #14-TOD-CP-014: Leander Tract Concept Plan and Designation of 
        Transect Zones for 11.2 acres, more or less, generally located to the north of Mel Mathis Avenue and  
        RM 2243 on both the west and east sides, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
        Kristiana Alfsen, representative for the applicant explained the request 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Council Member  
        Stephenson.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
 
 10.  Public Hearing on an Ordinance Amending Sections of Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Governing  
        Subdivisions, Article 13.02, Governing Water and Sewer Service, and Appendix A, Fee Schedule to  
        Adopt a Connection Fee and System Reservation Fee for Areas to be Served Under the Wholesale  
        Wastewater Service Agreement with the City of Liberty Hill; Providing for the Applicant to Pay the Cost  
        of Liberty Hill Reviewing Plans for and Inspecting Certain Wastewater Infrastructure; Providing for  
        Timing of Payment of the Fees; Amending Provisions Governing Construction Plans and Wastewater  
        System Design Standards for Areas to be served under the Liberty Hill Wholesale Wastewater  
         Agreement; Providing for a Contract for Wastewater Service; and Providing for Related Matters 
 
          Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
         Action on an Ordinance Amending Sections of Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Governing Subdivisions, Article  
         13.02, Governing Water and Sewer Service, and Appendix A, Fee Schedule to Adopt a Connection 
         Fee and System Reservation Fee for Areas to be Served Under the Wholesale Wastewater Service  
         Plans for and Inspecting Certain Wastewater Infrastructure; Providing for Timing of Payment of the 
         Fees; Amending Provisions Governing Construction Plans and Wastewater System Design  
         Standards for Areas to be served under the Liberty Hill Wholesale Wastewater Agreement; Providing  
         for a Contract for Wastewater Service; and Providing for Related Matters 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  

 
 
    

 
     11.  Consider the second assignment of the Development and Annexation Agreement with Ewing Development 
            Co., LLC to John Lloyd/JL Development, Inc. 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 

       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
 

 
     12.   Consider approval of a development agreement between the City of Leander and Crystal Falls LTD for  
             27.63 acres more or less, generally located one block northeast of the intersection of East Crystal Falls  
             Parkway and 183A Toll.  Encompassing the property known as the Parkway Crossing Subdivision within  
             the city limits of the City of Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
             Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
              Council Member Hill stepped down from the dais at 7:26 pm. 
 

         Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
         Motion passes, 6 to 0  

 
     13.  Consider rejection of Bid for the Veterans Park Improvements Project 
            Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director explained 
 

        Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve to reject the bid.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese.  
        Motion passes, 6 to 0. 
 

     14.  Consider Employee Benefits Renewal for Plan Year 2015-2016 
             Kent Cagle, City Manager explained 
 

        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     15.  Consider Interlocal Agreement between Leander, Cedar Park and Georgetown creating the Central Texas  
            Regional Swat Team (CTRS)      
            Greg Minton, Chief of Police explained 
 
            Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
            Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
            Mayor Fielder moved back to item # 7 at this time 
 
     16.  Council Members Closing Statements 
 
            Council Members gave their closing statements   
 
            Council Member Hill returned to the dais at 7:40 pm 

17.  Adjournment  
 
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:42 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
       ________________________________                            _______________________________ 
       Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                  Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 16, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 14-TOD-CP-014:  Consider action on the 

Leander Tract Concept Plan and designation of Transect Zones for 
approximately 11.2 acres, generally located to the north of Mel 
Mathis Avenue and RM 2243 on both the west and east sides, 
Leander, Williamson County, TX.  

 
Background: The City has adopted the SmartCode for properties located within the 

TOD.  The SmartCode includes standards for the mix of uses, types and 
orientation of buildings, design of streets, location of parks and open 
spaces and architectural standards.  In addition to the items required by 
the Subdivision Ordinance, the Concept Plan includes the proposed 
Pedestrian Sheds, Transect Zones, thoroughfares, and proposed Civic 
Space requirements (if any). 

 
This property is located in the S1 General Sector which includes a total 
of 45.2 acres.  Currently, the 15.83 acre property to the north is 
designated T4 Transect Zone (General Urban Zone) and there is 15.10 
acres designated as the Civic Zone.  The Community Unit Type is 
designated as TND (Traditional Neighborhood Design) and includes the 
T3 (Sub-Urban Zone), T4 (General Urban Zone), and T5 (Urban Center 
Zone) Transect Zones.  
 
The proposal for this parcel includes 8.15 acres of the T4 Transect Zone 
and 3.05 acres of the T5 Transect Zone.  The proposal falls within the 
range established for the required Transect Zone Percentages. 

 
Origination: Applicant/Agent: Kristiana Alfsen on behalf of Sawtooth 

Enterprises, LTD. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 



   

Recommendation: This request complies with the SmartCode and the Subdivision 
Ordinance requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the 
Concept Plan.  The Planning and Zoning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval of the request at the June 25, 
2015 meeting.  The City Council unanimously recommended 
approval of the request at the July 02, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1. Concept Plan 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/06/2015 
 



Name of Parcel:

Date:

Sector designation:  Total Parcel Area:  

Total Area of Sector (in acres):  45.2

Existing Allocation of Transect Zones within the Sector: Required Transect Zone Percentages for this Community Unit: Proposed Mix of Transect Zones for this Parcel: 

T1/T2 0.00 acres T1/T2 0.00 to 50.00 % 0.00 to 22.60 T1/T2 T1/T2 22.60

T3 0.00 acres T3 10.00 to 30.00 % 4.52 to 13.56 acres T3 T3 13.56

T4 15.83 acres T4 30.00 to 60.00 % 13.56 to 27.12 acres T4 T4 4.09

T5 0.00 acres T5 10.00 to 30.00 % 4.52 to 13.56 acres T5 T5 9.56

T6 0.00 acres T6 0.00 to 0.00 % 0.00 to 0.00 acres T6 T6 0

Civic Zone 15.10 acres Civic Zone (Minimum) 5.00 % 2.26 acres

Remaining Transect Zone Allocation for this Community Unit:

0.00 to 22.60 acres

4.52 to 13.56 acres T1/T2

T4 -2.27 to 11.29 acres T3

T5 4.52 to 13.56 acres T4

T6 0.00 to 0.00 acres T5

Civic Zone -12.84 acres T6

T1/T2

T3

This worksheet is a step-by-step guide to understanding how your 

parcel fits into the SmartCode and to exploring options for your parcel. 

This worksheet will assist in verifying compliance with the SmartCode. 

White fields populate automatically as information is added.  Orange 

fields require input from applicant.  

Compare your Proposed Mix of Transect Zones with the Remaining 

Allocation for the Sector. The Proposed Mix must fall within the range of 

the Remaining Allocation. If your Proposed Mix of is within the remaining 

available for the Sector, the below chart will contain all positive numbers. 

And you may proceed with the Concept Plan. If negative numbers are 

below, please revisit your Proposed Mix.

Difference between Remaining Allocation and Proposed Mix:

Using Table 2A from the SmartCode, input the requested information 

in the highlighted fields below:

acres

Transect Zones:                   

STEP 2.  TABLE 2A

TND

T3, T4, T5

STEP 1.  SECTOR MAP

Using the Sector Map, locate your parcel and input the requested 

information regarding the sector in which your parcel is located in the 

highlighted fields below:

S1 Community Unit Type Designation:  

STEP 3B. YOUR PROPOSAL         

equals

equals

STEP 3A.  YOUR PROPOSAL

0.00

0.00

45Community Unit Area in Acres:

Based on your intentions for the property input the requested information in 

the highlighted fields below:

11.2*This number must equal the Total Parcel Area

6.78

0.00

3.05

Note:  A negative number in the first column simply indicates that the approved 

acreage for that zone is over the minimum.  A negative Civic Zone number means 

the 5% minimum requirement has been met.

0.00

Percentage of each Transect Zone relative to the total area for the 

Community Unit:

Note:  These numbers must fall within the range found in the SmartCode (the orange 

boxes at the top of Step 2).

Leslie Parcel Ex. 2

April 17, 2015

8.15

0.00

0.00

18.89

equals

equals

11.2

equals

equals

Concept Plan Worksheet

Concept Plan Worksheet:  Example 2 - Leslie Parcel
City of Leander, Texas

Prepared by:

Michael Watkins Architect, llc 
April 28, 2015

Page 12 of 19

Leander Tract

OWNER:
Sawtooth Enterprises LTD
3202 Greenlee Dr
Austin, Texas 78703-1622



Concept Plan Step by Step

Concept Plan Guide:  Example 2 - Leslie Parcel
City of Leander, Texas

Prepared by:

Michael Watkins Architect, llc 

1.  Existing Parcel Boundary. 4.  Existing (and Approved) Major Thoroughfares.

5.  Proposed Community Unit Boundary. 8.  Proposed Transect Zone(s) for Parcel (and for the Sector if not already approved).

9.  Proposed Primary Thoroughfare(s) for the Parcel.6.  Proposed Pedestrian Shed Boundary.

7.  Proposed Primary Civic Space Maximum Distance.

2.  Existing Sector Boundary.

3.  Approved Transect Zones within Sector Boundary.

April 28, 2015

Page 13 of 19

Leander Tract



0    150    300         600

N

Concept Plan

Concept Plan:  Example 2 - Leslie Parcel
City of Leander, Texas

Prepared by:

Michael Watkins Architect, llc 

Parcel Description

11.2 acres straddling the north side of the 

intersection of RM 2243 and Mel Mathis Avenue.

Map

Key

T-1 Natural

T-2 Rural

T-3 Suburban

T-4 General Urban

T-5 Urban Center

T-6 Urban Core

SD Special District

CB Civic Building

Existing Parcel Boundary

Existing Sector Boundary

Existing (and approved) Thoroughfares

Proposed Community Unit Boundary

Proposed Pedestrian Shed Boundary

Proposed Civic Space Maximum Distance

Proposed Thoroughfares

xx-##-##

xx-##-##

x
x
-#

#
-#

#

x
x
-#

#
-#

#

x
x
-#

#
-#

#

x
x
-#

#
-#

#

x
x
-#

#
-#

#

S
T
-4

0
-2

0

S
T
-5

0
-2

6

S
T
-5

0
-2

6

xx-##-##

Concept Plan

April 28, 2015

Page 14 of 19

Leander Tract

1 - R510026
Transit Village Investments
Instrument #2006112794

2 - R031324
Transit Village Investments
Instrument #2006112794

1

2

2

4

5

6

7

3 - R036063
Henry Properties LLC & Betty Henry Trustee
Instrument #2007105946

4 - R036110
Willie Kopecky, Jr
Instrument #2000083516

5 & 6 - R031236 & R031235
Brake Edward & Elizabeth Johnson;
Carolyn Critz; Peggy Pickle;
Southwestern Foundation;
Zanzi James Trustee
Instrument #2011001781

7 - R031325
Franklin House
Book 1726, Page 947



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

ORDINANCE NO # _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING 
THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO APPROVE A CONCEPT 
PLAND AND ADOPT TRANSECT ZONES T4 AND T5 FOR 11.2 ACRES 
OF LAND, LOCATED GENERALLY AT THE INTERSECTION OF RM 
2243 AND MEL MATHIS AVENUE; FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property"), which is located 
in the planned unit development knows as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), Sector 1, and Community Unit TND, has requested that the transect zones T4 and T5 be 
adopted for the Property;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and PUD plan and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City 
Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of the TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 14-042-00, as amended, the 
TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for the Property as set forth in Section 3.   
 
Section 3.  Transect Zones Adopted.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by adopting a 
concept plan and establishing transect zones T4 and T5 for that certain 11.2 acre parcel, located at 
the intersection of RM 2243 and Mel Mathis Avenue, in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, as 
more particularly shown and described in Exhibit A (the “Property”).  The Concept Plan for the 
Property attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved.  Transect Zone T4 is hereby adopted 
for and shall apply to 8.15 acres of the Property as shown on Exhibit B, and Transect Zone T5 is 
hereby adopted for and shall apply to 3.05 acres of the Property as shown on Exhibit A.  
  
Section 4.  Recording Zoning Change.  The City Council directs the Planning Director to 
record this zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as 
prescribed by the City’s zoning ordinance.    
 
Section 5.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 2nd day of July, 2015. 
 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 18th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for: Pecan Creek Phase 3 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Pecan Creek Phase 
3 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All documentation 
required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record drawings, 
statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State 
of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files of the 
improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term Maintenance 
Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City Council 
acceptance, as anticipated, on July 16, 2015 which will provide warranty and maintenance 
coverage for the infrastructure improvements through July 16, 2017.  The Engineering 
Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements approximately 30 days 
prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any defects in materials, 
workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Pecan Creek Phase 3. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



























AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
Executive Summary 

July 8, 2016 

 

Agenda Subject:    Approve agreement for Architectural and Engineering Services for 
Fire Station #4 
 
Background:  Ten vendors submitted RFQ responses on April 2, 2015 to provide 
Architectural and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4.  On May 7, 2015 City Council 
approved staff's recommendation for BRW Architects to selected and authorized 
negotiations be completed for the service to design and engineer Fire Station #4.   The 
agreement has been negotiated as directed and meets the desired outcomes. 
 
Funds are budgeted in account 54-01-8344 in the amount of $2.6 million. 
. 

Recommendation:     Staff respectfully recommends that the Council approve the 
negotiated agreement with BRW Architects. 
 
Attachments:    Agreement 

 
Prepared by:  Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 
  Joy Simonton, City Purchasing Agent 
 
 





















































AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
Executive Summary 

July 8, 2016 

 

Agenda Subject:    Approve agreement for Construction Manager at Risk Services 
Services for Fire Station #4 
 
Background:  Two vendors submitted RFP responses on April 9, 2015 to provide 
Construction Manager at Risk Services (CMR) for Fire Station #4.  American 
Constructors submitted the proposal that offered the best value for the City and was 
selected by City Council on May 7, 2015 to perform those services.  City Council 
authorized negotiations for these services.     These negotations are completed and that 
agreement is attached. 
 

Recommendation:     Staff respectfully recommends that the Council approve the 
negotiated agreement with American Constructors. 
 
Attachments:    Agreement 

 
Prepared by:  Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 
  Joy Simonton, City Purchasing Agent 
 
 



 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK AGREEMENT 
 FOR FIRE STATION #4 
 CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
This Agreement for services of a Construction Manager at Risk for Fire Station #4 (this 
"Agreement") is entered into effective as of the ____ day of ____, 2015, (the "Effective Date") 
between American Constructors, Inc. a Texas corporation, (the "Contractor") and the City of 
Leander, Texas, a Texas home rule city (the "City"). The City and the Contractor are sometimes 
referred to collectively herein as the "Parties". 
 
 RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Subchapter F, Chapter 2269, Texas Government Code 
(“Subchapter F”), the City issued a request for proposals ("RFP") for the services of a Construction 
Manager at Risk for Fire Station #4 (as more specifically referenced hereinafter the "Project") to be 
constructed on the Land (as hereinafter described in Section 1) in Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas;  
 
WHEREAS, the City has reviewed all the responses to the RFP and negotiated in good faith to 
obtain an acceptable construction manager at risk agreement for the Project, and is authorized to 
contract for the services of a construction manager at risk for construction of the Project; 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement shall constitute a contract whereby the Contractor selected by the City 
pursuant to a competitive RFP, will serve as the contractor and construction supervisor on the 
Project on the Land in compliance with the design and the Plans and Specifications prepared by the 
Architect and approved by the City; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth an agreement for the planning and construction of the 
Project through completion of the Project, for the purpose of controlling time, costs, and quality. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the benefits to accrue to the Parties, the receipt 
and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties contract, covenant and agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Agreement 
regardless of capitalization, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Section, except where 
the context clearly indicates a different meaning. Words not defined herein and of common usage in 
the construction trade shall, unless the context indicated a different meaning, have the meaning and 
usage given in the construction trade.  Words used in the present tense include the future tense. 
Words used in the plural number include the singular, and words in the singular include the plural. 
The word "shall" is always mandatory. The word "herein" means in this Agreement. The word 
"regulations" means the provisions of any applicable ordinance, rule, regulation or policy. The word 
“person" means any human being or legal entity and includes a corporation, a partnership, and an 
incorporated or unincorporated association.   
 
 "Architect" means Brown Reynolds Watford Architects, Inc. and its licensed and assigned 

architects selected by the City as provided in Subchapter F, to provide services in 



 2 

connection with the design and preparation of the Plans and Specifications, approve 
progress payments, and perform related duties with respect to the Project. 

   
“Architect’s Agreement” means the agreement between the City and the Architect dated 
_____________, for professional services related to the Project. 

 
 "City" means the City of Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
 "City Representative" or “City’s Representative” shall be the City Manager, or his delegate, 

and any designated inspector for daily inspections, as appropriate, each of whom shall act in 
concert as City’s agent for purpose of inspection, coordination, and issuance of instructions 
but shall not directly supervise the Contractor. 

 
 "Conceptual Plan" means the conceptual plan for the Project, including, but not limited to, 

the Schematic Design Documents and the Design Development Documents, as defined in 
the Architect’s Agreement, the floor plan, roof, facade and exterior design, proposed facade 
materials, and wall and floor covering materials, approved by the City. 

 
“Contract Documents” means those documents listed in Section 2, together with the Plans & 
Specifications. 

 
 "Contractor" means the Construction Manager at Risk as provided in Subchapter F to 

assume the risk for construction of the Project at the Guaranteed Maximum Price as a 
general contractor; to provide advice on the time and consequences of design, purchasing of 
materials, and lead times; to consult with the City regarding construction decisions, 
scheduling, cost control, coordination of contract negotiations and awards, to coordinate all 
phases of construction activities during and after the design of the Project; and to provide 
other services set forth in Subchapter F and this Agreement.  Where the context dictates the 
term Contractor may also mean the Subcontractors retained through the competitive bid or 
proposal process. 

 
 "Days" means calendar days being any day of the week or month, no days being excepted. 
 
 “Change Order Work” means and includes work that is not covered or contemplated by the 

Contract Documents but that may be required by the City Representative and approved by 
the City in writing prior to the work being done by the Contractor.  If any Change Order will 
increase the Work Costs, or if any other change will increase or decrease the Work Costs, a 
change order must be approved and executed as provided in this Agreement. 

 
 “Final Completion” means that all the work has been completed, all final punch list items 

have been inspected and satisfactorily completed, all payments to materialmen and 
subcontractors have been made, all documentation and warranties have been submitted, and 
all closeout documents have been executed and approved by the City. 

 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 3 

 "Governing Body" means the City Council of the City. 
 
 “Guaranteed Maximum Price” or “GMP” means the proposed and accepted cost of Work to 

construct the Fire Station #4 on the Land in accordance with the Plans and Specifications, 
the RFP, and the Contractor’s fees as set forth in the Contractor’s Proposal, and shall not 
include sales or use taxes, which costs shall be approved for payment to Contractor by the 
Architect and the City Representative. 

 
 "Land" means the tracts of land upon which the Work is to be constructed and upon which 

the Land is located, being that certain 3.046 acre tract of land located in Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas, more particularly shown and described in Exhibit F attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes,, being more particularly shown on the 
survey or surveys prepared for the Project.  

 
 “Nonconforming Work” means work or any part thereof that is rejected by the City 

Representative and/ or the Architect as not conforming with the Contract Documents. 
 
 "Notice to Proceed" means a notice given by the City for the Construction Phase after the 

City’s acceptance of the Contractor’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal. The Notice to 
Proceed shall be written. 

 
 "Plans and Specifications" means the surveys, drawings, design, plans, and technical 

specifications prepared for the Project as prepared by a licensed professional engineer or 
registered architect, as approved by the City and Contractor and as revised from time to time 
prior to Final Completion with approval by the Contractor and the City. 

 
 "Project" means the supervision and coordination of all phases of Fire Station #4 as set forth 

in Section 2, through completion, coordination and consultation with the City 
Representative and the Architect and the provision of professional services according to this 
Agreement and the RFP and the construction, installation, and erection of Fire Station #4 
according to the City approved Plans and Specifications, this Agreement, and the RFP.  

 
 “Proposal” means the Contractor’s response to the RFP accepted by the City. 
 
 “RFP” means the Request for Proposal for Construction Manager at Risk for Fire Station 

#4. 
 
 "Subcontract" means any contract between the Contractor and any other person or entity, 

dated on or after the date hereof, for or with respect to the provision of any work, labor 
and/or materials for erection, installation or construction of the Work, irrespective of the title 
or name of such contract. 

 
 "Subcontractor" means any person, firm or entity that enters into a Subcontract with the 

Contractor for or with respect to the construction of the Work, irrespective of the 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 4 

designation of such document as a subcontract or a contract. 
 
 “Substantially Completed” or "Substantial Completion" means that in the opinion of the 

City’s Representative and the Architect the Work, including all systems and improvements, 
is in a condition to serve its intended purpose but still may require minor miscellaneous 
work and adjustment. Final payment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, including 
retainage, however, shall be withheld until Final Completion and acceptance of the work by 
the City. Acceptance by the City shall not impair or waive any warranty obligation of 
Contractor. 

 
 "Work" means the Construction Phase of the Project, beginning with the City’s acceptance 

of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, which includes the construction, installation, erection, 
and installation of Fire Station #4 described in Section 2 below, constructed on the Land, 
including the labor and materials required to construct Fire Station #4 in conformance with 
the Conceptual Plan and the Plans and Specifications, the RFP, the competitive bidding of 
contracts for such labor and materials in accordance with this Agreement, and all the 
equipment, machinery and fixtures and other items of tangible personal property required 
pursuant to the Plans and Specifications.   

 
 "Work Account" means the Work Account established by the City from which all Work 

Costs shall be paid. 
 
Section 2.  Project.  (a)  The Contract Documents constituting the Project and their priority shall 
be as follows: 
 
 i. This signed Agreement 

ii. Addendum to this Agreement 
iii. Plans and Specifications 
iv. Any instructions to Bidders or Proposers, the RFP, and any other notices to 

Bidders, Proposers, or Contractor 
v. Performance bond, Payment bonds, Bid bonds, Security Bond, and special 

bonds 
vi. Contractor’s Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal 
vii. Contractor’s completed Proposal 

 
 (b)  The City has selected the Contractor to provide general contractor services and to 
assume the risk for construction and satisfactory and timely completion of the Work at a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price.  The Project shall consist of two Phases – the Preconstruction Services Phase and 
the Construction Phase.   
 
 (c)  During the Preconstruction Services Phase, the Contractor will provide services as 
further described in Section 3 and the RFP and shall advise and coordinate with the City 
Representative and the Architect regarding development of Plans and Specifications so as to 
facilitate a proposal of a Guaranteed Maximum Price and a schedule for completion of the Work.  
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 5 

The Preconstruction Services Phase shall end when the City has accepted a Guaranteed Maximum 
Price for the Work. 
 
 (d)  The Construction Phase shall begin when the City has accepted a Guaranteed Maximum 
Price for the Work.  During the Construction Phase, the Contractor shall perform and provide, or 
cause to be performed and provided, each and every duty, work, responsibility, and service 
necessary to the development and construction and final acceptance of the Work, pursuant to the 
terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of the Contract Documents.  The Contractor will 
work and coordinate with the City’s Representatives to obtain necessary approval of the Work 
construction and the subcontractors thereon.  The Contractor shall review all contracts for work to 
be contracted to another entity or person to ensure the contracts will elicit work that is in compliance 
with the Plans and Specifications.  Contractor shall bring any deficiencies to the attention of the City 
Representative and the Architect prior to seeking competitive bids or proposals.  Contractor shall be 
obligated to ensure the subcontractor completes work as required by the contract documents. 
 
Section 3.  Preconstruction Services.  (a)  The Contractor shall make recommendations to the City 
Representative and the Architect regarding development of Plans and Specifications so as to 
facilitate a proposal of a Guaranteed Maximum Price and a schedule for completion of the Work, 
which will be appropriate for the Work as laid out in the Plans and Specifications, including the 
timing, cost of construction, feasibility of construction, and other relevant criteria required to ensure 
the Plans and Specifications are sufficient to complete the Work within a Guaranteed Maximum 
Price.   

 
 (b)  Contractor shall consult regularly with the City Representative and the Architect 
regarding issues with the development of Plans and Specifications, including making 
recommendations to the City regarding construction of the Project within the City’s budget.  The 
Contractor will advise and coordinate with the City’s Representatives and the Architect regarding 
the constructability of the Plans and Specifications’ for the Project and appropriateness thereof.   
 
 (c)  Once this Agreement has been approved by the City, the Contractor shall review the 
existing Plans and Specifications and other relevant documentation and, in cooperation with City 
Representative and the Architect, shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Work within the 
context of the City’s budget requirements.  Contractor shall prepare a preliminary cost estimate and 
a preliminary work schedule, which shall be updated from time to time at the request of the City 
Representative and the Architect.  Contractor shall include in each cost estimate the methods used 
and the factors considered in calculating the cost estimate.  The Contractor shall make 
recommendations to the City and the Architect for reducing costs to stay within budget for any cost 
estimate that exceeds the City’s budget, or as otherwise requested by City Representative or the 
Architect.   
 
 (d)  For the preconstruction services described in this Section 3 and the RFP (the 
“Preconstruction Services”), Contractor shall receive Nine Thousand Dollars ($9,000.00) (the 
“Preconstruction Services Price”). The Preconstruction Services Price will be invoiced with the first 
Payment Requisition Certificate submitted for construction services. 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 6 

 
Section 4.  Guaranteed Maximum Price.  (a)  Once the Plans and Specifications are complete as 
determined by the City Representative and the Architect, the Contractor shall provide the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal for the Work as further set out in this Section (the “GMP 
Proposal”) to the City.  The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be the firm price for which the 
Contractor binds itself to complete the Work through subcontractors and employees as set forth in 
the Plans and Specifications, including any contingency funds.  Notwithstanding any other term of 
this Agreement, it is understood and agreed the City’s obligation to make payments pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not exceed the lower of the actual cost of constructing and completing the Work or 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price, unless the Governing Body: (i) first appropriates additional funds 
required for a change order; (ii) the change order is authorized pursuant to Section 15; and (iii) the 
changer order is executed in the form approved by the Governing Body.   
 
 (b)  Contractor shall include with the GMP Proposal a detailed, itemized statement of the 
costs included in the GMP Proposal, including allowances and contingencies, and a written 
statement of the factors considered in calculating the GMP, which shall include:  (i)  A list of the 
allowances and a statement of the basis for said allowance; and (ii) A list of any assumptions and 
clarifications made by Contractor in the preparation of the GMP Proposal to supplement the 
information contained in the Plans and Specifications and other Contract Documents.  The GMP 
Proposal shall also include costs for any portion of the Work for which trade contracts or 
subcontracts have already been executed including those for phased work or procurement of 
long-lead time items.  The GMP Proposal shall also include a construction schedule, which shall 
include the date of Substantial Completion upon which the GMP Proposal is based, the date for 
issuing Plans and Specifications for proposals, the date for receiving proposals from trade 
contractors and subcontractors, and the date for Notice to Proceed.   
 
 (c)  Contractor shall be available to the City and/or the Architect to meet with, discuss or 
answer any questions about the GMP Proposal.  If the City and/or the Architect discover any 
inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the information presented, they shall promptly notify Contractor, 
who shall make appropriate adjustments to the GMP Proposal, its basis, or both.   
 
 (d)  The City may accept the GMP Proposal in writing on or before the date specified in the 
proposal for such acceptance, which date shall not be less than 30 days from the date the GMP 
Proposal is submitted to the City.  Acceptance by the City after the date specified in the GMP 
Proposal shall not be effective without written acceptance by the Contractor.  Upon the City’s 
acceptance of the GMP Proposal, the parties shall promptly execute an Addendum in a form 
substantially similar to the form attached as Exhibit “A”. 
 
 (e)  The City may reject the GMP Proposal and request the Contractor submit a new GMP 
Proposal.  The Contractor shall be notified in writing of the rejection of the GMP Proposal, and if 
the City requests the Contractor to submit a new GMP Proposal, the Contractor shall also be 
informed in writing of any reasons for the rejection that were stated on the record at the City 
Council meeting at which the GMP Proposal was considered.  City may reject the GMP Proposal, 
terminate this Agreement for convenience, and opt for directly soliciting construction bids in the 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 7 

event the GMP is not acceptable. 
  
Section 5.  Work Costs.  (a) The total contract amount payable to the Contractor for the 
Construction Phase shall be the lower of the Guaranteed Maximum Price or the "Work Costs", as 
defined herein.  Such Work Costs are the total amount payable for the Construction Phase under this 
Agreement. The Work Costs include all actual, documented and approved costs and expenses 
whatsoever of the Work, including, but not limited to bidding, construction, all construction and 
materials and the total amounts and consideration due from the City to the Contractor with respect 
to the Work; including, but not limited to, any costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in 
consulting with the Architect, the City Representative, the City Inspector or the City Manager, the 
costs of insurance and Performance and Payment Bonds during construction; the Contractor’s 
Construction Management Fee, which shall not exceed $63,800.00, per the Contractor’s Proposal; 
all amounts, costs, overhead, profit, insurance, fees and expenses payable pursuant to all 
Subcontracts; all costs for materials, wages and supplies, and profits; the cost of machinery and 
equipment; contingency funds; and all costs and expenses of every kind necessary to deliver the 
Work ready for occupancy and completed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications and all 
applicable laws, regulations and codes; provided that the General Conditions Monthly Expenses 
shall not exceed $23,900.00 per month per the Contractors Proposal.   . 
  
 (b)  Provided there will be no material change or modification of the Conceptual Plan, or of 
any Plans and Specifications after approval by the Governing Body, without the approval of the 
Governing Body, the Contractor may budget the Work Costs for expenditure as it deems proper, 
subject to any requirements of the Surety(s) on the Performance and the Payment Bond(s), and may 
revise and manage such budget in its discretion subject to full performance of this Agreement; 
provided the Work Costs may not be increased by the Contractor without the formal action and 
approval of the City as provided in Section 4(a) above.   
 
 (c)  All Work Costs shall be payable from the Work Account and payments pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price, unless prior approval is given by the 
Governing Body as provided above.  The City will have no liability for any change or additional 
work performed prior to a change order being approved and executed.  The Work Costs shall be 
paid to the Contractor for all costs for construction, equipping and final acceptance of the Work as 
provided in this Agreement, and the designated City Representative shall authorize payment of the 
Work Costs to the Contractor from the Work Account, as appropriate and provided for hereinafter. 
 
 (d)  If the City fails or otherwise refuses to accept the recommendation of the Contractor for 
use of a trade contractor or subcontractor, the City shall compensate the Contractor by a change in 
price, time or guaranteed maximum cost for any additional costs and risk that the Contractor 
actually incurs because of the City’s requirement that another bid or proposal be accepted. 
 
Section 6.  Construction of the Work.  The Contractor shall perform and provide, or cause to be 
performed and provided, each and every duty, work, responsibility and service necessary to the 
development and construction and final acceptance of the Work, pursuant to the terms, conditions, 
provisions and requirements of this Agreement, the RFP, and the Plans and Specifications, 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 8 

including but not limited to, obtaining all required permits, approvals and certifications necessary 
for or with respect to construction and final acceptance of the Work. 
 
 (a)  Notwithstanding any other term, condition or provision of this Agreement, on or after 
the Effective Date the Contractor shall coordinate with the Architect and the City Representative to 
obtain subcontractors and to construct the entire Work according to and in compliance with the 
Plans and Specifications for and in consideration of the Work Costs.  The Contractor shall: (i) 
construct or cause the construction of the entire Work in a timely manner; (ii) publicly advertise, as 
prescribed for municipalities and as set forth in Subchapter F, Chapter 2269, Tex. Gov't Code, as 
amended, and receive bids or proposals from trade contractors or subcontractors for the 
performance of all major elements of the work other than the minor work that may be approved for 
performance by the Contractor by the City; (iii) enter into one or more agreements with 
Subcontracts to accomplish such work, based upon the approved Plans and Specifications; (iv) 
provide the work and services, or cause the work and services to be provided, and complete the 
Work in conformance with the Plans and Specifications; and (v) obtain Substantial Completion of 
the Work within the time stipulated in Exhibit A GMP Addendum, such time to begin within ten 
calendar days after the Notice to Proceed is given, and obtain Final Completion and acceptance of 
the Work by the City within forty-five  (45) days after Substantial Completion.  
 
 (b)  Notwithstanding any other term, condition or provision of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall: 
 
 (i)   advertise for bids or proposals all major elements of the Work and make subcontractor 

selection and recommendations to the City as to the subcontractors that offer the best value 
to the City; 

 
 (ii)  review and advise the City on the Conceptual Plan and the Plans and Specifications, and 

coordinate with the Architect and the City Representative any recommended changes to 
such plans; 

 
 (iii)  construct and complete the Work, or cause the Work to be constructed and 

completed, in conformance with the Plans and Specifications and this Agreement;  
 
 (iv)  cause the Work to be constructed, equipped and finally accepted for and in 

consideration of the Guaranteed Maximum Price stipulated hereinabove; and 
 
 (v)  not unreasonably withhold any service, action or approval required to be given by 

the Contractor under this Agreement.  
 
 (c) All wages paid under this Agreement must not be less than the prevailing rate of per 

diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the Work is performed 
for regular days, holidays and overtime work, as determined in accordance with Section 
2258.022, Texas Government Code and other applicable law, a copy of which prevailing 
wage rate is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.  The Contractor shall be required to comply 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 9 

with all applicable requirements of law governing prevailing wage rates. 
 
 (d) Contractor shall consult and advise the Architect and City Representative on the 
distinction between major and minor work to be performed on the Work and the segregation of the 
Work into distinct component for subcontracting. The Contractor may identify minor Work for 
which the Contractor will be directly responsible directly, and Architect and the City Representative 
shall approve such proposed minor work.  All major work will be advertised and bid according to 
Subchapter F, Chapter 2269, Tex. Gov't Code.  The Contractor shall review all trade contractor or 
subcontractor bids or proposals with the City Representative and Architect in a manner that does 
not disclose the contents of the bid or proposal during the selection process to a person not 
employed by the construction manager-at-risk, architect, engineer, or governmental entity. The 
Contractor may bid on any major component. If the Contractor is the best value for the City, the 
City may award Subcontracts to the Contractor.  If the Contractor reviews, evaluates, and 
recommends a bid or proposal from a trade contractor or subcontractor but the City 
Representative requires another bid or proposal to be accepted, the City shall compensate the 
Contractor by a change in price, time, or guaranteed maximum cost for any additional cost and 
risk that the Contractor incurs because of the City’s requirement that another bid or proposal be 
accepted. 
 
 (e)  Notwithstanding any other term, condition or provision of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall periodically inspect the Work to ensure that the construction, installation, and 
erection of the Work is done in compliance with the Conceptual Plan, the Plans and Specifications, 
and this Agreement. 
 
 (f)  The time for Substantial Completion of the work shall be as provided in Section 6 
(a)(v.). The time for Final Completion of the work shall be as provided hereinafter in Section 6 
(a)(v.).  If the Contractor fails to complete the work within the time required for Substantial 
Completion, or within the time required for Final Completion as applicable, the Contractor shall pay 
liquidated damages which shall be calculated on a calendar day basis, as provided hereinafter in 
Section 24.      
 
 (g)  The Contractor shall provide or cause to be provided a Performance Bond and a 
Payment Bond, pursuant to Chapter 2253, Texas Government Code, each in the amount of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (the "P&P Bonds") within ten (10) calendar days of the City’s 
acceptance of the GMP Proposal.  The P&P Bonds shall name the City as beneficiary and be issued 
by a surety or sureties licensed to do business in the State of Texas and acceptable to the City. 
 
 (h)  The Contractor may, in its sole discretion, require any Subcontractor to provide: (i) for 
retainage to be withheld by the Contractor (with interest if applicable as provided in Subchapter B, 
Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code); and/or (ii) for a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond 
payable to the Contractor in the amount of the Subcontract.  
 
 (i)  If a selected trade contractor or subcontractor defaults in the performance of its work or 
fails to execute a subcontract after being selected, the Contractor may, without advertising fulfill the 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 10 

contract requirements itself or select a replacement trade contractor or subcontractor to fulfill the 
requirements of the subcontract without an increase in the GMP or schedule for completion of the 
Work. 
 
 (j)  Upon Substantial Completion of the Work, the Contractor shall provide the City with a 
certificate to the effect that the acquisition, construction, and equipping of the Work has been 
substantially completed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications.  The City may use or 
occupy any completed or partially completed portion of the Work following Substantial Completion 
when such portion is designated in writing by the Contractor and applicable Subcontractor as 
substantially complete.  The agreement providing for such occupancy or use shall assign 
responsibilities for payments, security, maintenance, HVAC, utilities, damage to the Work, work 
not complying with the Plans and Specifications and commencement of warranties.  If deficiencies 
are noted during inspection for Substantial Completion, the City shall promptly deliver written 
notice to the Contractor specifying such deficiencies and the Contractor shall be entitled to a 
reasonable amount of time not to exceed forty-five (45) days, to cure such deficiencies and submit 
the Work to the City for inspection for Final Completion.   
 
 (k)  Upon Final Completion, the Contractor shall so certify such Final Completion to the 
City, and the City shall then inspect the Work and, if no deficiencies are noted, shall provide an 
acceptance certificate evidencing the acceptance of the Work as constructed in accordance with the 
Plans and Specifications.  Such acceptance certificate shall be deemed the final acceptance.  After 
the final acceptance, the City shall approve final payment to be made to the Contractor upon 
submission of all required warranties, releases of lien (if any) and a standard certificate of payment, 
which includes a statement that all subcontractors have been paid. 
 
 (l) In addition to the on-going inspection of the Work by the Contractor, and inspection 
by the Architect, the quality and progress of the Work shall be subject to inspection by city 
personnel and officers. The Contractor shall inspect the Work as necessary in the Contractor’s 
judgment but, in any event, prior to each request for a progress payment, and, prior to each request 
for a progress payment, the Architect shall observe the level of completion.  The Architect shall 
inspect the Work at Substantial Completion, and the building officials of the City will inspect the 
Work in a manner consistent with the building codes of the City.  
 
Section 7.  City Representative.  (a)  Communications.  The Contractor shall forward all 
communications, written or oral, to the City through the City Representative with copy to the 
Architect.   
 
 (b)  Inspections.  The City Representative may periodically review and inspect the work of 
the Contractor, and may cause other qualified persons to inspect the work. 
 
 (c)  Subordinate Supervisors and Inspectors.  The City Representative shall appoint, from 
time to time, such subordinate supervisors or inspectors as City Representative may deem proper to 
inspect the work performed under this Agreement and ensure that said Work is performed in 
accordance with the Plans and Specifications. 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 11 

 
 (d)  Directions by City. The Contractor shall regard and obey the directions and instructions 
of City Representative with Architect approval for any changes to Plans and Specifications, and any 
authorized subordinate supervisors or inspectors appointed by the City, provided such directions and 
instructions are consistent with the authority of the City under this Agreement, are not inconsistent 
with the rights, duties and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement, and are not otherwise 
inconsistent or in conflict with the status of the Contractor as an independent contractor.   
 
 (e)  Appeal by Contractor.  Should the Contractor object to any orders by any subordinate 
supervisor or inspector, the Contractor may, within four (4) days from receipt of such order, make 
written appeal to Architect for his decision. 
 
 (f)  Clarifications and Interpretations.   The Architect will issue with written clarifications or 
interpretations of the requirements of the Contract Documents as the Architect determines 
necessary, which shall be consistent with or reasonably inferable from the overall intent of the 
Contract Documents; provided that no change requiring a material change (as defined in Section 
7(g)) in the design, drawings or plan may be issued without the City Council's written approval, or 
the City Manager’s written approval if authorized under this Agreement.  If Contractor believes that 
a written clarification or interpretation justifies an increase in the Work Costs or an extension of the 
time for performance and the parties are unable to agree to the amount or extent thereof, Contractor 
may make a claim therefor as provided herein for Change Order Work or Extensions of Time. 
 
 (g)  Authorized Variations in Work.  The Architect, with the prior approval of the City 
Representative, may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract 
Documents which do not involve an adjustment in the Work Costs or the time for completion, do 
not require a material change to the design, drawings, or Plans and Specifications, and that are 
consistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents.  These may be accomplished by a field 
order and will be binding on City, and also on Contractor who shall perform the Work involved 
promptly; provided that no change requiring a material change in the design, drawings, or Plans and 
Specifications may be issued without the City Council's written approval, or the City Manager’s 
written approval if authorized under this Agreement.  If Contractor believes that a field order 
justifies an increase in the Work Costs or an extension of the time for performance and the parties 
are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, the Contractor may make a claim therefor. 
For the purposes of this Agreement, a "material change" in the design, drawings, or Plans and 
Specifications is any change that varies from, or requires a modification to, the design, drawings, or 
Plans and Specifications, or any change that increases or decreases the Work Costs or time for 
performance. 
 
 (h)  Rejecting Work.  Both the Architect and the City Representative will have authority to 
disapprove or reject Work that Architect or the City Representative believes to be defective, and 
will also have authority to require special inspection or testing of the Work at anytime, regardless of 
whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed. 
 
 (i)  Dispute Resolution.  The Architect will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 12 

the Contract Documents and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder, having considered 
the recommendation of the City Representative.  Claims, disputes and other matters relating to the 
acceptability of work or the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining 
to the performance and furnishing of the work and claims for Change Order Work and Extensions 
of Time in respect of changes in the Work Costs or time for performance will be referred initially to 
Architect in writing with a request for a formal decision in accordance with this paragraph, which 
Architect will render in writing within a reasonable time.  Written notice of each such claim, dispute 
and other matter will be delivered by the claimant to Architect and the other party to the Agreement 
promptly (but in no event later than thirty days) after the occurrence of the event giving rise thereto, 
and written supporting data will be submitted to Architect and the other party within sixty days after 
such occurrence unless the Architect (with consent of the City and the Contractor) allows an 
additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim. 
 
 The rendering of a decision by Architect pursuant to this Agreement with respect to any 
claim, dispute or other matter (except any which have been waived by the making or acceptance of 
final payment by the Contractor-unless specifically agreed otherwise in writing by the parties prior 
to such application or payment) will be a condition precedent to any exercise by City or Contractor 
of such rights or remedies as either may otherwise have under the Contract Documents or by laws 
or regulations in respect of any such claim, dispute or other matter. 
 
 (j)  Coordination with Architect.  The Architect and Contractor shall coordinate from time to 
time and will: (i) review the Plans and Specifications for the Work for compliance with this 
Agreement and all applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards; (ii) periodically observe the 
work for compliance with the Plans and Specifications, this Agreement, and all applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and standards; (iii) consult and advise the City regarding the Plans and 
Specifications, the reasonableness of the specifications based on the Work Costs, and the Work 
being constructed for the Guaranteed Maximum Price; and (iv) reasonably cooperate and coordinate 
with the Parties to facilitate the timely and efficient construction of the Work. 
 
 (k)  Limitation of Responsibilities.  Neither Architect’s authority to act under this Section or 
elsewhere in the Contract Documents nor any decision made by the Architect in good faith either to 
exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Architect 
to Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, or any other person or organization performing any 
of the work, or to any surety for any of them. 
 
 The Architect and the City Representative will not be responsible for Contractor’s means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and 
programs incident thereto, and the Architect and City Representative will not be responsible for 
Contractor’s failure to perform or furnish the work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
 The Architect and the City Representative will not be responsible for the acts or omissions 
of Contractor or of any subcontractor, any supplier, or of any other person or organization 
performing or furnishing any of the work. 
 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 13 

Section 8.  Independent Contractor.  (a)  Independent Contractor. In all activities or services 
performed hereunder, the Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent or employee of 
the City. The Contractor, as an independent contractor, shall be responsible for the final product 
contemplated under this Agreement. Except for materials furnished by the City, the Contractor shall 
supply all materials, equipment, and labor required for the execution of the Work, or cause such to 
be provided. The Contractor shall have ultimate control over the execution of the Work under this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall have the sole obligation to employ, direct, control, supervise, 
manage, discharge, and compensate all of its employees and subcontractors, and the City shall have 
no control of or supervision over the employees of the Contractor or any of the Contractor’s 
subcontractors except to the limited extent provided for in this Agreement.   
 
 (b)  Control of the Work.  The Contractor shall retain personal control and shall give its 
personal attention to the faithful prosecution and completion of the Work, the Project, and 
fulfillment of this Agreement. The subletting of any portion or feature of the work or materials 
required in the performance of this Agreement shall not relieve the Contractor from its obligations 
to the City under this Agreement. The Contractor shall appoint and keep on the Work during the 
progress of the work a competent superintendant (“Superintendant”) and any necessary assistants, 
all satisfactory to City’s Representative, to act as the Contractor’s representative and to supervise its 
employees and subcontractors. All directions given to the Superintendant shall be binding as if 
given to the Contractor.  
 
 (c)  Contractor Provided Materials and Equipment.  Unless otherwise stipulated in writing, 
the Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, tools, equipment, transportation, 
facilities, and drawings, including engineering, and any other services necessary or reasonably 
incidental to the performance of the work by the Contractor. It shall be the responsibility of the 
Contractor to furnish a completed work product that meets the requirements of the City. Any 
additional work, material, or equipment needed to meet the intent of this specification shall be 
supplied by the Contractor without claim for additional payment, even though not specifically 
mentioned herein. 
 
 (d)  Contractor's Risk.  Any injury or damage to the Contractor or the Work caused by an, 
natural cause, a party or entity not privy to this Agreement, or other like issue shall be assumed and 
borne by the Contractor.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs of materials, tool, 
equipment, labor, subcontractors and other such costs in excess of Contractor’s GMP. 
 
Section 9.  Progress of Work.  (a)  Schedule of Work.  Unless otherwise specifically provided, the 
Contractor shall execute its work and oversee the work of Subcontractors at such time and sessions, 
in such order of precedence, and in such manner as shall be most conducive to the economy of the 
Work; provided, however, that the order and time of prosecution shall be such that the Work shall 
be Substantially Completed in accordance with this Agreement, the Plans and Specifications, and 
within the time of completion designated in this Agreement and any approved progress schedules. 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 14 

 
 (b)  Scheduling and Coordination.  Further, the parties shall be subject to the following: 
 
 (i.) The Contractor shall submit a progress schedule and payment schedule of the 

work contemplated by this Agreement. 
 (ii.)   The Superintendent shall work directly with Subcontractors as necessary to 

coordinate construction activities.  
 (iii.) In the event that it is determined by the City that the progress of the work is not 

in accordance with the approved progress and payment schedule, the City may 
so inform the Contractor and require the Contractor to take such action as is 
necessary to insure completion of the Work within the time specified and the 
Contractor shall revise schedule to show corrective action. 

 
 (c)  Work Stoppage. If in the judgment of the Architect any of the work or materials 
furnished is not in strict accordance with this Agreement or any portion of the work is being 
performed so as to create a hazardous condition, the City may, in its sole discretion, order the work 
of the Contractor or any Subcontractor wholly or partially stopped until any objectionable person, 
work, or material is removed from the premises. Such stoppage or suspension shall neither 
invalidate any of the Contractor’s performance obligations under this Agreement, including the time 
of performance and deadlines therefore, nor will any extra charge be allowed the Contractor by 
reason of such stoppage or suspension. 
 
 (d)  Changes in the Work. The Contractor may make such changes and alterations as the 
City may require in the work or any part thereof without affecting the validity of this Agreement 
and any accompanying bond. If such changes or alterations diminish the quantity of the work to be 
done, they shall not constitute the basis for any claim for damages or anticipated profits. If the City 
makes changes or alterations that render useless any work already done or material already used in 
said work, then the City shall recompense the Contractor for any material or labor so used, and for 
any actual loss occasioned by such change due to actual expenses incurred in preparation for the 
work as originally planned. 
 
Section 10.  Entry, Observation, Testing & Possession.  (a)  City Access to the Site.  The City 
reserves the right to enter the Work site or sites by such employee(s) or agent(s) as it may elect for 
the purpose of inspecting the work. The City further reserves the right to enter the Work site or sites 
for the purpose of performing such collateral work as the City may desire. 
 
 (b)  Observation and Testing.  The City’s Representative shall have the right, at all 
reasonable times, to observe and test the work. The Contractor shall make necessary arrangements 
and provide proper facilities and access for such observation and testing at any location where the 
work or any part thereof is in preparation or progress. The Contractor shall ascertain the scope of 
any observation that may be contemplated by City’s Representative and shall give ample notice as 
to the time each part of the work will be ready for observation. 
 
Section 11.  Rejected Work.  (a)  Non-Conforming Work.  All work deemed not in conformity 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 15 

with this Agreement as determined by the City in its sole discretion, may be rejected by the City. 
City’s Representative may reject any work found to be defective or not in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, regardless of the stage of the work’s completion or the time or place of 
discovery of such defects or inconsistencies and regardless of whether City’s Representative has 
previously accepted the work through oversight or otherwise. Neither observations nor inspections, 
tests, or approvals made by City’s Representative, or other persons authorized under this Agreement 
to make such observations, inspections, tests, or approvals, shall relieve the Contractor from the 
obligation to perform the work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and the other 
Contract Documents. 
 
 (b)  Remedial Action.  If the work or any part thereof is not in conformity with this 
Agreement, it shall be rejected by the City’s Representative.  Any remedial action required, as set 
forth herein, shall be at the Contractor’s expense, as follows:  
 
 (i.) The Contractor may be required, at the City’s option, after notice from City’s 

Representative, to remedy such work so that it shall be in full compliance with 
this Agreement. All rejected work or materials shall be immediately replaced in 
order to conform with this Agreement. 

 (ii.) If the City deems it inexpedient to correct work damaged or not done in 
accordance with this Agreement, an equitable deduction from the agreed sum 
may be made by the City at the City’s sole discretion. 

 
Section 12.  Approval of Subcontractors.  If City’s Representative judges any Subcontractor to 
be failing to perform the work in strict accordance with the drawings and Plans and Specifications, 
the City Representative through the Architect shall give the Contractor notice of such failure to 
perform.  Contractor shall, if appropriate, discharge the same if Subcontractor does not cure such 
failure to perform, but this shall in no way release the Contractor from its obligations and 
responsibility under this Agreement.  Every subcontractor shall be bound by the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement and the Contract Documents as far as applicable to their work. The 
Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City for the acts and omissions of its Subcontractors. 
Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual or employment relations between any 
subcontractor and the City. 
 
Section 13.  Payment of Employees, Subcontractors & Suppliers.  The Contractor shall be solely 
and exclusively responsible for compensating any of the Contractor’s employees, subcontractors, 
materialmen and/or suppliers of any type or nature whatsoever and for insuring that no claims or 
liens of any type arising out of or incidental to the performance of any services performed pursuant 
to this Agreement are filed, or attempted to be filed, against any property owned by the City. In the 
event a statutory notice of claim or attempted lien is sent to the City, the Contractor shall, where no 
payment bond covers the work, upon written notice from the City, immediately obtain a bond at its 
expense and hold the City harmless from any losses that may result from the filing or enforcement 
of any said claim or lien notice. In the event that the Contractor defaults in the provision of the 
bond, the City may withhold such funds as are necessary to assure the payment of such claim until 
litigation determines to whom payment shall be made. 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 16 

 
Section 14.  Payment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price By City.  The City agrees to approve 
the payment of certain amounts for Work Costs, as set forth herein and as appropriate and supported 
by contract, documentation and progress of construction on the Work, to, or on behalf of, the 
Contractor, from the Work Account; provided however, the payments to be made hereunder shall 
not exceed Guaranteed Maximum Price.  Payments under this Section 14 shall begin after the City 
has accepted the GMP Proposal and shall be made pursuant to procedure set forth in this section.  
The City agrees to approve the payment of the following Work Costs from the Work Account: 
  
 (a)  Progress Payments.  Payments to the Contractor of Work Costs from the Work Account 
for all Work, profits, costs, expenses and construction, shall be paid as progress payments during 
construction.  All such progress payments for equipment and materials shall be based on such 
equipment and materials delivered and on-site (or off-site so long as such materials are stored in a 
bonded warehouse), actual subcontractor charges, and payments for all other Work Costs shall be 
based upon the percentage of the work completed.  The Contractor shall, except for retainage 
withheld (if any) as provided in the Subcontracts, promptly pay its Subcontractors and providers of 
services, materials and equipment.  The City Representative or the Architect may require proof of 
payment by the Contractor, any Subcontractor or materialman, and waivers/releases of liens from 
the Contractor and Subcontractors prior to any progress payment to the Contractor. 
 
 (b)  Payment Requisition Certificate.  Disbursements of Work Costs from the Work 
Account to pay construction costs shall be made to the Contractor upon receipt of a Payment 
Requisition Certificate prepared by the Contractor and certified by the Architect, the Subcontractors, 
if any, and the City Representative.  The form of the Payment Requisition Certificate is attached as 
Exhibit "C".  To assure timely submission of the Payment Requisition Certificates during 
construction of the Work the Contractor shall submit to the Architect and the City Representative 
the itemized application for payment prepared in accordance with this Agreement and standard 
municipal construction practices, based on the percentage of work completed and materials 
delivered to the Work or stored off-site in a bonded warehouse, less the amount of prior payments.   
 
 (i)   The Contractor shall submit applications for payment on or before the 10th day of 

each month.  Such applications, in the form attached as Exhibit "C", will be 
submitted to the City Representative for approval or modification.  Attached 
documentation shall include a statement showing as completely as practicable the 
total value of the actual work performed by the Contractor and accepted by the City 
up to and including the last day of the preceding month. The statement shall also 
include the value of all materials not previously submitted for payment which have 
been delivered to the site but have not yet been incorporated into the work. 

 
 (ii)   The Architect shall review each Payment Requisition Certificate and certify it for 

payment, as appropriate, prior to it being submitted to the City Representative.  The 
Architect may refuse to certify payment in whole or in part either on its own or 
because of the Contractor's or City's failure to concur therewith, provided that such 
certification shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If agreement is not reached as to a 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 17 

revised amount to be certified for payment, payment shall be issued for the 
undisputed amount.  Architect's approval of a Payment Requisition Certificate, or 
part thereof, shall be a representation that such payment request and amount is 
reasonable and not inconsistent with the work completed. 

 
 (iii)   The City Representative may require additional review and approval of any Payment 

Requisition Certificate by the Architect and/or the Governing Body, prior to 
approval and payment by the City. Upon certification by the City, such application 
shall be paid to the Contractor. 

  
 (iv)   Contractor's application for payment and execution of a Payment Requisition 

Certificate shall constitute a warranty by the Contractor that all work for which 
Payment Requisition Certificates have been previously issued and payment received 
is free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances of any kind 
of the Contractor, any contractor or subcontractor, or other persons or entities 
providing labor, materials and/or equipment relating to the Work, and, further, 
constitutes a warranty that all sums received pursuant to the application will be 
applied so as to assure that no liens, security interests or encumbrances attach to the 
work which the application covers. 

 
 (c)  Payment.  On or before the 30th calendar day following the Architect’s receipt of a 
Payment Requisition Certificate meeting the requirements of this Agreement, the City shall pay to 
the Contractor the approved amount of the progress payment based on the Contractor’s applications 
for payment up to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the terms of this Agreement, the 
recommendation of the Architect and the approval of the City Representative.  Prior to Substantial 
Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage of work 
completed by the Contractor and accepted by the City, but in each case less the aggregate of 
payments previously made and less amounts the City Representative shall determine and the City 
may withhold in accordance with this Agreement.  Upon Final Completion and acceptance of the 
work in accordance with this Agreement, the City shall pay the remainder of the Work Cost up to 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price, less any sums withheld under other terms of this Agreement.  Any 
withheld sums shall be paid with the first progress payment approved after satisfactory resolution of 
the issues resulting in the withholding.  Interest shall accrue on overdue payments in accordance 
with the provisions of Sections 2251.021, et seq. of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 (d)  Machinery and Equipment.  The Contractor shall procure, or cause the Subcontractors 
to procure all machinery, equipment and fixtures incident, useful or necessary to the use and 
function of the Work as a fire station; e.g. electrical, air conditioning, heating, and plumbing.  Such 
machinery, equipment and fixtures shall be new (not previously used) and delivered prior to final 
acceptance of the Work.  On or before final acceptance, Contractor shall prepare and deliver to the 
City a property inventory listing for each such item delivered, which shall consist of the use and 
care manuals, warranty documents, and as-built drawings for such property.  All such machinery, 
equipment and fixtures shall fully comply with the Plans and Specifications.  
 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 18 

 (e)  Retainage. From each approved statement, the City shall retain until final payment, five 
percent (5%). The City may also retain from each approved statement any other sums authorized 
under the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 (f)  Contractor Not to Obligate City.  The Contractor shall have the sole obligation to pay 
any and all charges or fees and give all notices necessary to and incidental to the lawful prosecution 
of the work hereunder. The Contractor shall not--and shall have no authority whatsoever--to 
obligate the City to make any payments to another party nor make any promises or representation of 
any nature on behalf of the City, without the specific written approval of the City. 
 
 (g)  Suspension of Payments. The City, at any time, may suspend monthly progress 
payments on the work if it determines that the projected liquidated damages may exceed retainage. 
The City, at any time, may suspend monthly progress payments if it believes that the Contractor will 
not complete the work due to actual default or that the Contractor has represented or done some act 
that indicates that it will not complete the work in accordance with this Agreement or within the 
time period submitted in its bid. 
 
 (h)  Unit Prices.  The Architect will determine the actual quantities and classifications of 
Unit Price Work performed by Contractor, and will review with the Contractor preliminary 
determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon.  Architect’s written 
decisions thereon will be final and binding upon City and Contractor, unless, within ten days after 
the date of any such decision, either City or Contractor delivers to the other party to the Agreement 
and to Architect written notice of intention to appeal from such a decision. 
 
 (i)  Withhold Funds. Regardless of any bond, the City may, on account of subsequently 
discovered evidence and in addition to the retainage withheld under Section 14(e), withhold funds 
or nullify all or part of any acceptance or certificate to such extent as may be necessary to protect 
itself from loss on account of any of the following: 
 
 
 (i.)  Defective work. 
 (ii.)  Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of claims. 
 (iii.) Failure of the Contractor to make prompt payments to subcontractors for 

 labor or material or materialmen. 
 (iv.) Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating damage to another by the 

Contractor. 
 (v.)  Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating damage to third parties, 

including adjacent property owners. 
 (vi.) Claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating unremedied damage to 

property owned by the City. 
 (vii.) City’s determination of an amount of liquidated damages. 
 (viii.) Charges made for repairs to the Contractor’s defective work or repairs made 

by the City to correct damage to other property. 
 (ix.) Other amounts authorized under this Agreement. 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 19 

 
 (j)  Approval by Contractor.  The Contractor shall approve and sign all Payment Requisition 
Certificates submitted for approval and payment as provided hereinabove. 
 
Section 15.  Change Order Work Charges.  (a)  Change Order Approval.  No changes shall be 
made, nor will bills for changes, alterations, modifications, deviations, extra orders and Change 
Order Work be recognized or paid for except upon the written change order from authorized 
personnel of the City and provided that funds have been appropriated for such payment. 
 
 (b)  Limits on Change Orders. “Change Order Work”, as defined in Section 1 and 
authorized through written change orders, and pursuant to Section 252.048(d) of the Texas Local 
Government Code, the original contract price may not be increased by more than twenty-five 
percent (25%). Written change orders that do not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the original 
Contract Amount may be made or approved by the City Manager or his delegate if the total of the 
change order(s), in the aggregate, is less than Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00). Changes in 
excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) must be approved by the City Council prior to 
commencement of the services or work. Any requests by the Contractor for a change to the Contract 
Amount shall be made prior to the beginning of the work covered by the proposed change or the 
right to payment for Change Order Work shall be waived. 
 
 (c)  Request Required.  Any requests by the Contractor for a change to the Work Costs shall 
be made prior to the beginning of the work covered by the proposed change or the right to payment 
for the work shall be waived. 
 
 (d)  Completion of Work and Change Order Work.  The Contractor shall complete all Work 
as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall complete all Change 
Order Work in connection therewith. All work and materials shall be in strict conformity with the 
Plans and Specifications and the Contract Documents. The Substantial Completion of the work shall 
not excuse the Contractor from performing all the work undertaken, whether of a minor or major 
nature, and thereby completing the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. In the event 
that the Contractor fails to perform the work as required for Substantial Completion or Final 
Completion, the City may contract with a third party to complete the work and the Contractor shall 
assume and pay the costs of the performance of the work as contracted. 
  
Section 16.  Substantial Completion.  (a)  Notice of Substantial Completion.  The Contractor shall 
notify City’s Representative when, in the Contractor’s opinion, the contract is Substantially 
Completed. Within ten (10) calendar days after the Contractor has given City’s Representative 
written notice that the work has been Substantially Completed, City’s Representative shall inspect 
the work for the preparation of a final punch list. 
 
 (i.) If City’s Representative and the City find that the work is not Substantially 

Completed, then they shall so notify the Contractor who shall then complete the 
work. City’s Representative shall not be required to provide a list of unfinished 
work. 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 20 

 (ii.) If the Architect, the City Representative and City find that the work is Substantially 
Completed, the City shall issue to the Contractor its certificate of Substantial 
Completion. 

 
 (b)  No Delay After Substantial Completion.  The Substantial Completion of the work shall 
not excuse the Contractor from performing all of the work undertaken in a timely manner, whether 
of a minor or major nature, and thereby completing the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 
 
Section 17.  Final Completion.(a)  Notice of Final Completion.  Contractor shall notify the City’s 
Representative when it believes that the work has reached Final Completion as defined in Section 1 
and shall deliver to the City an executed Final Affidavit of Bills Paid, in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit “D”. If the City’s Representative and the City accept and deem such work Finally 
Complete, then Contractor shall be so notified and certificates of completion and acceptance, as 
provided herein, shall be issued. A complete itemized statement of this Agreement account, certified 
by the City’s Representative as correct, shall then be prepared and delivered to Contractor. 
Contractor or City, as the case may be, shall pay the balance due as reflected by said statement 
within ten (10) calendar days, less any retainage, which shall be held for a period of forty-five (45) 
calendar days after Final Completion. At the expiration of the forty-five (45) calendar day period, 
City shall release any unclaimed retainage. 
 
 (b)  Required Certifications.  The Contractor shall procure all required certificates of 
acceptance or completions issued by state, municipal, or other authorities and submit the same to the 
City. The City may withhold any payments due under this Agreement until the necessary 
certificates are procured and delivered. 
 
 (c)  Workmanship.  Neither the final payment nor any acceptance nor certificate nor any 

provision of this Agreement shall relieve the Contractor of any responsibility for faulty workmanship 
or materials. At the option of the City, the Contractor shall remedy any defects and pay for any 
damage to other work that may appear after final acceptance of the work. 
 
Section 18.  Delays.  (a)  Discretionary Delay By the City.  The City may, in its sole discretion, by 
written notice delay the work during inclement weather in order to preserve the Work, insure safety 
of work forces, and the preservation of materials and equipment. Only in such event and upon a 
written request from the Contractor, the City may grant an extension of time to offset for such 
stoppage of the work. 
 
 (b)  Change Order for City Delay. In the event of delays resulting from changes ordered in 
the work by the City or other delays caused by the City or for the City’s convenience, Contractor 
may apply to the City for an increase in the time permitted for completion of the work and/or 
recovery of incidental damages resulting from increased storage costs or other costs necessary to 
protect the value of the work. In no event shall any consequential or other damages be allowed or 
any other charges or claims be made by the Contractor for hindrances or delays resulting from any 
other cause. 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 21 

 
Section 19.  Extensions of Time.  The Contractor has submitted its GMP Proposal in full 
recognition of the time required for the completion of this Work, taking into consideration all 
factors including, but not limited to the average climatic range and industrial conditions. The 
Contractor may request an extension of time for either Substantial Completion or Final Completion 
when the work has been delayed by one or more of the following: 
 
 (a) an act or neglect of the City, the City Representative, employees of the City, or other 

contractors employed by the City; 
 (b) by changes ordered in the work, or reductions thereto approved in writing; 
 (c) by “rain days” (days with rainfall in excess of one-tenth of an inch) during the term of 

this Agreement that exceed the average number of rain days for such term for this 
locality; or 

 (d) by other causes that the City and the Contractor agree may reasonably justify delay and 
that were beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control and ability to estimate, predict, or 
avoid, such as delays caused by unforeseen labor disputes, fire, natural disasters, acts of 
war, and other rare and unpredictable events. This term does not include normal delays 
incident to the delivery of materials, tools, or labor that reasonably could have been 
predicted and/or accounted for in the Contractor’s GMP Proposal or decision to bid. 

 
 If one or more of the foregoing conditions is present, the Contractor may apply in writing 
for an extension of time, submitting therewith all written justification as may be required by the 
Architect. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of a written request for an extension of time, 
which is supported by all requested documentation, the City shall, in writing and in its sole 
discretion, grant or deny the request. 
 
Section 20.  Charges For Injury or Repair.  (a)  Damages to the Work.  The Contractor shall be 
liable for any damages incurred or repairs made necessary by reason of its work and/or caused by 
the Contractor, its employees, agents, officers, representatives, subcontractors and materials 
suppliers it. Repairs of any kind required by the City will be made and charged to the Contractor by 
the City. 
 
 (b)  Protect the Work.  The Contractor shall take the necessary precautions to protect any 
areas adjacent to its work. 
 
 (c)  Work Includes All Repairs.  The work specified consists of all work, materials, and 
labor required by the City to repair any damage to the property of the City, including but not limited 
to structures, roadways, curbs, parking areas, and sidewalks. 
 
Section 21.  Insurance. (a)  Property and Casualty.  The Contractor shall provide and 
maintain builder's risk insurance at all times prior to completion of the Work and, in the event of 
any casualty prior to the completion of the Work, the proceeds of such insurance shall be used by 
the Contractor to repair or replace the damaged portion of the Work.  Upon completion and final 
acceptance of the Work the City shall obtain, provide and maintain, or cause to be so provided, such 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 22 

liability and other insurance as determined appropriate by the Governing Body. 
 
 (b)  Subcontractors.  The Contractor shall require all Subcontractors to obtain, maintain, and 
keep in force insurance coverage in accordance with accepted industry standards during the time 
they are engaged hereunder. All Subcontractors shall be required to show proof of worker's 
compensation insurance coverage.  The Contractor shall obtain, maintain and keep in force a 
general liability insurance policy which shall name the City as an additional insured.   
 
 (c)  Minimum Contractor Insurance.  The Contractor shall also carry the following insurance 
in at least the following limits: 
 
 Coverages     Limits of Liability 
 
 (i)   Workmen's Compensation   Statutory 
 (ii)  Employers' Liability   $500,000.00 
 (iii) Comprehensive General Liability  $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
       $1,000,000.00 in the aggregate 

(iv) Comprehensive Automobile Liabilitiy  (Any auto, hired auto, non-owned auto) 
a. Bodily Injury Liability  $1,000,000.00 each person 

      $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
  b.  Property Damage Liability  $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
 (v)   Owner’s and Contractor’s Protective $1,000,000.00 
 (vi)  Builder’s Risk    full value of contract 
 (vii) Excess Umbrella Liability  $2,000,000.00 each occurrence 
 
 (d)  General Requirements Applicable to All Policies.  The City of Leander must be 
named on the required insurance policies, with the exception of Worker’s Compensation and 
Employer’s Liability, as an Additional Insured.  Only Insurance Carriers licensed and admitted or 
eligible to do business in the State of Texas will be accepted.  Each insurance policy shall be 
endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in 
limits except after thirty (30) days prior unconditional, unqualified written notice by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, has been given to the City of Leander.  All Certificates of Insurance and 
endorsements shall be furnished to the City’s Representative at the time of execution of this 
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit "E", and approved by the City before work commences.  
Contractor shall provide the City with a full and complete copy of any insurance policy promptly 
upon request by the City and without charge to the City. 
 
Section 22.  Default.  In the event of a default by any Party hereto the non-defaulting Party shall be 
entitled to such remedies for the default as they may be entitled to at law or in equity, after 
providing written notice of default by certified mail, return receipt requested, and reasonable 
opportunity to cure such default. 
 
Section 23.  Term.  Upon its execution and delivery this Agreement shall be and become in full 
force and effect as of the Effective Date, and shall continue in full force and effect through final 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 23 

acceptance of the Work and payment in full to the Contractor of the lower of the Work Costs or the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Contractor shall 
obtain substantial completion of the Work within the time set forth in the GMP Proposal approved 
by the City, such time to begin within ten calendar days after issuance of the Notice to Proceed, and 
final approval and acceptance of the Work by the City within thirty days after Substantial 
Completion.  The work embraced by this Agreement shall be commenced on the date specified in 
the notice to proceed. Said notice to proceed shall be in writing. 
 
Section 24.  Liquidated Damages.  If the Contractor should neglect, fail, or refuse to either 
substantially complete, or finally complete and obtain City acceptance of the Work, within the time 
herein specified, or any proper extension granted by the Governing Body, then the Contractor does 
agree as part of the consideration for the awarding of this Agreement that the City may permanently 
withhold from the Contractor’s total compensation the sum of up to Five Hundred and no/100 
DOLLARS ($500.00) for each and every calendar day that the Contractor is in default after the time 
stipulated for Substantial Completion and up to Two Hundred and no/100 DOLLARS ($200) per 
day for Final Completion, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages for the breach of this 
Agreement. It is specifically understood that liquidated damages may be imposed for any failure to 
meet either or both of the deadlines for Substantial Completion or Final Completion.  The 
Contractor and the City waive claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or 
relating to this contract. 
 
Section 25.  Tax Exempt Status.  The City shall provide the Contractor with all necessary 
certificates (exemption, resale or otherwise) for sales tax exemption, and shall cooperate with the 
Contractor in such regard.  The Parties agree, based on the City's exempt status under §151.309, 
Texas Tax Code, that this Agreement and the Subcontracts are separated contracts with separately 
stated prices and invoices for (i) materials to be incorporated into the Work and (ii) skill, labor and 
services for the development of the Work as specified in the Work Costs Schedule annexed hereto. 
  
Section 26. Warranty.  (a)  One Year Warranty.  The Contractor shall warranty all Work 
whether performed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor.  The Contractor may require 
Subcontractors provide a warranty or bond to the Contractor. Upon issuance of a certificate of Final 
Completion, the Contractor warrants for a period of one (1) year as follows: 
 
  The Contractor warrants that all materials provided to the City under this 

Agreement shall be new unless otherwise approved in advance by City’s 
Representative and that all work will be of good quality, free from faults and 
defects, and in conformance with this Agreement, the other Contract 
Documents, and recognized industry standards. 

 
 (b)  Defective Work.  All work not conforming to these requirements, including but not 
limited to unapproved substitutions, may be considered defective. 
 
 (c)  Rights Not Waived.  This warranty is in addition to any rights or warranties expressed or 
implied by law and in addition to any consumer protection claims arising from misrepresentations 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 24 

by the Contractor. 
 
 (d)  Greater Warranty Term.  Where more than a one (1) year warranty is specified for 
individual products, work, or materials, the longer warranty shall govern. 
 
 (e)  Warranty Covered by Bonds. This warranty obligation shall be covered by any 
performance or payment bonds tendered in compliance with this Agreement.  The Final Completion 
and acceptance of the Work shall be subject to this Section and the one year warranty.  Excluding 
abandonment or default by the Contractor prior to Final Completion, the statute of limitations 
provided in Sec. 2253.078, Tex. Gov't. Code, shall not begin to run until the expiration of the one 
year warranty period. 
 
 (f)  Defective Work Discovered During Warranty Period. If any of the work is found or 
determined to be either defective, including obvious defects, or otherwise not in accordance with 
this Agreement within one (1) year after the date of the issuance of a certificate of Final Completion 
of the work or a designated portion thereof, whichever is longer, or within one (1) year after 
acceptance by the City of designated equipment, or within such longer period of time as may be 
prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special warranty required by this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall promptly correct the defective work at no cost to the City. 
 
 (g)  Warranty Work. After receipt of written notice from the City to begin corrective work, 
the Contractor shall promptly begin the corrective work. The obligation to correct any defective 
work shall survive the termination of this Agreement. The guarantee to correct the defective work 
shall not constitute the exclusive remedy of City, nor shall other remedies be limited to the terms of 
either the warranty or the guarantee. 
 
 (h)  Notice to Surety.  If within ten (10) calendar days after the City has notified the 
Contractor of a defect, failure, or abnormality in the work, the Contractor has not started to make the 
necessary corrections or adjustments, the City may is hereby authorized to make the corrections or 
adjustments, notify the surety, or to order the work to be done by a third party. The cost of the work 
shall be paid by the Contractor. 
 
 (i)  Cost of Warranty Work.  The cost of all materials, parts, labor, transportation, 
supervision, special instruments, and supplies required for the replacement or repair of parts and for 
correction of defects shall be paid by the Contractor or by the surety. 
 
 (j)  Warranty of Repair Work.  The guarantee shall be extended to cover all repairs and 
replacements furnished, and the term of the guarantee for each repair or replacement shall be one (1) 
year after the installation or completion. The one (1) year warranty shall cover all work, equipment, 
and materials that are part of the Work, whether or not a warranty is specified in the individual 
section of the Contract Documents that prescribe that particular aspect of the work. 
 
Section 27. Surety; Abandonment or Termination.  (a)  Completing Work.  If the Contractor 
has abandoned the Project or the City has terminated the Agreement for cause and the Surety, after 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 25 

notice demanding completion is sent, fails to commence the completion of the work in a timely 
manner and compliance with this Agreement, then the City at its option may provide for completion 
of the work in either of the following manners: 
 

(i.) The City may employ such force of men and use of instruments, machinery, 
equipment, tools, materials, and supplies as said the City may deem necessary to 
complete the work and charge the expense of such labor, machinery, equipment, 
tools, materials, and supplies to said the Contractor, and the expense so charged shall 
be deducted and paid by the City out of such monies as may be due or that may 
thereafter at any time become due to the Contractor and Surety. 

(ii.) The City may, after notice published as required by law, accept sealed bids and let 
this Agreement for the completion of the work under substantially the same terms 
and conditions that are provided in this Agreement. In case of any increase in cost to 
the City under the new agreement as compared to what would have been the cost 
under this Agreement, such increase shall be charged to the Contractor and the 
surety shall be and remain bound therefore. However, should the cost to complete 
such new agreement prove to be less than that which would have been the cost to 
complete the work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall be credited therewith 
after all deductions are made in accordance with this Agreement. 

(iii.) In addition to, or in lieu of, either of the foregoing options the City may take any 
other action permitted by law, or pursue any and all remedies available at law or in 
equity against the Contractor and/or the Surety. 

 
 (b)  Release.  In the event the account shows that the cost to complete the work is less than 
that which would have been the cost to City had the work been completed by the Contractor under 
the terms of this Agreement, or when the Contractor shall pay the balance shown to be due by them 
to the City, then all machinery, equipment, tools, materials, or supplies left on the site of the work 
shall be turned over to the Contractor. 
 
 (c)  Reservation of Rights Under Bonds.  If a performance and a payment bond has been 
provided for this Agreement, such bonds shall be and remain in full force and effect as provided by 
law and the City may act to enforce or require performance by the Surety.  If the Contractor 
abandons the work, is terminated for cause, or fails to comply with the warranty during the warranty 
period, and the Surety does not agree to promptly proceed to complete the work, no term, provision 
or condition of this Agreement, no action by the City to protect the work, or the City's investment in 
the work, or to complete the work, or to obtain any remedy against the Contractor, shall be or 
constitute a waiver of any right or cause of action under the bonds. 
 
Section 28.  Compliance With Law.  (a)  Materials.  The Contractor’s work and materials shall 
comply with all state and federal laws, municipal ordinances, regulations, and directions of 
inspectors appointed by proper authorities having jurisdiction. 
 
 (b)  Codes, Rules and Regulations.  The Contractor shall perform and require all 
subcontractors to perform the work in accordance with applicable laws, codes, ordinances, and 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 26 

regulations of the State of Texas and the United States and in compliance with OSHA and other 
laws as they apply to its employees. In the event any of the conditions of the specifications violate 
the code for any industry, then such code conditions shall prevail.  It is understood that the Architect 
of record is responsible for Building Code compliance of the plans and specifications.  The 
Contractor will review the plans and specifications and will point out issues that it becomes aware 
of for the Architect and Owner’s action. 
 
 (c)  Erosion Control.  The Contractor shall follow all applicable state and federal laws, 
municipal ordinances, and guidelines concerning soil erosion and sediment control throughout the 
Work and warranty term. 
 
Section 29.  Safety Precautions.  (a) Contractor Responsibility.  Safety precautions at the site are a 
part of the construction techniques and processes for which the Contractor shall be solely 
responsible. The Contractor is solely responsible for handling and use of hazardous materials or 
waste, and informing employees of any such hazardous materials or waste. The Contractor shall 
provide copies of all hazardous materials and waste data sheets to the Leander Fire Department.  
The Contractor shall, at minimum, comply with all laws, rules and regulations, and recognized and 
accepted industry practices, applicable to safety precautions, notices and warnings. 
 
 (b)  Notices and Warnings.  The Contractor has the sole obligation to protect or warn any 
individual of potential hazards created by the performance of the work set forth herein. The 
Contractor shall, at its own expense, take such precautionary measures for the protection of persons, 
property, and the work as may be necessary. 
 
 (c)  Damages.  The Contractor shall be held responsible for all damages to property, 
personal injuries and/or death due to failure of safety devices of any type or nature that may be 
required to protect or warn any individual of potential hazards created by the performance of the 
work set forth herein; and when any property damage is incurred, the damaged portion shall 
immediately be replaced or compensated for by the Contractor at its own cost and expense.  It is 
specifically provided however that nothing in this Section shall be construed or interpreted as 
waiving any legal defense available to the Contractor, or creating any additional causes of action or 
additional rights on behalf of any third party. 
 
Section 30.  Limited Liability.  Save and except to the extent of funds on deposit and available in 
the Work Account, the City shall not be liable for the amounts payable hereunder or under other 
contracts entered into to achieve the acquisition and construction of the Work.  The City's 
responsibility shall be limited to approving the Plans and Specifications, providing general oversight 
for the Work by communication with the Contractor, and acting in a timely manner to consent to 
and approve Payment Requisition Certificates as appropriate and justified for the release of funds 
from the Work Account. 
 
Section 31.  Indemnity.  (a) General.  Contractor shall indemnify the City for its liability, including 
that arising from the City’s concurrent negligence.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Contractor agrees to and shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its officers, agents, 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 27 

and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of action, suits, and 
liability of every kind, except liability excluded by Section 31(c) of this Agreement, including all 
expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney’s fees for injury to or death of any person, for 
damage to any property, or for any breach of contract, arising out of or in connection with the work 
done by the Contractor under this Contract, provided that any such claim, loss, damage, cause of 
action, suit, or liability is caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of the Contractor, any 
subcontractor, or any person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to 
perform or furnish work on the Work. This indemnity shall apply regardless of whether such 
injuries, death, damages, or breach are caused in part by the negligence or omission of the City, any 
other party indemnified hereunder, the Contractor, or a third party. 
 
 (b)  Specific Instances.  The indemnifications contained in Section 31 shall include but not 
be limited to the following specific instances: 
 
 (i)  In the event the City is damaged due to the act, omission, mistake, fault, or default of 

the Contractor, then the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless and defend 
the City for such damage. 

 (ii)  The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless and defend the City from any 
claims for payment for goods or services brought by any material suppliers, 
mechanics, laborers, or other subcontractors. 

 (iii)  The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless and defend the City from any and 
all injuries to or claims of adjacent property owners caused by the Contractor, its 
agents, employees, and representatives. 

 (iv)  The Contractor shall also be responsible for the removal of all related debris. 
 (v)  The Contractor shall also be responsible for subcontractors hired by it. 
 (vi)  The Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City from any 

liability caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply with applicable federal, state, 
or local regulations, that touch upon or concern the maintenance of a safe and 
protected working environment and the safe use and operation of machinery and 
equipment in that working environment, no matter where fault or responsibility lies. 

 
 (c)  Limitation of Indemnity to Architect. The obligations of the Contractor under this 

Section 31 shall NOT require the Contractor to indemnify or hold harmless a registered architect, 
licensed engineer or an agent, servant, or employee of a registered architect or licensed engineer 
from liability for damage that: (i) is caused by or results from: (A) defects in plans, designs, or 
specifications prepared, approved, or used by the architect or engineer; or (B) negligence of the 
architect or engineer in the rendition or conduct of professional duties called for or arising out of this 
Agreement and the plans, designs, or specifications that are a part of this Contract; or (ii) that arises 
or results from, or is caused by, actions or a failure to act by any person other than the Contractor or 
the employees, agents, officers, subcontractors, or materials suppliers of the Contractor. 
 
Section 32.  Release.  The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed 
hereunder, and hereby releases, relinquishes, and discharges the City, its officers, agents, attorneys, 
and employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 28 

including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to or death of any person (whether employees of 
either party or other third parties) and any loss of or damage to any property (whether property of 
either of the parties hereto, their employees, or of third parties) that is caused by or alleged to be 
caused by, arising out of, or in connection with the Contractor’s work to be performed hereunder. 
This release shall apply regardless of whether said claims, demands, and causes of action are 
covered in whole or in part by insurance, and in the event of injury, death, property damage, or loss 
suffered by the Contractor, any subcontractor, or any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish work on the Work, this release shall apply 
regardless of whether such injury, death, loss, or damage was caused in whole or in part by the 
negligence of the City. 
 
Section 33.  Abandonment.  (a)  Notice to Surety. In case the Contractor should abandon or fail or 
refuse to resume work after written notification or if the Contractor fails to comply with the orders 
of City’s Representative when such orders are consistent with this Agreement, and the City 
Representative declares the work to be abandoned, then the surety on the bond shall be notified in 
writing and directed to complete the work, and a copy of said notice shall be delivered to the 
Contractor. 
 
 (b)  Notice of Abandonment. After receiving notice of abandonment, the Contractor shall 
not remove from the work any machinery, equipment, tools, materials, or supplies then on the job; 
but the same may be held for use on the work by the City or the surety of the Contractor, or any 
other Contractor, in completion of the work. The Contractor shall not receive any rental or credit 
therefor (except when used in connection with extra work where credit shall be allowed as provided 
in this Agreement). If the use of such equipment and materials will ultimately reduce the cost to 
complete the work, that reduction shall be reflected in the final settlement. 
 
 (c)  Deemed Abandonment.  The Work may, in the sole discretion of the City, be deemed 
abandoned, if, after commencement of the Work, the Contractor fails to have workmen on the site 
for ten (10) consecutive days.  Any days that the City Representative determines should not be a 
work day solely because of weather conditions shall not be counted as days.  The work shall not be 
deemed to be abandoned until the first to occur of the following: written notice of abandonment is 
given by the Contractor to the City; the City gives the Contractor written notice that the Contractor 
has, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, abandoned the work; or, if applicable, the City 
receives written notice that the Contractor has filed for bankruptcy. 
 
Section 34.  Breach of Contract & Damages.  (a)  Breach.  The City shall have the right to declare 
the Contractor in breach of this Agreement for cause when the City determines that this Agreement 
is not being performed according to its understanding of the intent and meaning of this Agreement. 
Such breach shall not in any way invalidate, abrogate, or terminate the Contractor’s obligations 
under this Agreement. 
 
 (b)  Cure and Remedy.  Without prejudice to any other legal or equitable right or remedy 
that the City would otherwise possess hereunder or as a matter of law, the City upon giving the 
Contractor five (5) calendar days prior written notice shall be entitled to damages for breach of 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 29 

contract, upon but not limited to the following occurrences: 
 
 (i.) If the Contractor shall fail to remedy any default, or if such default cannot be 

promptly cured to commence curing such default and pursue such cure in a prompt 
and timely manner, after written notice thereof from City’s Representative, as City’s 
Representative shall direct; or 

 (ii.)  If the Contractor shall fail to comply with the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement for any reason, other than the failure by City’s Representative to make 
payments called upon when due; or 

 (iii.)  If the Contractor commits a substantial default under any of the terms, provisions, 
conditions, or covenants contained in this Agreement. 

 
Section 35.  Termination for Cause.  Without prejudice to any other legal or equitable right or 
remedy that the City would otherwise possess hereunder or as a matter of law, the City upon giving 
the Contractor five (5) calendar days prior written notice shall be entitled to terminate this 
Agreement in its entirety at any time for any of the following: 
 
 (a)  Insolvency.  If the Contractor becomes insolvent, commits any act of bankruptcy, makes 
a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or becomes the subject of any proceeding 
commenced under any statute or law for the relief of debtors; or 
 
 (b)  Receivership.  If a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of any of the property or income of the 
Contractor shall be appointed; or 
 
 (c)  Failure to Prosecute Work.  If the Contractor shall fail to prosecute the work or any part 
thereof with diligence necessary to insure its progress and completion as prescribed by the time 
schedules; or 
 
 (d)  Failure to Cure.  If the Contractor shall fail to remedy any default within ten (10) 
calendar days after written notice thereof from City’s Representative, or if such default cannot be 
remedied within that time the Contractor fails to commence cure and to pursue and obtain cure in a 
prompt and timely fashion, as City’s Representative shall direct; or 
 
 (e)  Continuing Failure to Comply.  If the Contractor shall after notice fail to comply with 
the requirements of this Agreement on a continuing or repeated basis for any reason, other than the 
failure by City’s Representative to make payments called upon when due; or 
 
 (f)  Substantial Default.  If the Contractor commits a substantial default under any of the 
terms, provisions, conditions, or covenants contained in this Agreement. 
 
Section 36.  Termination for Convenience.  (a)  Notice of Termination.  The performance of the 
Preconstruction Services Phase or the Construction Phase may be terminated at any time or, from 
time to time, in whole or in part, by the City for its convenience. Any such termination shall be 
effected by delivery to the Contractor of a written notice (notice of termination) specifying the 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 30 

extent to which performance of the Preconstruction Services and/or the Construction Phase are 
terminated, and the date upon which termination becomes effective.  
 
 (b)  Payment of Incurred Costs.  In the event of termination for convenience, the Contractor 
shall only be paid its reimbursable costs incurred prior to the effective date of the termination notice 
and shall not be entitled to receive any further payments not previously earned by the Contractor 
hereunder except as provided in Section 36 (c) below, and shall be further subject to any claim the 
City may have against the Contractor under other provisions of this Agreement or as a matter of 
law, including the refund of any overpayment of reimbursable costs and/or fee paid. 
 
 (c)  Overhead and Profit.  It is recognized that a portion of the Contractor's overhead, set-up, 
mobilization and profits will be recovered in each progress payment.  In the event of termination for 
convenience and a resolution of the amount, if any, due the Contractor under 36 (b) above to cover 
the actual expenses and remaining actual liability (excluding costs referred to in Section 36 (d) 
below) incurred by the Contractor under this Agreement, the Contractor shall be paid an amount to 
cover overhead, lost profits, set-up and move in costs, equal to three percent (3%) of the total agreed 
value of the work remaining to be completed upon issuance of the notice of termination; provided 
that the Work is at least fifty percent (50%) complete.  The Contractor shall execute and deliver to 
the City a full and complete release upon payment of such amount. 
 
 (d)  Subcontractors and Materials Suppliers.  The Contractor shall contract with its 
subcontractors and materials suppliers in a manner to give effect to this Section 36 and the right of 
the City to terminate for convenience without any liability to such subcontractors or materials 
suppliers. 
 
Section 37.  Right to Complete.  If this Agreement is terminated for cause or due to breach of 
contract, the City shall have the right but shall not be obligated to complete the Work itself or by 
others; and to this end, the City shall be entitled to take possession of and use such equipment and 
materials as may be on the job site, and to exercise all rights, options, and privileges of the 
Contractor under its subcontracts, purchase orders, or otherwise; and the Contractor shall promptly 
assign such rights, options, and privileges to City. If the City elects to complete the work itself or by 
others, pursuant to the foregoing, then the Contractor will reimburse City’s Representative for all 
costs incurred by the City (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative 
expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in 
correcting work by the Contractor that fails to meet any requirement of this Agreement or the other 
Contract Documents. 
 

Section 38.  Close Out After For Cause Termination. In the event of termination for cause, the 
Contractor shall only be paid its reimbursable costs incurred prior to the effective date of the 
termination notice, less costs and damages to the City, and shall not be entitled to receive any further 
payments hereunder, and shall be further subject to any claim the City may have against the 
Contractor under other provisions of this Agreement or as a matter of law, including the refund of 
any overpayment of reimbursable costs and/or fees paid.  Costs incurred after the effective date of 
the notice of termination shall not be treated as reimbursable costs unless they relate to carrying out 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 31 

the unterminated portion or taking closeout measures. 
 
Section 39.  Other Terms.  (a)  Assignment.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations 
contained herein may not be assigned by the Contractor without the prior written approval of the 
City. 
 
 (b)  Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable by a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. The 
parties shall use their best efforts to replace the respective provision or provisions of this Agreement 
with legal terms and conditions approximating the original intent of the parties. 
 

(c)  Appropriations.  Notwithstanding any provision contained herein, the financial 
obligations of the City contained herein shall be paid from current funds budgeted and 
appropriated for such purpose.  In no event shall this instrument be construed to be a debt of the 
City. 

 
 (d)  Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be 
in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when sent by first-class mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed to: 
 
  Contractor 
  American Consctructors, Inc. 
  4330 Gaines Ranch Loop, Suite 230 
  Austin, TX 78735 
  512-328-2026 
  ATTN:  Marty Burger, Vice President 
  
  City of Leander, Texas 
  Attention:  City Manager 
  P.O. Box 319 
  Leander, TX 78646-0319 
 

(e)  No Joint Venture, Agency, Joint Enterprise.  This Agreement shall not be construed to 
establish a partnership, joint venture, agency, or joint enterprise, express or implied, nor any 
employer-employee or borrowed servant relationship by and among the Parties hereto.  Nor shall 
this Agreement be construed to create or grant rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person 
or entity not a party to this contract.  Each party shall remain solely responsible for the proper 
direction of its employees and an employee of one shall not be deemed an employee or borrowed 
servant of the other for any reason.   

  
(f)  No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing herein shall ever be construed to confer upon 

any third person any rights, benefits or remedies, contractual or otherwise, as a third party 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 32 

beneficiary by reason of this Agreement. 
 
(g)  Governmental Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify 

or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to either the City or its officers and 
employees.  Neither the City, nor its officers and employees waive, modify or alter to any extent 
whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

  
 (h)  Equal Employment Opportunity.  The Contractor will not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The 
Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated during employment, without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, promotion, demotion, or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

(i)  Entire Agreement. It is understood that this Agreement contains the entire agreement 
between the parties and supersedes any and all prior agreements, arrangements, or understandings 
between the parties relating to the subject matter. No oral understandings, statements, promises, or 
inducements contrary to the terms of this Agreement exist. This Agreement cannot be changed or 
terminated orally. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent or employee of the 
City, either before or after the execution of this Agreement, shall affect or modify any of the terms 
or obligations hereunder. 

 
(j)  Amendment.  No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless 

and until it is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties. 
 

(k)  Arbitration. In the event of a dispute and upon the mutual written consent of both 
parties, the parties may agree to arbitration without waiving any of their other rights hereunder. 

 
(l)  Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of Texas, and shall be deemed payable and performable in Williamson County, Texas.  Venue shall 
lie in a court of competent jurisdiction in Williamson County, Texas. 

 
(m)  Waiver. Failure of any party, at any time, to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall 

in no way constitute a waiver of that provision nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement, 
any part hereof, or the right of the City thereafter to enforce each and every provision hereof. No 
term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived or breach excused unless the waiver shall be in 
writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived. Furthermore, any consent to or waiver of a 
breach will not constitute consent to or waiver of or excuse of any other different or subsequent 
breach. 
 

(n)  Severability.  If any term or provision of any this Agreement shall be determined to 
be illegal or unenforceable all other terms and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 33 

remain effective and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.  This 
Agreement may be separately executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties 
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to constitute 
one and the same Agreement. 
 
Executed on this the       day of _________ 20__, and in full force and effect as of the date above 
first written. 
 
City of Leander, Texas    American Constructors, Inc.  
       a Texas corporation    
 
By:       By:   
Name: Christopher Fielder, Mayor    Name:  Marty A. Burger, VP 
    
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
 
By:       By:   
Name: ___________, City Secretary   Name:   
[Seal]       Title:     
 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 34 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ADDENDUM TO  

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK AGREEMENT 
FOR FIRE STATION #4 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

This Addendum to the Construction Manager at Risk Agreement for Fire Station #4 (the 
"Addendum") is made and entered into as of the ___ day of ___________, 20____ (the “Effective 
Date”) by and between the CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipal 
corporation (the "City"), and _______________, a Texas corporation (the "Contractor").  The City 
and the Contractor are sometimes referred to herein as the "Parties."   
 

Recitals 
Whereas, on or about ____________, 20___, the City and Contractor executed the Construction 
Manager at Risk Agreement for Fire Station #4 (the “Agreement”); 
 
Whereas, pursuant to the Agreement, Contractor has submitted to the City a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price proposal (the “GMP Proposal”); 
 
Whereas, the City wishes to accept the GMP Proposal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein along with other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and 
confessed, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Guaranteed Maximum Price.  Contractor hereby agrees to commence and complete 
the following Work:  Fire Station #4, as more particularly defined by and in compliance with 
the Agreement, the Plans and Specifications, and the Contract Documents.   The City agrees to 
pay Contractor for the satisfactory performance of the Work an amount not to exceed 
_____________________________________________ (amount expressed in numerals) 
(____________________________________________________________________________), 
(amount expressed in words), the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the total amount of Work 
Costs, unless the Government Body first appropriates additional funds required for the change 
order, authorizes the change order, and the change order is executed in the form approved by the 
Governing Body.   
 
Section 2.  Time for Completion.  Contractor hereby agrees to commence Work within ten (10) 
calendar days following the date contained in the Notice to Proceed issued by the City, and 
Contractor hereby agrees to substantially complete same within 
_____________________________ calendar days after the date contained in the Notice to 
Proceed.  Final Completion shall be within forty-five (45) days of Substantial Completion. 
 
Section 3. Payment and Performance Bonds.  (a)  The Contractor shall provide or cause to be 
provided a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, pursuant to CHAPTER 2253, TEX. GOV'T CODE, 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 35 

each in the amount of the Guaranteed Maximum Price (the "P&P Bonds") within ten calendar days 
following the City’s acceptance of the GMP Proposal.  The P&P Bonds shall name the City as 
beneficiary and be issued by a surety or sureties licensed to do business in the State of Texas and 
acceptable to the City, and shall otherwise comply with applicable terms of the Agreement.  The 
P&P Bonds shall be submitted to the City prior to commencement of the Work. 
 
 (b)  Each bond shall be executed by a corporate surety or sureties authorized to do business 
in the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, and on the City’s form.  If any bond is for more 
than 10 percent of the surety's capital and surplus, the Owner may require certification that the 
company has reinsured the excess portion with one or more reinsurers authorized, accredited, or 
trusteed to do business in the State.  A reinsurer may not reinsure for more than 10 percent of its 
capital and surplus.  If a surety upon a bond loses its authority to do business in the State, the 
Contractor shall within thirty (30) days after such loss furnish a replacement bond at no added cost 
to the Owner. 
 
 (c)  Each bond shall be accompanied by a valid Power-of-Attorney (issued by the surety 
company and attached, signed and sealed with the corporate embossed seal, to the bond) 
authorizing the attorney in fact who signs the bond to commit the company to the terms of the 
bond, and stating any limit in the amount for which the attorney can issue a single bond. 
 
 (d)  Each bond with a penal sum in excess of $100,000 shall be executed by a corporate 
surety or sureties listed on the then-current version of U.S. Treasury Department circular 570 and 
which hold a certificate of authority from the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury as a surety, or obtain 
reinsurance from a reinsurer authorized as a reinsurer in Texas and which is listed on the then-
current U.S. Treasury Department circular 570 and holds a certificate of authority from the U.S. 
Secretary of the Treasury as a surety or reinsurer.   
 
Section 4.  Contract Documents.  [This Section is reserved to identify additional documents 
that will be included in the definition of Contract Documents and their priority.] 
 
Section 5.  General Provisions.  (a)  Definition.  The definitions set forth in the Agreement shall 
apply herein. 
 

(b)  Amendment of Agreement and Addendum.  The Agreement and Addendum may be 
amended at any time by mutual written consent of the City and the Contractor.  This Addendum 
shall expire and terminate as provided in the Agreement.  The terms of this Addendum are in 
addition to and not in lieu of any term of the Agreement. 
  
 (c)  Effective Date.  This Addendum shall be effective upon the complete execution hereof 
by all Parties. 
 
 (d)  Texas Law Governs.  This Addendum and the Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and shall be performable in Williamson 
County, Texas.  Venue shall lie exclusively in Williamson County, Texas. 
 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 36 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both parties have caused this Addendum to be signed in their 
respective corporate names by duly authorized representatives, and the parties hereby bind 
themselves, their successors and assigns for the faithful and full performance of the terms and 
provisions hereof. 
  
EXECUTED on the latest date of the signatories indicated below. 
 
City of Leander, Texas    ______________, Contractor 
 
By:   ________________________________ By:   _______________________________ 
         ______________, Mayor   Name:______________________________ 
       Title: _______________________________ 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 ________________, City Secretary 
  

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 37 

 
EXHIBIT "B" 

PREVAILING WAGE RATES 
 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4 7/8/15        
 City of Leander 
 



 EXHIBIT “C” 
 PROGRESS PAYMENT REQUISITION CERTIFICATE 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE – FIRE STATION #4 
 
TO:  City of Leander, Texas 
  % ______________, City Representative ("Owner") 
 
FROM: ___________ ("Contractor") 
 
SUBJECT: Construction Manager at Risk Agreement for Fire Station #4 dated as of the ___ day of 
___________ 20____, between __________, a Texas corporation (the "Contractor") and the City of 
Leander, Texas, a Texas home rule city (the "Agreement"), for the construction management for 
Fire Station #4 as described in the Agreement (the "Work").  
 
Capitalized words not defined herein shall have the meaning given in the Agreement. 
 
This represents Requisition Certificate No. ___ in the total amount of $________________ for 
payment of those Costs of the Work detailed in the attached documentation and payment 
instructions.  The documentation attached shows as completely as practicable the total value of the 
actual work performed by the Contractor and accepted by the City up to and including the last day 
of the preceding month.  The documentation also includes the value of all equipment and materials 
not previously submitted for payment which have been delivered to the site or stored off-site 
pursuant to the Agreement, but have not yet been incorporated into the work.  The Contractor's 
architect/engineer, by its signature below, represents that the documentation accurately shows the 
percentage of the Work completed.  
 
(Attach AIA Document G703 Continuation Sheet for Schedule of Values) 
  
The undersigned Contractor certifies that: 
  
1.  All of the costs and expenditures for which moneys are requested hereby represent proper Costs 
of the Work, have not been included in a previous Progress Payment Requisition Certificate and 
such Costs of the Work are properly owing and payable based on the percentage of the Work 
completed. 
 
2.  The moneys requested hereby are not greater than those necessary to meet obligations due and 
payable for fees, funds or expenses actually expended for Costs of the Work, and are properly 
payable as a progress payment based on the percentage of the Work completed.  The moneys 
requested do not include moneys that are not due and payable based on the progress and percentage 
of completion of the Work. 
 
3.  After payment of moneys hereby requested, there will remain available a sufficient amount of 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price and Work Costs, as defined in the Agreement, to complete the 
construction of the Work. 
 
4.  All work for which Payment Requisition Certificates have been previously issued and payment  



 2 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 EXHIBIT "C"  
 PROGRESS PAYMENT REQUISITION CERTIFICATE 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
 
 
received is free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances of any kind, and 
all sums received pursuant to this application will be applied so as to assure that no liens, security 
interest or encumbrances attach to the work to which this application applies. 
 
5.  All subcontractors, labor, equipment and materials suppliers for the Work have been paid. 
 
The undersigned Contractor and its representatives represent and agree that the above statements 
are, to the best of their knowledge are true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this _______ day of _______________, 20__. 
  
 [Contractor]        
     
 By:   ________________________   
 Name:        
 Title:       
 
 
 Reviewed and recommended for payment pursuant to the terms of the Agreement: 
 
  
 By: ________________________ 
 Name:      
 Title:  Architect 
  
     
 Approved for payment this the ______ day of _______________ 20__. 
 
 City of Leander 
 
 By:  _________________________ 
 Name: ______________________ 
 Title:  City Representative  
 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4  7/8/15    
City of Leander 
 



 3 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

Final Affidavit of Bills Paid 
 

TO:  City of Leander, Texas 
  % _______________, City Representative ("Owner") 
 
FROM: ___________ ("Contractor") 
 
SUBJECT: _____________________________________________ (insert name of project/work) 
 
Capitalized words not defined herein shall have the meaning given in the Agreement. 

 
The undersigned Contractor certifies that: 
 
1. The Project/Work is Finally Complete in accordance with the Agreement and I request that the 
City accept the Project/Work as Finally Complete. 
 
2.  All bills for labor, materials, and incidentals submitted by subcontractors, materialmen or third 
parties and included in any prior application for payment have been paid in full. 
 
3.  The Project/Work is free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances of any 
kind. 
 
4.  Any claims from manufacturers, materialmen, and subcontractors have been released, and there 
are no claims pending related to the Project/Work of which the Contractor has been notified.   
 
EXECUTED this _______ day of _______________, 200__. 
  
 [Contractor]        
     
 By:   ________________________   
 Name:        
 Title:       
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 
COUNTY OF ______________  § 
 
  BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
on this day personally appeared ___________________, Contractor herein, known to me to be the 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4  7/8/15    
City of Leander 
 



 4 

person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that [s]he 
executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the                    day of                                  
200__. 
 
(SEAL)   
 __________________________________________ 
          Notary Public-State of Texas 
 

 
  

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4  7/8/15    
City of Leander 
 



 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT "E" 
 CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 
 
  

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4  7/8/15    
City of Leander 
 



 6 

EXHIBIT F 
Description of the Land 

 

 

 
 
Construction Manager at Risk Agreement – Fire Station #4  7/8/15    
City of Leander 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  A Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas Granting Consent to the 
Annexation and Exclusion of Land by Leander Municipal Utility Districts No. 1, 2, and 3. 
  
Background:  The City Council consented to the creation of Leander MUDs 1, 2 and 3 on 
December 30, 2008.  Section 2.01(b) of the consent agreement allows the developer to determine 
the boundaries of the 3 MUDs within the overall property.  The developer has identified a need 
to modify the internal boundaries of the MUDs.  This resolution gives the City's consent to those 
modifications. 
    
Origination:  Applicant 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution 
2. Map exhibit 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 7/7/2015 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS GRANTING CONSENT 

TO THE ANNEXATION AND EXCLUSION OF LAND BY LEANDER 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS NO. 1, 2 AND 3 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS THAT: 

PART 1. The City Council makes the following findings in relation to the 
adoption of this Resolution: 

(1) The City has previously consented to the creation of Leander Municipal 
Utility Districts No. 1, 2 and 3 (collectively, the “Districts”) by Resolution No. 09-004-
00 dated February 5, 2009 (the “Consent Resolution”); the City and Howard Barkley 
Wedemeyer (the “Developer”) have entered into a written “Agreement Regarding 
Consent to Creation of Municipal Utility Districts and Development of the Wedemeyer 
Ranch” dated effective as of December 30, 2008 (the “Development Agreement”); and 
the Districts have been created by order of the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality and have joined in and executed the Development Agreement.  

(2) The Development Agreement provides that the Developer may determine 
the boundaries of each of the Districts in his sole discretion, provided that the Districts 
only cover portions of the property covered by the Development Agreement that is 
intended for single-or two family development and related infrastructure to serve that 
development.   

(3) The Developer and the Districts desire to adjust the boundaries between 
the Districts substantially as shown on the attached Exhibit A in order to avoid having 
portions of lots located within multiple districts and have requested that the City 
confirm its consent to the annexations and exclusions of land necessary to effect such 
boundary adjustments and the City wishes to do so.   

PART 2. The City hereby consents to the boundary adjustments between the 
Districts and agrees that the Districts may annex and exclude land currently located 
within their respective boundaries in order to effect the adjustment of boundaries 
described above.  No further action on the part of the City will be required to evidence 
its consent to the  Districts’ inclusion, annexation or exclusion of portions of the land 
currently located within the boundaries of the Districts, but the City agrees to provide 
additional confirmation of its consent if requested to do so by the Developer or any such 
District. 

{W0659429.1}  
 



PASSED AND APPROVED on the ____ day of _________________, 2015. 

City of Leander, Texas  
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 

{W0659429.1} 2 
 
161272-2 09/23/2003 





AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 16, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Consider action on renaming a portion of Quarry Ridge to Quarry 

Loop, generally located to the southwest of the intersection of 
Crystal Falls Pkwy and First View, Leander, Williamson and 
Travis Counties, TX.  

 
Background: The preliminary plat for the Fairways at Crystal Falls, Section 4 

identifies the loop roadway with two separate street names.  The northern 
portion of the roadway is labeled as Quarry Loop and the southern 
portion is labeled as Quarry Ridge.   This roadway is classified as a loop 
and the name should not change where the roadway curves.  This 
proposal is to change the name to be consistent with the City’s naming 
convention for streets.  

 
Origination: City of Leander Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the street name change. 
 
Attachments: 1. Ordinance 
 2. Exhibit A 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/07/2015 
 



ORDINANCE _______________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, RENAMING A 
PORTION OF QUARRY RIDGE TO QUARRY LOOP; AND PROVIDING 
A FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, two portions, or “stub-outs”, of Quarry Ridge Road, a private street, were 

platted as part of The Fairways at Crystal Falls II, Phase 1; 
 
WHEREAS, the remainder of the private street will be platted as part of The Fairways at 

Crystal Falls, Section 4, Phase 2A (the “Plat”) and the developer desires to name the street 
Quarry Loop; 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas home rule municipality, (herein the 

“City”) desires to rename portions of Quarry Ridge to Quarry Loop; and 
 
WHEREAS, consistent street name designations provide for easier identification for City 

staff, citizens, and emergency services providers;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.   Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 
Section 2. Name Change.  The portions of Quarry Ridge extending from First View 

to Quarry Loop shown on the Plat are hereby renamed to Quarry Loop as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
The City Manager is hereby directed to take such actions as are reasonably necessary to ensure 
signs are posted reflecting the new name, to ensure emergency response personnel are notified, 
to modify the official maps of the City to reflect the name change and to ensure that all 
departments of the City requiring changes in addressing are duly notified and provided the 
necessary information to effectuate the change. 
 
 Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after 
its passage on the date shown below. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of July, 2015. 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
  
_______________________                                                                      
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor  
 

 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 





AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration and possible action on the Release and 
Termination of a Public Utility Easement within the Palmera Ridge development 
 
Background:  Palmera Ridge Tract located north of Hero Way and west of Ronald 
Reagan Boulevard 
    
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the Release and Termination of a Public 
Utility Easement within the Palmera Ridge development 
 
Attachments:   (1) Release and Termination of a Public Utility Easement and (2) the 
original easement  
 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E. 
 



After Recording, Please Return To: 
 
John Bartram 
Armbrust & Brown, PLLC 
100 Congress Avenue, Suite 1300 
Austin, Texas  78701 
              

RELEASE AND TERMINATION OF EASEMENT 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     §  KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 

WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, a home rule municipality located in Williamson 
County, Texas (the “City”), is the owner and holder of the Public Utility Easement dated May 21, 
1990 granted to the City by Kittie L. Huggins and recorded in Volume 1909, Page 272 of the 
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas (the “Easement”); 

WHEREAS, the City desires to RELEASE AND TERMINATE the Easement in its 
entirety; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, and for the benefit of all present and future owners of the 
property encumbered by the Easement or any portion thereof, the City has RELEASED AND 
TERMINATED and, by these presents, does RELEASE AND TERMINATE the Easement in 
its entirety.   

EXECUTED TO BE EFFECTIVE the ____ day of ___________________, 2015. 

 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

By:        
Name:       
Title:       

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of 
________________, 2015, by ___________________, _________________ of the 
City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of same. 

(seal)              
Notary Public Signature 
 

 

 
{W0657925.1}  









AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration and possible action on the Partial Release and 
Termination of a Drainage Easement within the JSL Commercial Investments property 
 
Background:  JSL Commercial Investments property located at the southeast corner of 
San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad Road 
    
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the Partial Release and Termination of a  
Drainage Easement within the JSL Commercial Investments property 
 
Attachments:   (1) Partial Release and Termination of a Drainage Easement (2) Exhibit 
A showing the portion to be released, and (3) the original easement  
 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E. 
 



PARTIAL RELEASE AND TERMINATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 
 

WHEREAS, by that certain Drainage Easement recorded under Document No. 2006037918 in the 
Official Public Records of the Williamson County, Texas, BENBROOK PROPERTIES, LTD., a Texas 
limited partnership, conveyed a drainage easement (the “Easement”) over and across a 1.522 acre tract of 
land, more particularly described on EXHIBIT “A” thereto, for the purpose of constructing, operating, 
maintaining, repairing, replacing and upgrading a drainage channel and related facilities and to make 
connections therewith for the Benbrook Ranch Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Leander (the “City”) has determined that a 0.170-acre portion of the 
Easement, being more particularly described on the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Release Tract”), is no longer 
necessary for use by the City and that no City infrastructure is located in the Release Tract;  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to terminate and grant a release of the City’s interest in the Easement 
as to the Release Tract; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, and for the benefit of all present and future owners of the property encumbered by the 
Easement, or any portion thereof, the City has RELEASED AND TERMINATED and, by these presents, 
does RELEASE AND TERMINATE the Easement as to the Release Tract.  By execution hereof, the City 
confirms and acknowledges the Easement will be of no further force or effect as to the Release Tract. 
 

EXECUTED TO BE EFFECTIVE the ____ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 

 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

By:        
Name:       
Title:       

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ________________, 
2015, by ___________________, _________________ of the City of Leander, Texas, on 
behalf of same. 

(seal)              
                       Notary Public Signature 

{W0651972.2}  



 

{W0651972.2}  













AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land 
being a 126.098 acre, more or less, tract of land located north of the South San Gabriel River 
and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas, known as the Bradley tract. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its May 7, 2015 meeting.  The properties includes 
approximately 126.098 acres north of the South San Gabriel River and east of Ronald Reagan 
Blvd.  The resolution set the two public hearings for July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  The first 
reading of the ordinance is scheduled for August 6, 2015 and the second and final reading is 
scheduled for August 20, 2015. 
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the second public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
4. Annexation petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 7/7/2015 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  15-007-00     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 126.098 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being part 

of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove Survey, 
Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly 
shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

  

 

 



Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of May, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

+/- 126.098 ACRES 

  

 

 



 

 

  

 

 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 

  

 

 



 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 

  

 

 



customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 
dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 

  

 

 



South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of certain tracts of property located within 
Williamson County, Texas, such property being more particularly described hereinafter by true and 
correct legal description (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Leander, Texas, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “City”), in order to obtain the benefits of 
City services to the subject property by the City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code and the request of the 
property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request:  
 
 SECTION ONE:  Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Leander, Texas, of all portions of 
the subject property, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way, not previously 
annexed into the City and further described as follows: 
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being 

part of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove 
Survey, Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more 
particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 SECTION TWO:  Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 
 
 SECTION THREE:  Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached “draft” Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property) and that such “draft” Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 



and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan and publish notice and hold the requisite public 
hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 
  
 SECTION FOUR:  Acknowledges that the undersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
 SECTION FIVE:  Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Leander and in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
shall be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 
 
 FILED, this ___ day of _________________ 2015, with the City Secretary of the City of 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
       
      Petitioner: Development Solutions Bradley, LLC 

   
      By: ____________________________ 
      Name: __________________________ 
      Title: ___________________________   
     
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared _________________________________, _______________________ of 
Development Solutions Bradley, LLC and Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity and that they executed the same for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
    



 

Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

+/- 126.098 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 



service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event 

the City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service 
to an area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 
dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in 
the South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement, at the time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject 
property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System 
Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, 
on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and 
subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building 
site within the subject property that will be provided with wastewater service by the City 



shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The 
Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the 
time the building permit for each building or structure is applied for, or if no building permit 
is required, then upon the date application is made to the City for connection to the City’s 
wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in 
addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to 
similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and 
ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located 
within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual development 
agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    



 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Bradley Tract +/- 126.098 Acres and Ironwood Tract +/- 13.8481 Acres 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 7, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 1, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 17, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 1, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 2, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 16, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 6, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 20, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

RI
DG

E V
IE

W 
DR

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274

SANTA MARIA ST

LA GROTTA LN

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RONALD W
 REAGAN BLVD

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Subject Parcel
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Subject Parcel

Bradley - 126.098 Ac Voluntary Annexation

Note:
Some variations may exist between survey
information and parcel database.



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 
Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on the proposed annexation of a certain area of land 
being a 13.8481 acre, more or less, generally located at the southeast corner of SH 29 and 
Ronald Reagan Blvd. in Williamson County, Texas, known as the Ironwood tract. 
  
Background:  The City Council approved the resolution accepting the petition for voluntary 
annexation for the subject tracts at its May 7, 2015 meeting.  The properties include two tracts of 
land totaling approximately 13.8481 acres at the southeast corner of SH 29 and Ronald Reagan.  
The resolution set the two public hearings for July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  The first reading 
of the ordinance is scheduled for August 6, 2015 and the second and final reading is scheduled 
for August 20, 2015. 
 
This is a voluntary annexation. 
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends conducting the second public hearing. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation schedule 
2. Location maps 
3. Annexation resolution and service plan 
4. Annexation petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 7/7//2015 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  15-006-00    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 13.8481 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in the 

Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being 
more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of the 

Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being 
more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 

  

 

 



Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of May, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

10.2941 ACRES & 3.555 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

  

 

 



 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 

  

 

 



 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 

  

 

 



and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 

  

 

 



dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 
South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of certain tracts of property located within 
Williamson County, Texas, such property being more particularly described hereinafter by true and 
correct legal description (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Leander, Texas, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “City”), in order to obtain the benefits of 
City services to the subject property by the City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code and the request of the 
property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request:  
 
 SECTION ONE:  Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Leander, Texas, of all portions of 
the subject property, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way, not previously 
annexed into the City and further described as follows: 
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 SECTION TWO:  Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 
 



 SECTION THREE:  Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached “draft” Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property) and that such “draft” Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 
and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan and publish notice and hold the requisite public 
hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 
  
 SECTION FOUR:  Acknowledges that the undersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
 SECTION FIVE:  Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Leander and in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
shall be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 
 
 FILED, this ___ day of _________________ 2015, with the City Secretary of the City of 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
     Petitioner – 10.2941 Acres 
 
     SEC 29/RR, LP, a Texas Limited Partnership   
     
     By: SEC 29/RR GP, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability  
     Company, its General Partner  
 
     By: ____________________      
     Name: Scot W. Krieger  
     Title: Managing Member 
      
     Petitioner – 3.555 Acres 
  
     SWTWD, Ltd., a Texas Limited Partnership 
 
     By: 8833, GP, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, 
     its General Partner 
      
     By: ____________________ 
     Name: Rodney D. Susholtz 
     Title: Sole Member 
  
     Devon Lea Susholtz 2001 Family Trust   
  
     By: ____________________     
     Name: Devon Susholtz     
     Title: Trustee   



     Ironwood Real Estate, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability  
     Company 
      
     By: _____________________ 
     Name: Scot W. Krieger  
     Title: Managing Member 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Scot W. Krieger, managing member of SEC 29/RR GP, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, general partner of SEC 29/RR, LP, a Texas limited partnership and 
Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
    
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Rodney D. Susholtz, sole member of 8833, GP, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, general partner of SWTWD, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership and Owner of the 
subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to 
the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity and that they 
executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 



 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Devon Susholtz, Trustee of the Devon Lea Susholtz 2001 Family Trust and 
Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Scot W. Krieger, managing member of Ironwood Real Estate, LLC, a 
Texas limited liability company and Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to 
me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that 
they had authority to bind the entity and that they executed the same for the purposes therein 
expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTIONS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

 10.2941 ACRES & 3.555 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 



service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event 

the City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater 
service to an area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement”). The landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective 
grantees, successors, assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to 
pay three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System 
Reservation Fee”), as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for 
the purpose of reserving capacity in the South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined 
in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the time that the landowner submits a 
preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and 
agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary 
plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ 
respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the subject 
property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 



will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set 
forth in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable 
with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each 
building or structure is applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date 
application is made to the City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The 
System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, 
rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to similarly situated 
customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and ordinances to 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located within the 
area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual development agreements that 
may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 



(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Bradley Tract +/- 126.098 Acres and Ironwood Tract +/- 13.8481 Acres 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 7, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 1, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 17, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 1, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 2, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 16, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 6, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 20, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



W SH 29

CR 26
8

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

PENNA LN

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN

CR 267

FLORENZ LN

GROSSETO LN

BONNET BLVD

MAGONA TRL

MA
RT

IN
O 

TR
L

RUFFINO LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Subject Parcels
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Subject Parcels

Note:
Some variations may exist between survey
information and parcel database.

Ironwood - 13.8481 Ac Voluntary Annexation



 AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
July 16, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning & Subdivision Cases 14-Z-014, 14-CP-007, & 14-PP-008:  

Hold a public hearing and consider action on the rezoning and 
approval of the Woodview Village Concept Plan and Preliminary 
Plat of 20.679 acres more or less, generally located to the 
southwest of the intersection of East Woodview Drive and Raider 
Way, WCAD ID #R031251. Currently, the property is zoned 
Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family Suburban) and Interim SFR-1-B 
(Single Family Rural).  The applicant is proposing to zone the 
property to PUD (Planned Unit Development), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: Pursuant to Article III, Section 16 (e) of the Composite Zoning 

Ordinance, an applicant may request that the PUD Conceptual Site 
Layout and Land Use Plan also be considered as the Concept Plan 
and Preliminary Plat.  This submittal includes the PUD zoning 
request, Concept Plan, and Preliminary Plat for review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

 
Origination: Applicant: Darren Webber on behalf of DeWette Partners, LTD.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 

approval at the July 09, 2015 meeting with the following 
conditions: 
1. Strike the last sentence of Item 19 in Exhibit A that states “All 

home construction will meet Type A architectural requirements 
and garage ordinance standards in effect as of the date of 
adoption hereof.” 

2. Restrictive covenants will be submitted to City Staff for review 
prior to recordation. 



   

3. A required mix of elevations and floor plans will be required 
similar to the requirements of Article III, Section 5 of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Location Exhibit 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Aerial Map 
 6.  Proposed PUD Zoning, Concept Plan, & Preliminary Plat 
 7.  Letter of Intent 
 8.  Ordinance 
 9.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission July 09, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 07/10/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-014 

CONCEPT PLAN 14-CP-007 
PRELIMINARY PLAT 14-PP-008 

 
WOODVIEW VILLAGE SUBDIVISION 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: DeWette Partners, LTD 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the southwest of the intersection of 

East Woodview Drive and Raider Way.  The property is approximately 
20.679 acres in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFC-2-A Proposed Residential (Stewart Crossing Subdivision)  

EAST SFS-2-B 
SFR-1-B Rouse High School & Wylie Middle School 

SOUTH MF-2-B 
SFR-1-B 

Proposed Multi-Family (Parkway Crossing) 
Established Residential 

WEST SFS-2-B 
SFR-1-B Established Residential  

        

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a condominium regime detached residential development.  The 
intent of this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility 
with adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 The Town Center land use node is intended to be located at the intersections of major 

arterials within the community.  These nodes are approximately one mile in diameter and 
incorporate approximately 500 acres.  These areas are intended for large scale 
commercial, retail and office uses that require locations with direct access to major 
arterials and that serve both the community and a larger trade area outside the city limits.  
These areas are also intended for high density multi-family and single-family housing.  
Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal streets and should 
provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 

 The Community Center land use node is intended to be located at the intersections of 
arterial streets or arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half 
mile in diameter and incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for 
commercial, retail and office uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  
These areas are also intended for medium density multi-family and high density single-
family housing. Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal 
streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential 
neighborhoods. 
 

  

 



Attachment # 1                 

 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant has submitted a request for a PUD Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan that 
can also be considered as the Concept Plan and Preliminary Plat as permitted by the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance.  This submittal includes the PUD zoning request, Concept Plan, and 
Preliminary Plat for review by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council. 
 
This project includes:  
 120 Detached Residential Units 
 Alley loaded homes facing Raider Way and/or Woodview Drive 
 3.17 acres of Parkland including an Amenity Center 

 
A PUD district can be an appropriate district in this situation because it offers the applicant the 
opportunity to design a zoning district that will provide for a condominium style residential 
development with limits to the permitted density.  The Composite Zoning Ordinance does not 
currently include a district that would permit this type of development.   
 
The applicant is proposing the MF-2-A base zoning district to accommodate this style of 
development.  They are proposing the Type A Architectural Component which would require all 
structures to be 85% masonry and include at least 5 architectural features.  They have limited the 
density to 120 detached single-family units for the project and are providing a trail system that 
will continue along the perimeter of the property.  They are proposing to comply with the current 
single-family garage setback requirements and landscape requirements associated with the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance.  The homes that are adjacent to Raider Way and Woodview Drive 
shall be alley loaded. 
 
This property is located on the edge of a Town Center Node as identified by the Future Land Use 
Map.  This node is intended to be located at the intersections of major arterials within the 
community.  These nodes are approximately one mile in diameter and incorporate approximately 
500 acres.  These areas are intended for large scale commercial, retail and office uses that require 
locations with direct access to major arterials and that serve both the community and a larger 
trade area outside the city limits.  These areas are also intended for high density multi-family and 
single-family housing.  Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal 
streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential 
neighborhoods.   
 
This property is also located on the edge of a Community Center Node as identified by the 
Future Land Use Map.  This node is intended to be located at the intersections of arterial streets 
or arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half mile in diameter and 
incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for commercial, retail and office 
uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  These areas are also intended for 
medium density multi-family and high density single-family housing. Development within these 
nodes should be integrated through internal streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle 
connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
 
  

 



Attachment # 1                 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Within the Community Center and Town Center nodes, the requested zoning is consistent with 
the land use designations for the property.  The area outside the nodes is designated as single-
family residential on the land use plan.  The proposed PUD zoning district is listed as a 
compatible district in these areas.  The proposed PUD permits a condominium regime with 
detached residential units.  The proposed PUD includes the Type A architectural standard which 
is intended to ensure the highest quality architectural design.  The Concept Plan and Preliminary 
Plat meet the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance. 
 

 



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

RIDGEWOODNORTH

MARBELLA

STEWARTCROSSING

2A

2A

3A

3B
3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

PV
R 

92
0

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB
183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

PVR 921

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E WOODVIEW DRWOODVIEW DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 800

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-014  

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map 
Woodview Village PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



2A

2A

3A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3A

3A

3B

2A

3A

1B

2A

3B

3C

3A

1C

4B

2A

3A

5D

2A
2A

3C3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3C

3A3A

183A TOLL RD SB 183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB
183A TOLL RD FR NB

PV
R 

92
0

RM 2243

PV
R 

92
1

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

RI
DG

MA
R 

RD
E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

RUTHERFORD DR

E WOODVIEW DR

VINTA
GE DR

GRAND LAKE PKW
Y

YE
LL

OW
 IR

IS
 R

D

HE
NT

HO
RN

E W
AY

LILY PAD LANE

ST H
ELENA DR

W W
IND

EM
ER

E

YOUNTVILLE DR

AUGUST JAKE DR

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 800

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-014  

Attachment #3
Location Exhibit
Woodview Village PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

RIDGEWOODNORTH

MARBELLA

STEWARTCROSSING

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

2A

2A

3A

3B
3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

PV
R 

92
0

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB
183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

PVR 921

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E WOODVIEW DRWOODVIEW DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 800

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-014  

Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning Map 
Woodview Village PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD SB
183A TOLL RD FR NB

PV
R 

92
0

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

PVR 921

183A TOLL RD FR SB

E WOODVIEW DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-014 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Woodview Village

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A:  WOODVIEW VILLAGE PUD NOTES: 

 
1. Base zoning districts: 

a. The base zoning district for the PUD is MF-2-A (Multi-Family, Type 2, 
Type A). 

 
2. PUD area = 20.7 acres 

 
3. This project will be a detached single-family residential condominium 

development. 
 

4. All units will have a minimum 30' wide x 40' deep building footprint. 
 

5. Maximum unit count:  The project shall be limited to one-hundred and twenty 
(120) units. 
 

6. Parkland dedication:  Parkland dedication to reflect the numbers shown in the 
parkland dedication worksheet on the park plan sheet. 
 

7. Hike and bike trails:  The project will complete approximately 1,050 linear feet 
of 6-foot wide concrete hike and bike trails along the northern property line 
and approximately 900 linear feet of 8-foot wide concrete hike and bike trails 
along the eastern property line, as a portion of a trail corridor identified as a 
“connector” in Leander's City Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan 
(C9 Trail). 
 

8. Lighting:  Street lighting is required at the intersections between the drives 
and public streets.  Street lighting is optional in the interior of the project. 

 
9. Access/Private Drives:  See Exhibit “B” for detailed cross section of vehicular 

access easement. Minimum turning radius for the private drives is 25-feet. 
Private drives will have a 21- foot wide pavement width with 24-inch ribbon 
curbs or a 22-foot wide pavement width with 18-inch curb and gutter (FOC-
FOC). 

 
10. Residential Setbacks:  See Exhibit “B” for building setback distances. Front 

building setbacks shall be a minimum of 15-feet from face of curb. Side 
building separation shall be a minimum of 10-feet. Rear building separation 
shall be a minimum of 20-feet. Drive side building setback shall be a minimum 
of 10-feet from face of access drive curb. Eave overhang is not included in 
calculations for minimum building separation. 

 
11. Perimeter setbacks: minimum perimeter setback are as follows: 

a. 15-foot residential building setback on the western property line 



b. 20-foot residential building setback from East Woodview Drive to the north 
and Raider Way to the east. 

c. 15-foot residential building setback on the southern property line. 
 

12. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for 
single-family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance.  In addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family 
provisions regarding Tree Preservation and Protection.  

 
13. Internal fencing is limited to wrought iron fencing or decorative tubular metal. 

 
14. All residential product within this project shall comply with the applicable 

standards of the Type A Architectural Components and the Architectural 
Standards for single-family districts as listed in Article VII and Article VIII of 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  Drives shall constitute streets with regard 
to this application of the ordinance.  All homes shall include an enclosed 
garage parking space. 

 
15. A Home Owners Association will be established to maintain the grounds and 

the structures. 
 

16. Sidewalks are not required along internal drives due to trail network. 
 

17. All houses that are adjacent to Woodview Drive or Raider Way shall be alley 
loaded and face Woodview Drive or  Raider Way with the exception of the lots 
located adjacent to the drainage/detention pond area and to the south of the 
drive along Raider Way as shown on the Conceptual Site Layout and Land 
Use Plan.   

 
18. Driveways meeting the depth requirements of the Transportation Criteria 

Manual will be counted toward parking requirements. 
 

19. Exhibit C is intended to be illustrative and not limiting.  Construction will 
generally comply with the masonry, architectural features, and garage 
placement as shown in the pictures contained in Exhibit C. Each model 
shown may be built in either the Craftsman, Prairie or Spanish style.  All 
home construction will meet Type A architectural requirements and garage 
ordinance standards in effect as of the date of adoption hereof. 
 

 
  



EXHIBIT “C” 



16 

AMENITY CENTER & CLUBHOUSE 
June 2015  

Not to scale/Illustrative purposes only 



18 

FITNESS & RESORT POOL 
June 2015  

Not to scale/Illustrative purposes only 



19 

MAIN ENTRY & AMENITY CENTER 



20 

REAR LOADED GARDEN 
COURT VIEW 



21 

REAR LOADED STREET SCENE VIEW 

FRONT LOADED HOMES INTERIOR STREET VIEW 



Alley Loaded Home 
1,362 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (rear) 
Single Story 
Craftsman Half Stone Elevation 
 

25 

MODEL 1362 
Elevation Rendering 



26 

MODEL 1362 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



28 

MODEL 1727 
Elevation Rendering 



29 

MODEL 1727 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



Front Loaded Home 
1,339 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Single Story 
Prairie Half Brick Elevation 

MODEL 1339 
Elevation Rendering 

32 



33 

MODEL 1339 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



Front Loaded Home 
1,542 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Single Story 
Craftsman Half Stone Elevation 

35 

MODEL 1542 
Elevation Rendering 



36 

MODEL 1542 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



Front Loaded Home 
1,898 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Single Story 
Spanish Elevation 

MODEL 1898 
Elevation Rendering 

38 



39 

MODEL 1898 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



MODEL 1988 
Elevation Rendering 

41 

Side Loaded Home 
1,988 Square Feet 
4 Bedroom 3 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Two Story 
Prairie Half Brick Elevation 



42 

MODEL 1988 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



43 

    COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE 

WOODVIEW PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

WOODVIEW VILLAGE HOA 
 
 
WOODVIEW VILLAGE CC&R’S 
•  Master Planned Community of High Standards 
•  City of Leander Type “A” Architectural Standards 



H

W

Y

 

1

8

3

A

E

A

S

T

 

C

R

Y

S

T

A

L

 

F

A

L

L

S

 

P

A

R

K

W

A

Y

C

R

 

2

7

1

R

A

I

D

E

R

 

W

A

Y

C

R

 

2

7

1

E

.

 

W

O

O

D

V

I

E

W

 

D

R

I

V

E

SUBJECT TRACT

2

2

4

3

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
C

o
v
e
r
 
S

h
e
e
t

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
C

o
v
e

r
 
S

h
e

e
t

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
2
:
5
8
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
0
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

OWNER:

SURVEYOR:

PELOTON LAND SOLUTIONS

7004 BEE CAVE ROAD

AUSTIN, TX  78746

(512) 831-7700

ENGINEER:

WOODVIEW VILLAGE CONCEPT PLAN, PRELIMINARY PLAT & PUD

EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE AND RAIDER WAY

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

MAY 2014

BUILDING 2, SUITE 100

SUBMITTED BY :

PH. (512) 831-7700

AUSTIN, TEXAS  78746

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 92744

DARREN WEBBER

7004 BEE CAVE ROAD, BUILDING 2 SUITE 100

PELOTON LAND SOLUTIONS

BENCHMARK #1:

BEARING BASIS: THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983 (NAD83), CENTRAL ZONE, BASED ON

GPS SOLUTIONS FROM THE NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY (NGS) ON-LINE POSITIONING USER

SERVICE (OPUS) FOR CHAPARRAL CONTROL POINT "P631".

SPINDLE WITH WASHER SET IN CONCRETE

TEXAS CENTRAL ZONE STATE

PLANE COORDINATES:

N 10179263.49

E 3085255.95

SURFACE COORDINATES:

N 10180591.44

E 3085658.44

ELEVATION = 962.82'

VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88 (GEOID 99)

DEWETTE PARTNERS, LTD

12501 LONGHORN PKWY.

APT.  A364

AUSTIN, TX 78732

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHAPARRAL PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING, INC.

3500 McCALL LANE

AUSTIN, TX  78744

(512) 443-1724

(512) 389-0943 FAX

ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAIN WITH THE ENGINEER WHO

PREPARED THEM.  IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE CITY OF LEANDER MUST RELY UPON THE

ADEQUACY OF THE DESIGN ENGINEER.

A LAND TITLE SURVEY OF 20.691 ACRES (APPROXIMATELY 901,305 SQ. FT.) IN THE E. D. HARMON SURVEY,

ABSTRACT NO. 6 IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ALL OF A 20.679 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO DE

WETTE PARTNERS, LTD., IN A WARRANTY DEED DATED MAY 1, 2006 AND RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO.

2006040462 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS.

0 1,000' 2,000'

SCALE: 1" = 1,000'

N

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

1

SHEET INDEX

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

1 COVER SHEET

2 EXISTING CONDITIONS

3 CONCEPT PLAN, CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT & LAND USE PLAN

4 PRELIMINARY PLAT

5 DRAINAGE PLAN

6 UTILITY PLAN

7 TREE SURVEY

PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES:

1. CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF

LEANDER PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION.

2. UNLESS SPECIFIED IN THE PUD AGREEMENT, ALL SUBDIVISION CONSTRUCTION AND BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL CONFORM TO THE

CURRENT CITY OF LEANDER CODE OF ORDINANCES, CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, AND GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES.

3. THE OWNER OF THIS SUBDIVISION, AND HIS OR HER SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PLANS FOR

CONSTRUCTION OF SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS WHICH COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE CODES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF LEANDER.

THE OWNER UNDERSTANDS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT PLAT VACATION OR RE-PLATTING MAY BE REQUIRED, AT THE OWNER'S SOLE

EXPENSE, IF PLANS TO CONSTRUCT THIS SUBDIVISION DO NOT COMPLY WITH SUCH CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

4. NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO THE CITY OF LEANDER WATER DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER

COLLECTION FACILITIES.

5. ALL WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF LEANDER.

6. SITE DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LEANDER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

7. WASTEWATER AND WATER SYSTEMS SHALL CONFORM TO TCEQ (TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY) AND STATE BOARD OF

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  THE OWNER UNDERSTANDS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT PLAT VACATION OR RE-PLATTING MAY BE REQUIRED,

AT THE OWNER'S SOLE EXPENSE, IF PLANS TO DEVELOP THIS SUBDIVISION DO NOT COMPLY WITH SUCH CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

8. NO BUILDINGS, FENCES, LANDSCAPING OR OTHER STRUCTURES ARE PERMITTED WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHOWN, EXCEPT AS

APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LEANDER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.

9. PROPERTY OWNER SHALL PROVIDE FOR ACCESS TO DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY AND SHALL NOT PROHIBIT ACCESS BY

CITY OF LEANDER.

10. ALL EASEMENTS OF PRIVATE PROPERTY AND AMENITY, H.O.A., DRAINAGE AND DETENTION LOTS/EASEMENTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE

PROPERTY OWNER OF HIS OR HER ASSIGNS.  THE HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION WILL MAINTAIN ALL LANDSCAPE LOTS.

11. TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EASEMENTS TO BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED FOR OFF-SITE WATER, WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE

IMPROVEMENTS.

12. THIS SITE IS LOCATED WITH WITHIN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER CONTRIBUTING ZONE.  DEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE WILL COMPLY WITH ALL

APPLICABLE TCEQ EDWARDS AQUIFER RULES.

13. PARKLAND TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT.

14. THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF LEANDER CITY LIMITS.

15. THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS SUBJECT TO A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT.

16. NO PORTION OF THIS TRACT IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE F.E.M.A. ZONE AE 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN AS SHOWN ON THE F.E.M.A. FIRM

PANEL 48491C0455E FOR WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 26, 2008.

17. ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD ARE SHOWN OR NOTED ON THE PRELIMINARY PLAT AS FOUND IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT, PREPARES BY

FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

G.F. NO:  137480JP

EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/22/2013

ISSUED:  12/3/2013

18. BASED ON MAXIMUM NUMBER OF UNITS PER PUD, A TIA WILL NOT BE REQUIRED.



E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

2

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
C

o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
E

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
4
2
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
0
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

NOTE:

CONTOUR DATA IS 2012 LIDAR FROM WILLIAMSON COUNTY.



R

E

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 

T

I

E

S

4

7

°

4

5

'
0

2

"

W

 

6

9

8

.

5

9

'

N
2
0
°
5
9
'
1
3
"
W
 
8
3
5
.
0
7
'

(
N
1
9
°
0
0
'
W
 
8
3
4
.
8
4
'
)

N69°56'30"E 667.04'

{N69°57'00"E 666.99'}

1/2" IRF

0.51' OFF LINE

N69°01'01"E 
1057.43'

(N71°00'E
 1057.41')

S
2
1
°
0
3
'
3
7
"
E
 
8
9
7
.
0
6
'

(
S
1
9
°
0
7
'
E
 
8
6
9
.
5
2
'
)

7
1
.
9
4
'

S
7
6
°
2
8
'1
1
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'[

S
7
8
°
3
9
'3
0
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
']

S68°2
9'29"W

 260.8
3'

3
5
.
0
0
'

3
5

.
0

0
'

35.00'

35.00'

1
0

.
0

0
'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

10.00'

PROPOSED

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

10.00'

PROPOSED

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

1
5
'
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

20' RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SETBACK

2
0
'
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

20.11'

WATER QUALITY/

DETENTION POND

15' RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SETBACK

1
0
.
0

0
'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

ALLEY

LOAD PRODUCT

ALLEY

LOAD PRODUCT

A
L
L
E

Y

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

A
L
L
E

Y

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

ALLEY

LOAD PRODUCT

A
L
L
E

Y

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

 FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

F
R

O
N

T

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

ALLEY

A
L
L
E

Y

A
L
L
E

Y

A
L
L
E

Y

25.00' PRIVATE DRIVE

FOC-FOC

45.00' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

FLEXIBLE BASE PER GEOTECH

SUBGRADE PER GEOTECH

25.00' PRIVATE DRIVE

EOC-EOC

45.00' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

FLEXIBLE BASE PER GEOTECH

SUBGRADE PER GEOTECH

RIBBON CURB STREET SECTION

CURB AND GUTTER STREET SECTION

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 
P

L
A

N
,
 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L
 
S

I
T

E

L
A

Y
O

U
T

 
&

 
L
A

N
D

 
U

S
E

 
P

L
A

N

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
 
P

l
a
n

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
C

o
n

c
e
p
t
 
P

l
a
n

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

7
/
2
/
2
0
1
5
 
8
:
3
6
 
A

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
7
/
2
/
2
0
1
5
 
8
:
3
7
 
A

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

3

LEGEND

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED NEW R.O.W.

MASONRY WALL

WROUGHT IRON FENCE

TYPICAL DRIVE SECTIONS - EXHIBIT B



LOT 1 BLOCK A

20.691 ACRES

APPROX. 901,305 SQ. FT.

DE WETTE PARTNERS, LTD.

20.679 ACRES

(2006040462)

DEED DOES NOT FORM

A CLOSED FIGURE

NO EXISTING STRUCTURES

AT TIME OF SURVEY

LOT 4

THE DUNKLEY SUBDIVISION

(L/150)

EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

R
A

I
D

E
R

 
W

A
Y

(
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

LOT 1

GIDDENS WESKIM ESTATES

(H/250)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY RURAL

P631

TED HOLLEN, TRUSTEE

9.997 AC.

(1996045291)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY URBAN

VETERAN'S LAND BOARD

OF THE STATE OF TEXAS

0.41 ACRES

(1235/203)

R.O.W. LINE

PER L/150

PRUETT FAMILY TRUST

16.22 AC.

(2006055079)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY  COMPACT

GENERATIONS MINISTRIES, INC.

33.000 AC.

(2009023887)

LAKELINE CHURCH, INC.

33.051 AC.

(2009023645)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY

SUBURBAN

SAMUEL PEARSON

16.21 AC.

(2003027079)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT

LEANDER ISD

141.29 AC.

2003039158

LOT 1

BLOCK A

CANTWELL TRACT SUBDIVISION

(EE/104)

ZONING: MULTI-FAMILY

AS

CH

3/8"

PBSJ

R

E

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 

T

I

E

S

4

7

°

4

5

'
0

2

"

W

 

6

9

8

.

5

9

'

N
2
0
°
5
9
'
1
3
"
W
 
8
3
5
.
0
7
'

(
N
1
9
°
0
0
'
W
 
8
3
4
.
8
4
'
)

N69°56'30"E 667.04'

{N69°57'00"E 666.99'}

1/2" IRF

0.51' OFF LINE

N69°01'01"E 1057.43'

(N71°00'E 1057.41')

S
2
1
°
0
3
'
3
7
"
E
 
8
9
7
.
0
6
'

(
S
1
9
°
0
7
'
E
 
8
6
9
.
5
2
'
)

7
1
.
9
4
'

S

7
6
°
2
8
'1
1
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'[

S

7
8
°
3
9
'3
0
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
']

S68°29'2
9"W 260.83'

1 STORY

MOBILE

HOME

GRAVEL

DRIVE

ASPHALT

1
5
"

C
M

P

CONC.

CONC.

CONC.

DRIVE

ASPH.

DRIVE

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

DRIVE

UNPAVED

GRAVEL

DRIVE

ASPH.

ASPHALT

DRIVE

C
O

N
C

.

12"

CMP

ASPH.

ASPHALT

DRIVE

C
O

N
C

.

12"

CMP

ASPHALT

DRIVE

C
O

N
C

.

12"

CMP

ASPH.

1
5
"

C
M

P

CONC.

CONC.

BARBED WIRE

FENCE GENERALLY

ON PROPERTY LINE

FENCE 3.3' OFF

PROPERTY LINE

FENCE 0.3' OFF

PROPERTY LINE

BARBED WIRE

FENCE GENERALLY

ON PROPERTY LINE

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY RURAL

PROPOSED R.O.W.

DEDICATION

PROPOSED R.O.W.

DEDICATION

6' SIDEWALK

8' SIDEWALK

EXISTING R.O.W.

EXISTING R.O.W.

L1

L
2

L
3

L4

L
5

6' MASONRY WALL

6' MASONRY WALL

1
0

.
0

0
'

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

10.00'

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

Line Table

Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

Length

1057.43

897.06

394.96

667.04

835.07

Direction

N69° 01' 00.52"E

S21° 03' 36.96"E

S76° 28' 10.82"W

S69° 56' 29.82"W

N20° 59' 12.75"W

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T

4

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
 
A

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n

 
A

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
M

c
h
i
l
e
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
1
7
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
0
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

LEGEND

BOUNDARY

PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES:

1. FOR EVERY SIX HUNDRED (600) SQUARE FEET OF AREA IN THE 10'

LANDSCAPE EASEMENT ALONG EACH COLLECTOR, TWO (2) SHADE

TREES (TWO-INCH CALIPER OR LARGER) AND FOUR (4) SHRUBS

(FIVE GALLON CONTAINER SIZE OR LARGER) SHALL BE PLANTED

AND MAINTAINED. TWO ORNAMENTAL TREES PER SHADE TREE MAY

BE SUBSTITUTED FOR UP TO FIFTY PERCENT OF THE SHADE TREES

IF DESIRED. A SIX-FOOT PRIVACY FENCE, BUT NO HIGHER THAN

THREE FEET WITHIN TWENTY FIVE FEET OF AN INTERSECTING

STREET, SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH THE SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENTS AT THE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT LINE. THE FENCE

IS REQUIRED TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF ONE OR MORE OF THE

FOLLOWING MATERIALS: TEXTURED PRE-CAST CONCRETE (EG.

WOODCRETE), BRICK, STONE, CAST STONE, STUCCO, FACTORY

TINTED (NOT PAINTED) SPLIT-FACED CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT,

OR OTHER SIMILAR MATERIAL APPROVED BY THE DIRECTOR OF

PLANNING. ALL COLUMNS ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE CONCRETE

FOOTINGS. THE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT IS REQUIRED TO BE

MAINTAINED BY A PRIVATE ASSOCIATION.

2. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE INSTALLED ON THE SUBDIVISION SIDE OF

EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE AND RAIDER WAY. THOSE SIDEWALKS NOT

ABUTTING A RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL LOT

(INCLUDING SIDEWALKS ALONG STREET FRONTAGES OF LOTS

PROPOSED FOR SCHOOLS, CHURCHES, PARK LOTS, DETENTION

LOTS, DRAINAGE LOTS, LANDSCAPE LOTS, OR SIMILAR LOTS),

SIDEWALKS ON ARTERIAL STREETS TO WHICH ACCESS IS

PROHIBITED, SIDEWALKS ON DOUBLE FRONTAGE LOTS ON THE

SIDE TO WHICH ACCESS IS PROHIBITED, AND ALL SIDEWALKS ON

SAFE SCHOOL ROUTES SHALL BE INSTALLED WHEN THE ADJOINING

STREET IS CONSTRUCTED.

3. ROADWAY ADEQUACY ORDINANCE FEES WILL BE DUE AT THE TIME

OF FINAL PLAT AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

19. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION: DEDICATION WILL BE GRANTED TO

MEASURE 35' FROM THE EXISTING EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE AND

RAIDER WAY CENTERLINE BASED ON FIELD SURVEY BY

CHAPARRAL SURVEYING UPDATED ON 4/28/2014. THE DEDICATION

WILL ALLOW FOR THE FUTURE 70' OF RIGHT-OF-WAY BASED ON THE

2007 ROADWAY PLAN - REVISION 4.



D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 
P

L
A

N

5

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
D

r
a
i
n
a
g
e
 
P

l
a
n

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
D

r
a
i
n
a

g
e
 
P

l
a
n

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
7
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
1
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 100' 200'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

EXISTING PROPOSED



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R

L
O

T
 
1
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
A

2
0
.
6
9
1
 
A

C
R

E
S

A
P

P
R

O
X

.
 
9
0
1
,
3
0
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

D
E

 
W

E
T

T
E

 
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
,
 
L
T

D
.

2
0
.
6
7
9
 
A

C
R

E
S

(
2
0
0
6
0
4
0
4
6
2
)

D
E

E
D

 
D

O
E

S
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

M

A
 
C

L
O

S
E

D
 
F

I
G

U
R

E

N
O

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S

A
T

 
T

I
M

E
 
O

F
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

L
O

T
 
4

T
H

E
 
D

U
N

K
L
E

Y
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

(
L
/
1
5
0
)

E
A

S
T

 
W

O
O

D
V

I
E

W
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

RAIDER WAY

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

L
O

T
 
1

G
I
D

D
E

N
S

 
W

E
S

K
I
M

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
S

(
H

/
2
5
0
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
R

U
R

A
L

P
6
3
1

T
E

D
 
H

O
L
L
E

N
,
 
T

R
U

S
T

E
E

9
.
9
9
7
 
A

C
.

(
1
9
9
6
0
4
5
2
9
1
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
U

R
B

A
N

V
E

T
E

R
A

N
'
S

 
L
A

N
D

 
B

O
A

R
D

O
F

 
T

H
E

 
S

T
A

T
E

 
O

F
 
T

E
X

A
S

0
.
4
1
 
A

C
R

E
S

(
1
2
3
5
/
2
0
3
)

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

P
E

R
 
L
/
1
5
0

P
R

U
E

T
T

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
T

R
U

S
T

1
6
.
2
2
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
6
0
5
5
0
7
9
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
I
O

N
S

 
M

I
N

I
S

T
R

I
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

3
3
.
0
0
0
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
9
0
2
3
8
8
7
)

L
A

K
E

L
I
N

E
 
C

H
U

R
C

H
,
 
I
N

C
.

3
3
.
0
5
1
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
9
0
2
3
6
4
5
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

S
U

B
U

R
B

A
N

S
A

M
U

E
L
 
P

E
A

R
S

O
N

1
6
.
2
1
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
3
0
2
7
0
7
9
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
 
I
S

D

1
4
1
.
2
9
 
A

C
.

2
0
0
3
0
3
9
1
5
8

L
O

T
 
1

B
L
O

C
K

 
A

C
A

N
T

W
E

L
L
 
T

R
A

C
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

(
E

E
/
1
0
4
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
M

U
L
T

I
-
F

A
M

I
L
Y

A
S

C
H

3
/
8
"

P
B

S
J

R

E

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 

T

I

E

S

4

7

°

4

5

'
0

2

"

W

 

6

9

8

.

5

9

'

N20°59'13"W 835.07'

(N19°00'W 834.84')

N
6
9
°
5
6
'
3
0
"
E
 
6
6
7
.
0
4
'

{
N
6
9
°
5
7
'
0
0
"
E
 
6
6
6
.
9
9
'
}

1
/
2
"
 
I
R

F

0
.
5
1
'
 
O

F
F

 
L
I
N

E

N
6
9
°
0
1
'
0
1
"
E
 
1
0
5
7
.
4
3
'

(
N
7
1
°
0
0
'
E
 
1
0
5
7
.
4
1
'
)

S21°03'37"E 897.06'

(S19°07'E 869.52')

71.94'

S

7
6
°
2
8
'
1
1
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'

[
S

7
8
°
3
9
'
3
0
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'
]

S
6
8
°
2
9
'
2
9
"
W
 
2
6
0
.
8
3
'

1
 
S

T
O

R
Y

M
O

B
I
L
E

H
O

M
E

G
R

A
V

E
L

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

15"

CMP

C
O

N
C

.

C
O

N
C

.

C
O

N
C

.

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

.

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

G
R

A
V

E
L

D
R

I
V

E

U
N

P
A

V
E

D

G
R

A
V

E
L

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

.

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

D
R

I
V

E

CONC.

1
2
"

C
M

P

A
S

P
H

.

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

D
R

I
V

E

CONC.

1
2
"

C
M

P

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

D
R

I
V

E

CONC.

1
2
"

C
M

P

A
S

P
H

.

15"

CMP

C
O

N
C

.

C
O

N
C

.

B
A

R
B

E
D

 
W

I
R

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L
L
Y

O
N

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L
I
N

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
3
.
3
'
 
O

F
F

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
0
.
3
'
 
O

F
F

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

B
A

R
B

E
D

 
W

I
R

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L
L
Y

O
N

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L
I
N

E

W
T

R

W
T

R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W

T

R

WTR

WTR
WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR

WTR
WTR

WTR

W

T

R

W
TR

WTR

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
S

U
B

U
R

B
A

N

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
R

U
R

A
L

PROPOSED WASTEWATER

MANHOLE

PROPOSED WASTEWATER

MANHOLE

8" WASTEWATER

LINE

TIE TO FUTURE

WASTEWATER MANHOLE

PROVIDED BY OTHERS

TAP EXISTING

12" WATERLINE

TAP EXISTING

8" WATERLINE

EXISTING WW MANHOLE

INV OUT= 936.41

(PER MADISON REALTY

NEW WASTEWATER EXTENSION

NOVEMBER 2009)

HIGHWAY 183A

E
.
 
C

R
Y

S
T

A
L
 
F

A
L
L
S

 
P

K
W

Y

WOODVIEW VILLAGE

PROPOSED

15.00'

WW EASMT.

E
A

S
T

 
W

O
O

D
V

I
E

W
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

RAIDER WAY

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

6

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
U

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
E

x
h
i
b
i
t

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
U

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
E

x
h

i
b
i
t

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
M

c
h
i
l
e
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
1
8
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
1
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 100' 200'

SCALE: 1" = 100'



T
R

E
E

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

7

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
T

r
e
e
 
P

r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
P

l
a
n

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
T

r
e

e
 
P

r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
P

l
a
n

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
M

c
h
i
l
e
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
1
8
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
1
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'







Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM  
INTERIM SFS-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN) AND INTERIM SFR-
1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 20.679 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “D”, generally 
located to the southwest of the intersection of East Woodview Drive and Raider Way; legally 
described as 20.679 acres more or less out of the E.D. Harmon Survey, more particularly described 
in Document Number 2006040462, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
identified by tax identification numbers R031251.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban) and Interim SFR-1-B 
(Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit Development) known as the Woodview Village 
PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD 
plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C” which are hereby adopted and incorporated herein 
for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the extent not amended by this 
Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the 
requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 16th day of July, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 6th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A:  WOODVIEW VILLAGE PUD NOTES: 

 
1. Base zoning districts: 

a. The base zoning district for the PUD is MF-2-A (Multi-Family, Type 2, 
Type A). 

 
2. PUD area = 20.7 acres 

 
3. This project will be a detached single-family residential condominium 

development. 
 

4. All units will have a minimum 30' wide x 40' deep building footprint. 
 

5. Maximum unit count:  The project shall be limited to one-hundred and twenty 
(120) units. 
 

6. Parkland dedication:  Parkland dedication to reflect the numbers shown in the 
parkland dedication worksheet on the park plan sheet. 
 

7. Hike and bike trails:  The project will complete approximately 1,050 linear feet 
of 6-foot wide concrete hike and bike trails along the northern property line 
and approximately 900 linear feet of 8-foot wide concrete hike and bike trails 
along the eastern property line, as a portion of a trail corridor identified as a 
“connector” in Leander's City Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan 
(C9 Trail). 
 

8. Lighting:  Street lighting is required at the intersections between the drives 
and public streets.  Street lighting is optional in the interior of the project. 

 
9. Access/Private Drives:  See Exhibit “B” for detailed cross section of vehicular 

access easement. Minimum turning radius for the private drives is 25-feet. 
Private drives will have a 21- foot wide pavement width with 24-inch ribbon 
curbs or a 22-foot wide pavement width with 18-inch curb and gutter (FOC-
FOC). 

 
10. Residential Setbacks:  See Exhibit “B” for building setback distances. Front 

building setbacks shall be a minimum of 15-feet from face of curb. Side 
building separation shall be a minimum of 10-feet. Rear building separation 
shall be a minimum of 20-feet. Drive side building setback shall be a minimum 
of 10-feet from face of access drive curb. Eave overhang is not included in 
calculations for minimum building separation. 

 
11. Perimeter setbacks: minimum perimeter setback are as follows: 

a. 15-foot residential building setback on the western property line 



b. 20-foot residential building setback from East Woodview Drive to the north 
and Raider Way to the east. 

c. 15-foot residential building setback on the southern property line. 
 

12. This project shall comply with the applicable Landscape Requirements for 
single-family districts as listed in Article VI of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance.  In addition, this project shall comply with the multi-family 
provisions regarding Tree Preservation and Protection.  

 
13. Internal fencing is limited to wrought iron fencing or decorative tubular metal. 

 
14. All residential product within this project shall comply with the applicable 

standards of the Type A Architectural Components and the Architectural 
Standards for single-family districts as listed in Article VII and Article VIII of 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  Drives shall constitute streets with regard 
to this application of the ordinance.  All homes shall include an enclosed 
garage parking space. 

 
15. A Home Owners Association will be established to maintain the grounds and 

the structures. 
 

16. Sidewalks are not required along internal drives due to trail network. 
 

17. All houses that are adjacent to Woodview Drive or Raider Way shall be alley 
loaded and face Woodview Drive or  Raider Way with the exception of the lots 
located adjacent to the drainage/detention pond area and to the south of the 
drive along Raider Way as shown on the Conceptual Site Layout and Land 
Use Plan.   

 
18. Driveways meeting the depth requirements of the Transportation Criteria 

Manual will be counted toward parking requirements. 
 

19. Exhibit C is intended to be illustrative and not limiting.  Construction will 
generally comply with the masonry, architectural features, and garage 
placement as shown in the pictures contained in Exhibit C. Each model 
shown may be built in either the Craftsman, Prairie or Spanish style.  All 
home construction will meet Type A architectural requirements and garage 
ordinance standards in effect as of the date of adoption hereof. 
 

 
  



EXHIBIT “C” 



16 

AMENITY CENTER & CLUBHOUSE 
June 2015  

Not to scale/Illustrative purposes only 



18 

FITNESS & RESORT POOL 
June 2015  

Not to scale/Illustrative purposes only 



19 

MAIN ENTRY & AMENITY CENTER 



20 

REAR LOADED GARDEN 
COURT VIEW 



21 

REAR LOADED STREET SCENE VIEW 

FRONT LOADED HOMES INTERIOR STREET VIEW 



Alley Loaded Home 
1,362 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (rear) 
Single Story 
Craftsman Half Stone Elevation 
 

25 

MODEL 1362 
Elevation Rendering 



26 

MODEL 1362 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



28 

MODEL 1727 
Elevation Rendering 



29 

MODEL 1727 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



Front Loaded Home 
1,339 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Single Story 
Prairie Half Brick Elevation 

MODEL 1339 
Elevation Rendering 

32 



33 

MODEL 1339 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



Front Loaded Home 
1,542 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Single Story 
Craftsman Half Stone Elevation 

35 

MODEL 1542 
Elevation Rendering 



36 

MODEL 1542 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



Front Loaded Home 
1,898 Square Feet 
3 Bedroom 2 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Single Story 
Spanish Elevation 

MODEL 1898 
Elevation Rendering 

38 



39 

MODEL 1898 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



MODEL 1988 
Elevation Rendering 

41 

Side Loaded Home 
1,988 Square Feet 
4 Bedroom 3 Bathroom 
2-Car Garage (front) 
Two Story 
Prairie Half Brick Elevation 



42 

MODEL 1988 
“A” & Garage Ordinance Compliance 



43 

    COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE 

WOODVIEW PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

WOODVIEW VILLAGE HOA 
 
 
WOODVIEW VILLAGE CC&R’S 
•  Master Planned Community of High Standards 
•  City of Leander Type “A” Architectural Standards 



H

W

Y

 

1

8

3

A

E

A

S

T

 

C

R

Y

S

T

A

L

 

F

A

L

L

S

 

P

A

R

K

W

A

Y

C

R

 

2

7

1

R

A

I

D

E

R

 

W

A

Y

C

R

 

2

7

1

E

.

 

W

O

O

D

V

I

E

W

 

D

R

I

V

E

SUBJECT TRACT

2

2

4

3

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
C

o
v
e
r
 
S

h
e
e
t

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
C

o
v
e

r
 
S

h
e

e
t

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
2
:
5
8
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
0
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

OWNER:

SURVEYOR:

PELOTON LAND SOLUTIONS

7004 BEE CAVE ROAD

AUSTIN, TX  78746

(512) 831-7700

ENGINEER:

WOODVIEW VILLAGE CONCEPT PLAN, PRELIMINARY PLAT & PUD

EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE AND RAIDER WAY

THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS

MAY 2014

BUILDING 2, SUITE 100

SUBMITTED BY :

PH. (512) 831-7700

AUSTIN, TEXAS  78746

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 92744

DARREN WEBBER

7004 BEE CAVE ROAD, BUILDING 2 SUITE 100

PELOTON LAND SOLUTIONS

BENCHMARK #1:

BEARING BASIS: THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983 (NAD83), CENTRAL ZONE, BASED ON

GPS SOLUTIONS FROM THE NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY (NGS) ON-LINE POSITIONING USER

SERVICE (OPUS) FOR CHAPARRAL CONTROL POINT "P631".

SPINDLE WITH WASHER SET IN CONCRETE

TEXAS CENTRAL ZONE STATE

PLANE COORDINATES:

N 10179263.49

E 3085255.95

SURFACE COORDINATES:

N 10180591.44

E 3085658.44

ELEVATION = 962.82'

VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88 (GEOID 99)

DEWETTE PARTNERS, LTD

12501 LONGHORN PKWY.

APT.  A364

AUSTIN, TX 78732

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHAPARRAL PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYING, INC.

3500 McCALL LANE

AUSTIN, TX  78744

(512) 443-1724

(512) 389-0943 FAX

ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ADEQUACY OF THESE PLANS REMAIN WITH THE ENGINEER WHO

PREPARED THEM.  IN APPROVING THESE PLANS, THE CITY OF LEANDER MUST RELY UPON THE

ADEQUACY OF THE DESIGN ENGINEER.

A LAND TITLE SURVEY OF 20.691 ACRES (APPROXIMATELY 901,305 SQ. FT.) IN THE E. D. HARMON SURVEY,

ABSTRACT NO. 6 IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ALL OF A 20.679 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO DE

WETTE PARTNERS, LTD., IN A WARRANTY DEED DATED MAY 1, 2006 AND RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO.

2006040462 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS.

0 1,000' 2,000'

SCALE: 1" = 1,000'

N

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

1

SHEET INDEX

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

1 COVER SHEET

2 EXISTING CONDITIONS

3 CONCEPT PLAN, CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT & LAND USE PLAN

4 PRELIMINARY PLAT

5 DRAINAGE PLAN

6 UTILITY PLAN

7 TREE SURVEY

PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES:

1. CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF

LEANDER PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION.

2. UNLESS SPECIFIED IN THE PUD AGREEMENT, ALL SUBDIVISION CONSTRUCTION AND BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL CONFORM TO THE

CURRENT CITY OF LEANDER CODE OF ORDINANCES, CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, AND GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES.

3. THE OWNER OF THIS SUBDIVISION, AND HIS OR HER SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PLANS FOR

CONSTRUCTION OF SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS WHICH COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE CODES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF LEANDER.

THE OWNER UNDERSTANDS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT PLAT VACATION OR RE-PLATTING MAY BE REQUIRED, AT THE OWNER'S SOLE

EXPENSE, IF PLANS TO CONSTRUCT THIS SUBDIVISION DO NOT COMPLY WITH SUCH CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

4. NO LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO THE CITY OF LEANDER WATER DISTRIBUTION AND WASTEWATER

COLLECTION FACILITIES.

5. ALL WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF LEANDER.

6. SITE DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LEANDER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

7. WASTEWATER AND WATER SYSTEMS SHALL CONFORM TO TCEQ (TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY) AND STATE BOARD OF

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  THE OWNER UNDERSTANDS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT PLAT VACATION OR RE-PLATTING MAY BE REQUIRED,

AT THE OWNER'S SOLE EXPENSE, IF PLANS TO DEVELOP THIS SUBDIVISION DO NOT COMPLY WITH SUCH CODES AND REQUIREMENTS.

8. NO BUILDINGS, FENCES, LANDSCAPING OR OTHER STRUCTURES ARE PERMITTED WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHOWN, EXCEPT AS

APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LEANDER PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.

9. PROPERTY OWNER SHALL PROVIDE FOR ACCESS TO DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY AND SHALL NOT PROHIBIT ACCESS BY

CITY OF LEANDER.

10. ALL EASEMENTS OF PRIVATE PROPERTY AND AMENITY, H.O.A., DRAINAGE AND DETENTION LOTS/EASEMENTS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE

PROPERTY OWNER OF HIS OR HER ASSIGNS.  THE HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION WILL MAINTAIN ALL LANDSCAPE LOTS.

11. TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EASEMENTS TO BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED FOR OFF-SITE WATER, WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE

IMPROVEMENTS.

12. THIS SITE IS LOCATED WITH WITHIN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER CONTRIBUTING ZONE.  DEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE WILL COMPLY WITH ALL

APPLICABLE TCEQ EDWARDS AQUIFER RULES.

13. PARKLAND TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT.

14. THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF LEANDER CITY LIMITS.

15. THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS SUBJECT TO A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT.

16. NO PORTION OF THIS TRACT IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE F.E.M.A. ZONE AE 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN AS SHOWN ON THE F.E.M.A. FIRM

PANEL 48491C0455E FOR WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 26, 2008.

17. ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD ARE SHOWN OR NOTED ON THE PRELIMINARY PLAT AS FOUND IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT, PREPARES BY

FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

G.F. NO:  137480JP

EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/22/2013

ISSUED:  12/3/2013

18. BASED ON MAXIMUM NUMBER OF UNITS PER PUD, A TIA WILL NOT BE REQUIRED.



E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

2

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
C

o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
E

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
4
2
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
0
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

NOTE:

CONTOUR DATA IS 2012 LIDAR FROM WILLIAMSON COUNTY.



R

E

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 

T

I

E

S

4

7

°

4

5

'
0

2

"

W

 

6

9

8

.

5

9

'

N
2
0
°
5
9
'
1
3
"
W
 
8
3
5
.
0
7
'

(
N
1
9
°
0
0
'
W
 
8
3
4
.
8
4
'
)

N69°56'30"E 667.04'

{N69°57'00"E 666.99'}

1/2" IRF

0.51' OFF LINE

N69°01'01"E 
1057.43'

(N71°00'E
 1057.41')

S
2
1
°
0
3
'
3
7
"
E
 
8
9
7
.
0
6
'

(
S
1
9
°
0
7
'
E
 
8
6
9
.
5
2
'
)

7
1
.
9
4
'

S
7
6
°
2
8
'1
1
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'[

S
7
8
°
3
9
'3
0
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
']

S68°2
9'29"W

 260.8
3'

3
5
.
0
0
'

3
5

.
0

0
'

35.00'

35.00'

1
0

.
0

0
'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

10.00'

PROPOSED

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

10.00'

PROPOSED

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

1
5
'
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

20' RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SETBACK

2
0
'
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

20.11'

WATER QUALITY/

DETENTION POND

15' RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SETBACK

1
0
.
0

0
'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

ALLEY

LOAD PRODUCT

ALLEY

LOAD PRODUCT

A
L
L
E

Y

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

A
L
L
E

Y

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

ALLEY

LOAD PRODUCT

A
L
L
E

Y

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

 FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

F
R

O
N

T

L
O

A
D

 
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

FRONT

LOAD PRODUCT

ALLEY

A
L
L
E

Y

A
L
L
E

Y

A
L
L
E

Y

25.00' PRIVATE DRIVE

FOC-FOC

45.00' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

FLEXIBLE BASE PER GEOTECH

SUBGRADE PER GEOTECH

25.00' PRIVATE DRIVE

EOC-EOC

45.00' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

FLEXIBLE BASE PER GEOTECH

SUBGRADE PER GEOTECH

RIBBON CURB STREET SECTION

CURB AND GUTTER STREET SECTION

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 
P

L
A

N
,
 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L
 
S

I
T

E

L
A

Y
O

U
T

 
&

 
L
A

N
D

 
U

S
E

 
P

L
A

N

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
 
P

l
a
n

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
C

o
n

c
e
p
t
 
P

l
a
n

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

7
/
2
/
2
0
1
5
 
8
:
3
6
 
A

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
7
/
2
/
2
0
1
5
 
8
:
3
7
 
A

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

3

LEGEND

RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED NEW R.O.W.

MASONRY WALL

WROUGHT IRON FENCE

TYPICAL DRIVE SECTIONS - EXHIBIT B



LOT 1 BLOCK A

20.691 ACRES

APPROX. 901,305 SQ. FT.

DE WETTE PARTNERS, LTD.

20.679 ACRES

(2006040462)

DEED DOES NOT FORM

A CLOSED FIGURE

NO EXISTING STRUCTURES

AT TIME OF SURVEY

LOT 4

THE DUNKLEY SUBDIVISION

(L/150)

EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

R
A

I
D

E
R

 
W

A
Y

(
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

LOT 1

GIDDENS WESKIM ESTATES

(H/250)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY RURAL

P631

TED HOLLEN, TRUSTEE

9.997 AC.

(1996045291)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY URBAN

VETERAN'S LAND BOARD

OF THE STATE OF TEXAS

0.41 ACRES

(1235/203)

R.O.W. LINE

PER L/150

PRUETT FAMILY TRUST

16.22 AC.

(2006055079)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY  COMPACT

GENERATIONS MINISTRIES, INC.

33.000 AC.

(2009023887)

LAKELINE CHURCH, INC.

33.051 AC.

(2009023645)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY

SUBURBAN

SAMUEL PEARSON

16.21 AC.

(2003027079)

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT

LEANDER ISD

141.29 AC.

2003039158

LOT 1

BLOCK A

CANTWELL TRACT SUBDIVISION

(EE/104)

ZONING: MULTI-FAMILY

AS

CH

3/8"

PBSJ

R

E

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 

T

I

E

S

4

7

°

4

5

'
0

2

"

W

 

6

9

8

.

5

9

'

N
2
0
°
5
9
'
1
3
"
W
 
8
3
5
.
0
7
'

(
N
1
9
°
0
0
'
W
 
8
3
4
.
8
4
'
)

N69°56'30"E 667.04'

{N69°57'00"E 666.99'}

1/2" IRF

0.51' OFF LINE

N69°01'01"E 1057.43'

(N71°00'E 1057.41')

S
2
1
°
0
3
'
3
7
"
E
 
8
9
7
.
0
6
'

(
S
1
9
°
0
7
'
E
 
8
6
9
.
5
2
'
)

7
1
.
9
4
'

S

7
6
°
2
8
'1
1
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'[

S

7
8
°
3
9
'3
0
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
']

S68°29'2
9"W 260.83'

1 STORY

MOBILE

HOME

GRAVEL

DRIVE

ASPHALT

1
5
"

C
M

P

CONC.

CONC.

CONC.

DRIVE

ASPH.

DRIVE

ASPHALT

GRAVEL

DRIVE

UNPAVED

GRAVEL

DRIVE

ASPH.

ASPHALT

DRIVE

C
O

N
C

.

12"

CMP

ASPH.

ASPHALT

DRIVE

C
O

N
C

.

12"

CMP

ASPHALT

DRIVE

C
O

N
C

.

12"

CMP

ASPH.

1
5
"

C
M

P

CONC.

CONC.

BARBED WIRE

FENCE GENERALLY

ON PROPERTY LINE

FENCE 3.3' OFF

PROPERTY LINE

FENCE 0.3' OFF

PROPERTY LINE

BARBED WIRE

FENCE GENERALLY

ON PROPERTY LINE

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN

ZONING: SINGLE FAMILY RURAL

PROPOSED R.O.W.

DEDICATION

PROPOSED R.O.W.

DEDICATION

6' SIDEWALK

8' SIDEWALK

EXISTING R.O.W.

EXISTING R.O.W.

L1

L
2

L
3

L4

L
5

6' MASONRY WALL

6' MASONRY WALL

1
0

.
0

0
'

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

10.00'

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

Line Table

Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

Length

1057.43

897.06

394.96

667.04

835.07

Direction

N69° 01' 00.52"E

S21° 03' 36.96"E

S76° 28' 10.82"W

S69° 56' 29.82"W

N20° 59' 12.75"W

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T

4

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
 
A

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n

 
A

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
M

c
h
i
l
e
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
1
7
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
0
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

LEGEND

BOUNDARY

PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES:

1. FOR EVERY SIX HUNDRED (600) SQUARE FEET OF AREA IN THE 10'

LANDSCAPE EASEMENT ALONG EACH COLLECTOR, TWO (2) SHADE

TREES (TWO-INCH CALIPER OR LARGER) AND FOUR (4) SHRUBS

(FIVE GALLON CONTAINER SIZE OR LARGER) SHALL BE PLANTED

AND MAINTAINED. TWO ORNAMENTAL TREES PER SHADE TREE MAY

BE SUBSTITUTED FOR UP TO FIFTY PERCENT OF THE SHADE TREES

IF DESIRED. A SIX-FOOT PRIVACY FENCE, BUT NO HIGHER THAN

THREE FEET WITHIN TWENTY FIVE FEET OF AN INTERSECTING

STREET, SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH THE SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENTS AT THE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT LINE. THE FENCE

IS REQUIRED TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF ONE OR MORE OF THE

FOLLOWING MATERIALS: TEXTURED PRE-CAST CONCRETE (EG.

WOODCRETE), BRICK, STONE, CAST STONE, STUCCO, FACTORY

TINTED (NOT PAINTED) SPLIT-FACED CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT,

OR OTHER SIMILAR MATERIAL APPROVED BY THE DIRECTOR OF

PLANNING. ALL COLUMNS ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE CONCRETE

FOOTINGS. THE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT IS REQUIRED TO BE

MAINTAINED BY A PRIVATE ASSOCIATION.

2. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE INSTALLED ON THE SUBDIVISION SIDE OF

EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE AND RAIDER WAY. THOSE SIDEWALKS NOT

ABUTTING A RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL LOT

(INCLUDING SIDEWALKS ALONG STREET FRONTAGES OF LOTS

PROPOSED FOR SCHOOLS, CHURCHES, PARK LOTS, DETENTION

LOTS, DRAINAGE LOTS, LANDSCAPE LOTS, OR SIMILAR LOTS),

SIDEWALKS ON ARTERIAL STREETS TO WHICH ACCESS IS

PROHIBITED, SIDEWALKS ON DOUBLE FRONTAGE LOTS ON THE

SIDE TO WHICH ACCESS IS PROHIBITED, AND ALL SIDEWALKS ON

SAFE SCHOOL ROUTES SHALL BE INSTALLED WHEN THE ADJOINING

STREET IS CONSTRUCTED.

3. ROADWAY ADEQUACY ORDINANCE FEES WILL BE DUE AT THE TIME

OF FINAL PLAT AS DETERMINED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

19. RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION: DEDICATION WILL BE GRANTED TO

MEASURE 35' FROM THE EXISTING EAST WOODVIEW DRIVE AND

RAIDER WAY CENTERLINE BASED ON FIELD SURVEY BY

CHAPARRAL SURVEYING UPDATED ON 4/28/2014. THE DEDICATION

WILL ALLOW FOR THE FUTURE 70' OF RIGHT-OF-WAY BASED ON THE

2007 ROADWAY PLAN - REVISION 4.



D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 
P

L
A

N

5

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
D

r
a
i
n
a
g
e
 
P

l
a
n

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
D

r
a
i
n
a

g
e
 
P

l
a
n

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
R

v
i
c
k
e
r
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
7
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
1
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 100' 200'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

EXISTING PROPOSED



W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R

L
O

T
 
1
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
A

2
0
.
6
9
1
 
A

C
R

E
S

A
P

P
R

O
X

.
 
9
0
1
,
3
0
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

D
E

 
W

E
T

T
E

 
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
,
 
L
T

D
.

2
0
.
6
7
9
 
A

C
R

E
S

(
2
0
0
6
0
4
0
4
6
2
)

D
E

E
D

 
D

O
E

S
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

M

A
 
C

L
O

S
E

D
 
F

I
G

U
R

E

N
O

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S

A
T

 
T

I
M

E
 
O

F
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

L
O

T
 
4

T
H

E
 
D

U
N

K
L
E

Y
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

(
L
/
1
5
0
)

E
A

S
T

 
W

O
O

D
V

I
E

W
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

RAIDER WAY

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

L
O

T
 
1

G
I
D

D
E

N
S

 
W

E
S

K
I
M

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
S

(
H

/
2
5
0
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
R

U
R

A
L

P
6
3
1

T
E

D
 
H

O
L
L
E

N
,
 
T

R
U

S
T

E
E

9
.
9
9
7
 
A

C
.

(
1
9
9
6
0
4
5
2
9
1
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
U

R
B

A
N

V
E

T
E

R
A

N
'
S

 
L
A

N
D

 
B

O
A

R
D

O
F

 
T

H
E

 
S

T
A

T
E

 
O

F
 
T

E
X

A
S

0
.
4
1
 
A

C
R

E
S

(
1
2
3
5
/
2
0
3
)

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

P
E

R
 
L
/
1
5
0

P
R

U
E

T
T

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
T

R
U

S
T

1
6
.
2
2
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
6
0
5
5
0
7
9
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
I
O

N
S

 
M

I
N

I
S

T
R

I
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

3
3
.
0
0
0
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
9
0
2
3
8
8
7
)

L
A

K
E

L
I
N

E
 
C

H
U

R
C

H
,
 
I
N

C
.

3
3
.
0
5
1
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
9
0
2
3
6
4
5
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

S
U

B
U

R
B

A
N

S
A

M
U

E
L
 
P

E
A

R
S

O
N

1
6
.
2
1
 
A

C
.

(
2
0
0
3
0
2
7
0
7
9
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
 
I
S

D

1
4
1
.
2
9
 
A

C
.

2
0
0
3
0
3
9
1
5
8

L
O

T
 
1

B
L
O

C
K

 
A

C
A

N
T

W
E

L
L
 
T

R
A

C
T

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

(
E

E
/
1
0
4
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
M

U
L
T

I
-
F

A
M

I
L
Y

A
S

C
H

3
/
8
"

P
B

S
J

R

E

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 

T

I

E

S

4

7

°

4

5

'
0

2

"

W

 

6

9

8

.

5

9

'

N20°59'13"W 835.07'

(N19°00'W 834.84')

N
6
9
°
5
6
'
3
0
"
E
 
6
6
7
.
0
4
'

{
N
6
9
°
5
7
'
0
0
"
E
 
6
6
6
.
9
9
'
}

1
/
2
"
 
I
R

F

0
.
5
1
'
 
O

F
F

 
L
I
N

E

N
6
9
°
0
1
'
0
1
"
E
 
1
0
5
7
.
4
3
'

(
N
7
1
°
0
0
'
E
 
1
0
5
7
.
4
1
'
)

S21°03'37"E 897.06'

(S19°07'E 869.52')

71.94'

S

7
6
°
2
8
'
1
1
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'

[
S

7
8
°
3
9
'
3
0
"
W

 
3
9
4
.
9
6
'
]

S
6
8
°
2
9
'
2
9
"
W
 
2
6
0
.
8
3
'

1
 
S

T
O

R
Y

M
O

B
I
L
E

H
O

M
E

G
R

A
V

E
L

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

15"

CMP

C
O

N
C

.

C
O

N
C

.

C
O

N
C

.

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

.

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

G
R

A
V

E
L

D
R

I
V

E

U
N

P
A

V
E

D

G
R

A
V

E
L

D
R

I
V

E

A
S

P
H

.

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

D
R

I
V

E

CONC.

1
2
"

C
M

P

A
S

P
H

.

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

D
R

I
V

E

CONC.

1
2
"

C
M

P

A
S

P
H

A
L
T

D
R

I
V

E

CONC.

1
2
"

C
M

P

A
S

P
H

.

15"

CMP

C
O

N
C

.

C
O

N
C

.

B
A

R
B

E
D

 
W

I
R

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L
L
Y

O
N

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L
I
N

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
3
.
3
'
 
O

F
F

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
0
.
3
'
 
O

F
F

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

B
A

R
B

E
D

 
W

I
R

E

F
E

N
C

E
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L
L
Y

O
N

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L
I
N

E

W
T

R

W
T

R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W
T

R
W

T
R

W

T

R

WTR

WTR
WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR WTR

WTR
WTR

WTR

W

T

R

W
TR

WTR

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
S

U
B

U
R

B
A

N

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
R

U
R

A
L

PROPOSED WASTEWATER

MANHOLE

PROPOSED WASTEWATER

MANHOLE

8" WASTEWATER

LINE

TIE TO FUTURE

WASTEWATER MANHOLE

PROVIDED BY OTHERS

TAP EXISTING

12" WATERLINE

TAP EXISTING

8" WATERLINE

EXISTING WW MANHOLE

INV OUT= 936.41

(PER MADISON REALTY

NEW WASTEWATER EXTENSION

NOVEMBER 2009)

HIGHWAY 183A

E
.
 
C

R
Y

S
T

A
L
 
F

A
L
L
S

 
P

K
W

Y

WOODVIEW VILLAGE

PROPOSED

15.00'

WW EASMT.

E
A

S
T

 
W

O
O

D
V

I
E

W
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
W

I
D

T
H

 
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

RAIDER WAY

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

6

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
U

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
E

x
h
i
b
i
t

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
U

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
E

x
h

i
b
i
t

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
M

c
h
i
l
e
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
1
8
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
1
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 100' 200'

SCALE: 1" = 100'



T
R

E
E

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

7

L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a
n
d
e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
T

r
e
e
 
P

r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
P

l
a
n

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
#

:

S
R

.
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

R
:

D
R

A
W

N
/
D

E
S

I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 

E
I
T

/
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
M

A
N

A
G

E
R

:
 

SHEET

D
r
a

w
i
n
g

:
 
L
:
\
J
O

B
\
H

o
o
v
e
r
\
J
H

C
1
4
0
0
1
-
0
1
 
-
 
L
e
a

n
d

e
r
 
2
0
 
a
c
\
C

A
D

\
P

P
\
S

h
e

e
t
s
\
T

r
e

e
 
P

r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
P

l
a
n

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
M

c
h
i
l
e
s

L
a
s
t
 
S

a
v
e
d
:

6
/
8
/
2
0
1
5
 
1
2
:
1
8
 
P

M

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
/
T

i
m

e
:
6
/
9
/
2
0
1
5
 
3
:
0
1
 
P

M

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L

7
0
0
4
 
B

E
E

 
C

A
V

E
 
R

O
A

D

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
2
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1
0
0

A
U

S
T

I
N

,
 
T

X
 
7
8
7
4
6

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
5
1
2
-
8
3
1
-
7
7
0
0

T
X

 
F

I
R

M
 
N

O
 
1
2
2
0
7

OF 7

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

L
E

A
N

D
E

R
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

J
O

S
E

P
H

 
H

O
O

V
E

R

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y

W
O

O
D

V
I
E

W
 
V

I
L
L
A

G
E

0 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

RIDGEWOODNORTH

MARBELLA

STEWARTCROSSING

2A

2A

3A

3B
3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

PV
R 

92
0

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB
183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

PVR 921

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E WOODVIEW DRWOODVIEW DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 800

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-014  

Exhibit D
Location Exhibit
Woodview Village PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.







AGENDA ITEM # 18 
 

 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Award of Construction Contract for the City 
of Leander Street Rehabilitation 2015 Project 
 
 Background:  Two bids from Alpha Paving Industries LLC and Lone Star Paving 
Company were received and opened on Tuesday, July 7, 2015.  The Base Bid includes 
pavement repairs on several streets to include West Drive, Tamarac Trail, Hazelwood 
Drive, and the intersections of Crystal Falls Parkway at Lakeline Blvd and Bagdad Road.  
Alternate (additive bids) include parts of Osage Drive and Horizon Park Drive.  The 
attached bid tabulation lists both bids.  Alpha Paving is the low, qualified bidder with a 
base bid of $429,968.00 and an alternate (additive) bid for Osage Drive of 33,982.25 and 
$64,815.00 for Horizon Park Blvd, for a total bid of $528,765.25.  Alpha Paving has 
similar project experience in nearby cities and excellent references. 
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  $463,950.25 from the Public Works General Fund, Contract 
Labor, GL# 01-21-5600  
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends award of the contract to Alpha Paving, in the 
amount of $463,950.25.  The Horizon Park Blvd. portion is not included as part of the 
recommendation due to budget limitations, but could be a future project.     
 
Attachments:   Bid Tabulation and Exhibits A-G 

 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 



CITY OF LEANDER 
STREET REHABILITATION 

2015 
BID OPENING 

7/7/2015     2:00 PM 







TYRONE DR

LOS VISTA DR

CALLE ST

BONITA VERDE DR

H
IG

H
 C

H
APAR

R
AL D

R

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

S W
EST D

R

G
LASS D

R

3606
Sq Yards

Ë
200

Feet

Concrete Apron

Exhibit A

Limits of Construction



E SONNY DR

LEAN
D

ER
 D

R

H
O

R
IZO

N
 PAR

K BLVD

HAZELWOOD ST

2985
Sq Yards

Ë
200

Feet

Exhibit B

Limits of Construction



LOS

VISTA DR

PI
NE

W
O

O
D 

CV

SUNFLOWER CT

CIMARRON CV

PURPLE

SAGE CIR

REDBUD LN

NIGHTSHADE LN

ST
IL

L
M

EA
DOW

 D
R

TA
M

AR
AC

 T
RL

G
R

E
EN

IN
G

 W
AY

M
ASO

N CREEK BLVD

S BAG
DAD RD

PARKW
O

O
D DR

3992
Sq Yards

Ë
200

Feet

Exhibit C

Limits of Construction



CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N
 LAKELIN

E BLVD

274
Sq Yards

Ë
20

Feet

Exhibit D

Limits of Construction



S BAGDAD RD

CR
YS

TA
L 

FA
LL

S 
PK

W
Y

1241
Sq Yards

Ë
40

Feet

Exhibit E

Limits of Construction



H
IG

H
LAN

D
 TR

L

N
 LAKELIN

E BLVD

OSAGE DR

707
Sq Yards

Ë
80

Feet

Exhibit F

Limits of Construction



M
EL M

ATH
IS AVE

RM 2243

HORIZON PARK BLVD

2984
Sq Yards

Ë
200

Feet

Exhibit G

Limits of Construction



AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 
 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  City of Leander and Williamson County Interlocal 
Agreement to Rehabilitate County Road  
 
Background:  CR 290 was annexed by the City in 2006 and has substantially 
deteriorated over the years.  Williamson County intends to rehabilitate approximately 
1,400 linear feet of CR290 located within the County.  The proposed agreement allows 
the Williamson County Road & Bridge Department to rehabilitate approximately 500 
linear feet of CR 290 on behalf of the City, providing a uniform appearance and level of 
maintenance.  The work is scheduled to begin in September 2015, or possibly later, due 
to recent wet weather.  Portions of CR 290 under construction will be temporarily closed 
and will open several hours after the work is completed.  The City will reimburse the 
County after completion of the work.   
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  $35,993 (Contract Labor, Public Works)  
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the attached Interlocal Agreement 
 
Attachments:  City of Leander and Williamson County Interlocal Agreement 

 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E.  Public Works Director 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ROADWAY MAINTENANCE 
 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 791, the City of Leander, Texas (“City”), 
hereby enters into an Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”) with the Williamson County 
Road & Bridge, acting by and through Williamson County, Texas (“County”), to 
rehabilitate approximately 500 linear feet of County Road 290 within the City Limits of 
Leander.  The attached Exhibit shows the work area and a cost estimate for the labor, 
materials, and equipment in the amount of $35,993.00.  A description of the services to 
be performed, location of work site and the estimate of labor and costs is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
The City and County have determined that it would be in the best interest of their citizens 
for the County to perform the roadway improvements detailed herein.  The term of this 
Agreement shall commence on the date when the authorized signors for the City and 
County have both signed the Agreement. The Agreement shall continue in full force in 
effect for one (1) year from such final execution date, unless earlier terminated by thirty 
(30) days written notice from either party to the other. The City acknowledges that 
payment for the services rendered pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid with current 
revenues available to the City.  To the extent allowed by law, the City and County shall 
not be liable to one another or responsible for any claims or damages of any kind for 
injury to or death of any person or persons, or for damage to or loss of property arising 
out of or attributed directly or indirectly to the operations or performance of any service 
provided by the other pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
Upon completion of the services described in Exhibit “A”, the County will invoice the 
City for the total actual costs of all labor and equipment used to perform the services.  
The City must pay the County within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the 
invoice. 
 
The parties expressly agree that nothing in this Agreement adds to or changes the liability 
limits and immunities for a governmental unit provided by the Texas Tort Claims Act, 
Chapter 101, Civil Practice and Remedies Code, or other law.  The parties expressly 
agree that, in the execution of this Agreement, neither party waives, nor shall be deemed 
hereby to waive, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to it against 
claims arising in the exercise of its powers or functions or pursuant to the Texas Tort 
Claims Act or other applicable statutes, laws, rules, or regulations. 
 
Either party has the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for 
convenience and without cause, at any time upon ten (10) days’ written notice to the 
other party. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties have duly executed and delivered this 
Agreement on the date set forth above, to be effective as of the ____ day of __________, 
20___. 

 



 
City: 
 
Signature:  __________________________  
 
Printed Name: Christopher Fielder 
 
Title:  Mayor      
                                               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
County: 
 
Approved by the Williamson County Commissioner's Court on this  
 
___________day of _________________________, 20____. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dan Gattis,  
County Judge  
Williamson County 
 
 
Approved: 
 
________________________________ 
J. Terron Evertson,  
Director of Road & Bridge 
Williamson County 



CR
 2

90

OLD 2243 WEST

1222
Sq Yards

Ë
100

Feet

Exhibit A

Limits of Construction

No. ITEM AMOUNT*
1 LABOR 9,299.00$         
2 MATERIALS 16,127.00$      
3 EQUIPMENT 4,875.00$         

SUBTOTAL 30,301.00$      

No. ITEM AMOUNT*
4 LABOR 1,858.00$         
5 HFRS-2P 2,838.00$         
6 GRADE 4 416.00$            
7 EQUIPMENT 580.00$            

SUBTOTAL 5,692.00$         

TOTAL 35,993.00$      

EXHIBIT A
 ESTIMATE - CR290 REHABILITATION

ASPHALT FOAM REJUVENATION 
500 FEET LONG x 22 FEET WIDE

*The above costs are estimated. Following
completion of the services, the County will
invoice the City for the total actual costs
incurred and payment shall be made by the
City in accordance with this Agreement.

CHIP SEAL
500 FEET LONG x 22 FEET WIDE



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 

 

 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Award of Construction Contract for Ronald 
Reagan Waterline North, Phase 2 Project to Aaron Concrete Contractors, LP, for 
$1,214,279.00 
 
Background:  Bids were received and opened on Thursday, July 02, 2015, for the 
Reagan Water Line North, Phase 2 Project.  Fifteen bid proposals were received, opened, 
and read aloud as documented in the attached bid tabulation.  Aaron Concrete 
Contractors, LP, is the low bidder for the Base Bid Utilizing C-905 DR-18 PVC Pipe, the 
Base Bid Utilizing CL-250 Ductile Iron Pipe, and the Base Bid Utilizing C-905 DR-18 
PVC Pipe and Existing Encasement Pipe At Reagan with bids of $1,214,279.00, 
$1,354,061.00 and $1,156,559.00, respectively.  
 
After consideration of the bids, City staff selected Base Bid Utilizing C-905 DR-18 PVC 
Pipe for $1,214,279.00 as the best value and most cost effective method of serving the 
northern Reagan corridor.  As the potential and unconfirmed location of an existing 18-
inch steel casement pipe installed by open cut during the construction of Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard came to light during the bid notice period, the Base Bid Utilizing C-905 DR-18 
PVC Pipe and Existing Encasement Pipe At Reagan was added by addendum, and a price 
basis was established by the bid proposal(s).  If the 18-inch encasement is usable, City 
staff will negotiate a change order reducing the project cost by approximately 
$57,720.00.  The consultant’s recommendation of award letter is attached. 
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $1,214,279.00 from Water Impact Fee Fund, GL# TBD 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends award of the construction contract for the Ronald 
Reagan Waterline North, Phase 2 Project to Aaron Concrete Contractors, LP, in the 
amount of $1,214,279.00. 
 
Attachments: Bid Tab and Recommendation of Award 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 























AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Task Order KFA-30 with K. Friese & 
Associates, Inc., for professional services for Kauffman Loop Elevated Storage Tank 
Design, Bidding, and Construction Phase Services 
 
Background:  Task Order KFA-30 provides for the design, bidding, and construction 
phase professional services  for  a new 1.25 MG (bid alternates for 1.0 MG and 1.5 MG 
tanks will be provided) elevated storage tank (EST) on Kauffman Loop at CR 267 on the 
west side of Ronald Reagan Boulevard in northeast Leander.  The EST will be 
constructed on an approximately 4 acre site that is part of the Wedemeyer development 
and is also the site for a proposed fire station.  The project will include the design of 
approximately 1,500 linear feet of 24-inch diameter water main to the tank site along 
Kauffman Loop, tank appurtenances, driveway, fencing, and other site improvements.  
The layout of the tank site will take into consideration the construction of the proposed 
fire station, but no design of the fire station is included in this Task Order KFA-30.  
Compensation for the work is a combination of a lump sum amount of $49,914.00 and 
time and materials not to exceed $68,010.00 without authorization by the City of Leander 
totaling $176,491.80.  
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $176,491.80 from Water Impact Fee Fund, GL# TBD 
- 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute Task Order KFA-30. 
 
Attachments:  Task Order KFA-30 and Scope of Services with supporting documents. 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 



TASK ORDER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

TASK ORDER NO. KFA-30 
 
This will constitute authorization by the City of Leander, Texas (Owner), for K Friese & Associates, Inc., 
Austin, Texas (Engineer), to proceed with the following described engineering services. 
 

CITY OF LEANDER  
KAUFFMAN LOOP ELEVATED STORAGE TANK DESIGN, BIDDING, 

AND CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
               
 
A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
The Kauffman Elevated Storage Tank (EST) project will include the design and construction of a new 
1.25 MG (estimated) EST off of Kauffman Loop in northeast Leander.  The tank will be constructed on a 
4 acre site that is part of the Wedemeyer Tract development for a new fire station and elevated tank.  The 
project will include the design of approximately 1,500 linear feet of 24-inch diameter water main to the 
tank site along Kauffman Loop, tank appurtenances, driveway, fencing, and other site improvements.  
The layout of the tank site will take into consideration the construction of a future fire station, but no 
design of the fire station is included in this Task Order. 
 
B. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
KFA will provide design services as described in the attached Scope of Services.     

 
 
C. DELIVERABLES 
 
KFA will provide deliverables as described in the attached Scope of Services. 
 
 
D.   BASIS OF COMPENSATION 
 
The total compensation for the Kauffman Loop Elevated Storage Tank design and construction 
administration project shall be on a partially lump sum basis of $49,914.00 and on a time and materials 
basis not to exceed $68,010.00 without prior authorization from the Owner, for a total authorization 
amount is $117,924.00.  A Manpower/Budget Estimate is attached.  The City shall make payments to the 
Engineer for performing the engineering services described on a monthly billing basis in accordance with 
monthly statements submitted by the Engineer and approved by the City.  Final payment shall be due 
upon completion of the services described. 
 
 
E. TIME FOR COMPLETION 
 
The Engineer will work expeditiously to complete the services described herein.  Total design services 
are anticipated to take approximately 6 months, and bid and construction phase services to take an 
additional year, for a total time of 1.5 years. 
 
KFA will begin work as soon as authorized and as services are requested.   

TASK ORDER NO. KFA-30 Page 1 of 2 7/10/2015 



   
 
APPROVED: 

 
ACCEPTED: 

  
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS K FRIESE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
  
  
By  ______________________________ By  ______________________________ 
   Karen A. Friese, P.E. 
Title  _____________________________   President 
  
Attest  ____________________ Attest  ____________________ 
  
Date    ____________________ Date    ____________________ 
 

TASK ORDER NO. KFA-30 Page 2 of 2 7/10/2015 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 
KAUFFMAN ELEVATED STORAGE TANK 

 

7/8/2015 Page 1 of 4     
 

 
The Kauffman Elevated Storage Tank (EST) project will include the design and 
construction of a new 1.25 MG (estimated) EST off of Kauffman Loop in northeast 
Leander.  The tank will be constructed on a 4 acre site that is being dedicated as 
part of the Wedemeyer Tract development for a new fire station and elevated tank.  
The project will include the design of approximately 1,500 linear feet of 24-inch 
diameter water main to the tank site along Kauffman Loop, tank appurtenances, 
driveway, fencing, and other site improvements.  The layout of the tank site will take 
into consideration the construction of a future fire station, but no design of the fire 
station is included.   
 
The Scope has been divided into “Time and Material” tasks and “Lump Sum” tasks.  
 
PHASE I – PRELIMINARY AND DESIGN PHASE (LUMP SUM TASKS)  
 
1. Project Management/Administration – This task includes monitoring budgets and 

schedules, communications, and other tasks directly associated with the project. 
 

2. Project Design Meetings – KFA will prepare for and attend meetings with City of 
Leander staff to kick off the project (1 kick off meeting) and to review plan and 
specification submittals at the 30%, 75% and 100% design levels (2 review 
meetings). 

 
3. Prepare Preliminary Engineering Report – KFA will summarize the evaluation of 

the proposed tank in a Preliminary Engineering Memorandum.   
 
4. EST Plan Preparation – KFA has estimated that the plans will require 

approximately 15 civil plan sheets to be created, including cover, notes, location 
maps, site plans, EST and details, sedimentation controls, tree protection, and 
traffic control sheets.   
 

5. Pipeline Plan Preparation - For the 1,500 linear foot extension of the 24-inch 
water main, it is estimated that 4 plan and profile sheets will be required.  It is 
anticipated that the pipeline work within Kauffman Loop will be added to an 
existing construction contract separate from the EST project.     

 
6. Technical specifications will be prepared for the project and KFA will coordinate 

with the City of Leander to incorporate front end and contract documents. 
 

7. KFA will provide 30%, 75%, and 100% submittals to the City of Leander for 
review and comment.  Submittals will include 3 sets of drawings, contract 
documents and technical specifications as they are developed.  Each submittal 
will also include an updated project cost estimate. The final submittal will include 
one full size set of reproducible construction plans and complete set of contract 
documents and technical specifications and one electronic set of construction 
plans, contract documents and technical specifications.   

 
8. Develop construction cost estimates for the project at each plan submittal. 
 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 
KAUFFMAN ELEVATED STORAGE TANK 

 

7/8/2015 Page 2 of 4     
 

9. Quality Assurance/Quality Control – The QA/QC task includes review of the work 
at various stages of progress as well as review of all materials to be submitted. 

 
10. Permitting  
 

a. KFA will submit plans and specifications to TCEQ documenting the project 
and address any comments or requests for additional information typically 
necessary for construction approval. 

 
11. KFA will prepare a Final Design Report documenting the rationale for the design 

of the EST. 
 
 
PHASE I - DESIGN AND BID PHASE (TIME & MATERIALS TASKS)  
 
 
1. Geotechnical Engineering Services (Fugro) – Fugro will perform the work as 

outlined in their attached Scope of Services, including geotechnical borings and 
investigations required for the design of the proposed tank foundation.   

 
2. Environmental and Cultural Resources (SWCA):   

a. SWCA will perform environmental and cultural resources 
investigations, reporting, and permitting for the project.   

b. See attached SWCA Scope of Services for more information. 
 

3. Design Survey (Inland): 
a. Topographic Survey – Inland Geodetics will establish horizontal and 

vertical control and perform a detailed topographic survey for the 
proposed pipeline route and tank site.  Inland will prepare CADD files 
with a digital terrain model processed with 1 foot contours. 

b. See attached Inland Scope of Services for more information.  
 
 
PHASE II – BID & CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES (TIME & MATERIALS)  
 
1. KFA will assist the City of Leander during the Bid Phase with contract document 

distribution, conducting the pre-bid conference and bid opening, and providing 
assistance throughout the bidding process.  Services during the bid phase will 
include: 

 
a. Attend pre-bid conference.  KFA will attend the pre-bid conference 

document any questions and any responses provided at the meeting, and 
issue a follow-up addendum if necessary. 

b. Interpret plans and specifications and draft addenda, as necessary, for 
issuance by the City of Leander.  One (1) addendum has been assumed 
for budgeting purposes. 

c. Attend bid-opening, prepare bid tabulation and issue a recommendation 
for award.  KFA will attend the public bid opening.  After receipt of bids, 
KFA will tabulate the bids in unit price format.  KFA will evaluate the bids 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 
KAUFFMAN ELEVATED STORAGE TANK 

 

7/8/2015 Page 3 of 4     
 

for responsiveness, meet with the low bidder if necessary, and issue a 
recommendation of award to the City of Leander. 
 

2. KFA will assist the City of Leander with contract administration during the 
construction phase of the project.  We understand the City of Leander will 
provide required construction inspection services, and have assumed that the 
construction duration will be approximately 6 months.  KFA’s services will 
include: 

 
a. Construction docs reproduction and distribution.  KFA will incorporate 

addenda items in the construction plans as appropriate and reproduce 
and distribute the documents.   

b. Attend pre-construction conference.  KFA will attend a pre-construction 
conference with the City of Leander, Contractor, and other parties as 
appropriate, and prepare the meeting minutes. 

c. Attend regular construction meetings.  KFA will attend regular construction 
meetings with the City of Leander, Contractor, and other parties as 
appropriate, including preparing the meeting minutes.  For budgeting 
purposes we have assumed 8 meetings. 

d. Site Visits.  KFA will visit the site (8 visits) to check the progress of the 
work and verify general conformance with the project plans and technical 
specifications. 

e. Submittal Review.  KFA will maintain a log of all Contractor submittals, 
track review progress, review and approve submittals, and distribute 
submittals to the appropriate parties. 

f. Pay Estimate Review.  KFA will review the Contractor’s pay estimates 
after approval by the City of Leander’s on-site Inspector and make 
recommendations for payment. 

g. Preparation of Change Orders.  KFA will review all Contractor’s requests 
for Change Orders and prepare Change Orders as appropriate.  For 
budgeting purposes we have assumed three (3) change orders. 

h. Provide answers to requests for information (RFI’s) from Contractor as 
related to possible conflicts and clarifications needed between plans and 
specifications. Four (4) RFI’s have been assumed. 

i. Contract Close-out.  KFA will attend a final project walk-thru, document 
“punch list items”, and issue an Engineer’s Concurrence for Project 
Acceptance letter.  KFA will also notify TCEQ and other jurisdictional 
agencies of project completion. 

j. Record Drawings.  KFA will use the Contractor’s redline as-built drawings 
to document as-built conditions in the final record drawings.  KFA will 
supply the City of Leander with one set of reproducible record drawings 
and provide one set of record drawings in electronic format. 

 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 
KAUFFMAN ELEVATED STORAGE TANK 

 

7/8/2015 Page 4 of 4     
 

ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN THIS SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
1. Electrical Design - Design for onsite electrical and SCADA controls for the EST 

will be added as a supplemental service at a future date.   
 

2. Special Inspections & Testing for EST - Special inspections and testing of the 
EST will be performed by others.  Including welding and painting of the new EST.   
 

3. Property/Easement Metes and Bounds - It is assumed that the property will be 
dedicated to the City of Leander by the property owner and no easements or 
property descriptions will be required.   



KFA MANPOWER/BUDGET ESTIMATE - LUMP SUM TASKS
KAUFFMAN LOOP ELEVATED STORAGE TANK

Principal
Project 

Manager Engineer EIT
CADD 

Technician Clerical Total Labor Total Labor
Sub-

Consultant Expenses Total
Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Cost Cost Cost Cost

Phase I - Preliminary & Design Phase
1 Project Management/Administration 2 12 8 22 $3,169 $3,169
2 Project Design Meetings (3) 9 9 18 $2,633 $150 $2,783
3 Prepare Preliminary Engineering Memo 4 6 12 4 26 $2,813 $150 $2,963
4 EST Plan Preparation (15 Civil Sheets) 2 16 40 80 40 178 $18,481 $18,481
5 Pipeline Plan Preparation (4 Civil Sheets) 12 24 16 52 $5,689 $5,689
6 Technical Specifications 2 8 24 8 42 $5,128 $5,128
7 30%, 75%, 100% Submittals 6 9 9 6 30 $2,605 $250 $2,855
8 Construction Cost Estimates 4 4 12 20 $2,250 $2,250
9 QA/QC of Contract Documents 4 12 16 $3,209 $3,209

10 TCEQ Permitting 2 6 4 12 $1,242 $1,242
11 Final Design Report 4 6 12 4 26 $2,143 $2,143

Lump Sum Totals 10 83 95 155 77 22 442 $49,364 $0 $550 $49,914

Task

7/8/2015
Kauffman EST - Manpower.xls 1 of 2



KFA MANPOWER/BUDGET ESTIMATE - TIME AND MATERIALS TASKS
KAUFFMAN LOOP ELEVATED STORAGE TANK 

Principal
Project 

Manager Engineer EIT
CADD 

Technician Clerical Total Labor Total Labor
Sub-

Consultant Expenses Total
Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Cost Cost Cost Cost

Phase I - Preliminary & Design Phase
1 Geotechnical Investigation (Fugro) 2 2 4 $532 $13,920 $14,452
2 Environmental (SWCA) 2 2 4 $532 $2,960 $3,492
3 Design Survey (Inland) 2 4 6 $702 $14,144 $14,846

Subtotal Phase II 0 6 0 0 8 0 14 $1,765 $31,024 $0 $32,789
Phase II - Bid & Construction Phase

1 Bid Phase Services 0 10 18 4 4 42 $4,678 $0 $100 $4,778
a Pre-Bid Conference 4 6 10 $1,263 $50 $1,313
b Addenda/Bidder Coordination (1) 2 4 8 4 4 22 $2,108 $2,108
c Bid Opening, Tabulation, & Recommendation 4 2 4 10 $1,307 $50 $1,357

2 Construction Phase Services 3 61 102 24 0 251 $29,843 $0 $600 $30,443
a Construction Docs Reproduction and Distribution 1 4 5 $521 $150 $671
b Pre-Construction Conference 4 4 8 $1,170 $50 $1,220
c Construction Meetings (8) 16 16 16 48 $6,120 $400 $6,520
d Site Visits (8) 12 12 12 36 $4,590 $4,590
e Submittal Review 8 16 32 56 $6,114 $6,114
f Pay Estimate Review (9) 6 18 24 $2,705 $2,705
g Change Orders (3) 3 6 9 12 30 $3,890 $3,890
h RFI's (4) 2 4 12 18 $1,888 $1,888
i Contract Close-out 2 8 10 $1,082 $1,082
j Record Drawings 4 4 8 16 $1,763 $1,763

Subtotal Phase II 3 71 0 120 28 4 293 $34,521 $0 $700 $35,221
T & M Project Totals 3 77 0 120 36 4 307 $36,286 $31,024 $700 $68,010

Phase I - Preliminary and Design Phase = $82,702
Phase II - Bid & Construction Phase = $35,221

Total Project Budget = $117,924

Task

7/8/2015
Kauffman EST - Manpower.xls 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Task Order STE-2 with Smith Turrieta 
Engineering, Inc., for Professional Services for Design and Bidding Phases for the CR 
269 and Hero Way 12-Inch Water Line Improvements Project 
 
Background:  Task Order STE-2 provides for design and bid phase professional services 
for the CR 269 and Hero Way Waterline Improvements Project. This project will extend 
a 12-inch water line approximately 1,750 LF from the south side of the intersection of 
R.R. 2243 and C.R. 269 to Hero Way, and then eastward along Hero Way for 
approximately 3,250 ft. Construction phase services and easement acquisition related 
services are not included in this contract and will be negotiated at a later date as needed.  
The compensation for this work is a lump sum of $124,975.40.  
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $124,975.40 from Water Impact Fee Fund, GL# TBD 
- 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute Task Order STE-2. 
 
Attachments:  Task Order STE- 2, Scope of Services, Fee Documentation, and Location 
Map  

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 





Smith Turrieta Engineering   June 12, 2015  Page 1 of 3 
Scope of Services, City of Leander  
CR 269 and Hero Way 12 Inch Water Line Improvements   

 

CITY OF LEANDER 

CR 269 AND HERO WAY 12 INCH WATER LINE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This project scope includes design and construction award of a new 12‐inch water line that will extend 

from the intersection of CR 269 and RM 2243, north along CR 269 to Hero Way, and then east along Hero 

Way approximately 3,250 ft.  The total footage of the project is approximately 5,000 lf.   

The plans and bid documents for the project will clearly show a delineation between two phases at the 

intersection of CR 269 and Hero Way.  Phase I will encompass the portion from the intersection of CR 269 

and RM  2243,  north  along  CR  269  to Hero Way.    Phase  II will  include  the  portion  along Hero Way.  

Construction of Phase II is dependent upon available funding.    

Task 0001  Project Management  

Under  this  task,  Smith Turrieta Engineering  (STE) will manage  the project and provide administrative 

services,  communication  and  coordination with  the  City  and  Subconsultants.    Inland  Geodetics will 

provide surveying services and KFA will provide specification services and QAQC review of the project. 

a) Attend project meetings 

b) Provide monthly status reports 

c) Coordinate and communicate with Subconsultants 

Task 0002  30% Design 

Under this task, the design team will prepare 30% plans showing plan view only.  The waterline will be 

placed  behind  the  right‐of‐way within  10’,  unless  existing  easements  dictate  another  placement.    A 

topographic  survey will be  completed  along CR 269  from  the  edge of pavement  to 30’ west  and  an 

additional 20’ of anything substantial (buildings, tree canopies, signs, etc.).   A topographic survey will be 

completed along Hero Way from the edge of pavement to 40’ south and an additional 20’ of anything 

substantial (buildings, tree canopies, signs, etc.).  

30%  design  will  review  all  conflicts,  easement  requirements,  and  constructability  issues,  as well  as 

complete  the preliminary environmental,  floodplain and archeological work.   Alternative  construction 

methods will also be proposed as alternates in the preliminary cost estimate.   

a) Topographic  Survey  –  Inland  Geodetics  will  obtain  ownership,  easement  and  right  of  way 
information.  Right of entry will be obtained for the survey work through the use of USPS letters.  
If right‐of entry  is not granted, a Change  in Scope of Work may be requested to use alternate 
methods. Existing project control will be used, as well as additional secondary control.   

b) Environmental – STE will notify the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers about the project to determine 
if wetlands will be affected.  It is not anticipated that a Section 404 permit will be required for the 
project.  Any Section 404 permit preparation, including wetland delineation, will require a Change 
in Scope of Work.  

It is also not anticipated that any endangered species will be impacted by the project.  Any Section 
7 preparation in regards to the Endangered Species Act will require a Change in Scope of Work. 



Smith Turrieta Engineering   June 12, 2015  Page 2 of 3 
Scope of Services, City of Leander  
CR 269 and Hero Way 12 Inch Water Line Improvements   

 

c) Floodplain – STE will evaluate  if  the project  is within  the  floodplain.    It  is anticipated  that  the 
project can be constructed under the 2012 Nationwide Permit.  Any individual permit preparation 
will require a Change in Scope of Work. 

d) Archeological  –  STE will  notify  the  Texas Historical  Commission  about  the  project.    It  is  not 
anticipated  that an archaeological survey will be  required  for  the project.   Any archaeological 
survey will require a Change in Scope of Work. 

e) Geotechnical – STE will use existing borings  to provide comparable soils  for  the project.   Two 
previous  studies will be used: Geotechnical Engineering Study  for Waterline Off of Hero Way, 
Leander,  Texas,  Raba  Kistner,  November,  2014  and  Geotechnical  Investigation  183A  North 
Extension Project from FM 1431 to RM 2243 Williamson County, Texas, Fugro Consultants, Inc.   

f) Cost Estimate – STE will prepare a preliminary engineer’s opinion of construction cost estimate 
and construction schedule for this project. 

g) STE will prepare the 30% design set on 11” x 17” sheets, at full size, showing plan view only and a 
construction cost estimate.  The design set will delineate two phases within the project (along CR 
269 and along Hero Way). 

 
Task 0003  Design 60% PS&E  

Under this task, the design team will develop: 60% plan and profile sheets and an updated construction 

cost estimate, prepare permanent and temporary easement documents, complete a table of contents for 

the standard specifications as well as draft special specifications (if any) related to this project.   

If additional environmental and/or archeological surveys are required, a Change in Scope of Work will be 

requested at this time. 

a) Plans – STE will develop a 60% set of plans.  This proposal is based on a waterline 5,000 linear feet 
in length.  The project will be prepared in AutoCAD and will be 11” x 17” sheets, at full size.  Plans 
will be provided in PDF format and in 2‐11” x 17”hard copy sets. 

The following sheets will be included: 

 Cover Sheet 

 Project Layout 

 Plan and Profile Sheets (15 sheets) 

 Erosion and Sedimentation Control Sheets 

b) Specifications – STE will provide a table of contents for the standard specifications and drafts if 
any special specifications or provisions pertain to this project.  STE will utilize KFA specifications 
as the base format for this project.  Specifications will be delivered in PDF format and in hard copy 
2 sets. 

c) Cost  Estimate  –  STE  will  update  the  engineer’s  opinion  of  construction  cost  estimate  and 
construction schedule for this project. 

d) Easement Metes and Bounds – provided as an additional service  

e) Subsurface Utility Exploration – The need to locate existing utilities to design survey accuracy is 
not anticipated at this time.  If this work is required, a Change in Scope of Work will be requested. 



Smith Turrieta Engineering   June 12, 2015  Page 3 of 3 
Scope of Services, City of Leander  
CR 269 and Hero Way 12 Inch Water Line Improvements   

 

Task 0004  Design 90% PS&E  

Under  this  task,  STE will  develop  90%  plan  and  profile  sheets,  specifications  and  construction  cost 

estimates.  

a) Plans  –  STE will  develop  2‐90%  sets  of  plans  including  profile,  stationing,  notes  and  details 

necessary  for  the construction of  the project, as  listed below.   KFA will provide QAQC review.  

Plans will be provided in PDF format and in 2‐11” x 17”hard copy sets. 

The following sheets will be included: 

 Cover Sheet 

 General Notes 

 Project Layout 

 Plan and Profile Sheets (15 sheets) 

 Erosion and Sedimentation Control Sheets 

 Typical Details 

 

b) Specifications – STE, with assistance from KFA, will develop 1‐90% set of specifications and front 
end contract documents.  Contract documents and technical specifications will be provided in PDF 
format and in 2 hard copy sets. 

c) Estimate  –  STE will  prepare  a  90%  engineers  opinion  of  construction  cost  and  construction 
schedule. 

Task 0005  Design 100% PS&E  

Under this task, STE will address any final comments and produce final plans, specifications, cost estimates 

and construction schedule for the project with bid items separated for Phase I and Phase II (as stated on 

Page 1).  Deliverables will include PDF and 2‐11”x17” hard copy sets.   

Task 0006  Bid Phase  

Under this task, STE will prepare and manage bid documents, review bids and recommend award for the 

project.  If Phase II is bid after Phase I, an additional cost is noted under Task 006.   

a) Create Bid Documents, 10 full‐size sets and PDF 

b) Advertise and Manage Bid Documents 

c) Issue any Addendums, if necessary 

d) Conduct bid 

e) Review bids and recommend award 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

As an additional service, STE will negotiate a scope and fee for  Inland Geodetics, or another approved 

surveyor, to provide legal descriptions and sketches for all easements required for the project.  





Jennifer
Text Box
as an additional svc.

Jennifer
Rectangle

Jennifer
Text Box
as an additional svc.

Jennifer
Rectangle



SCOPE OF SERVICES 
EAST HERO WAY WATER LINE PROJECT 

 

6/1/2015 Page 1 of 1     
 

 
The East Hero Way Water Line project will extend a 12-inch diameter water line 
approximately 5,000 LF from the intersection of CR 269/RM 2243, north to Hero 
Way, and then east on Hero Way.  This Scope of services is based on a Lump Sum 
contract.   
 
It is anticipated that KFA will provide contract document and specification 
preparation, and QA/QC of the plans.  Smith Turrieta Engineering will be responsible 
for the project design, quantity takeoffs, cost estimates, and all other elements of the 
design, bid and construction phases.   
 
PHASE I - DESIGN AND BID PHASE 
 
1. Project Management/Administration – Internal project management and 

administration for the project. 
 

2. Project Meetings – KFA will meet with Smith Turrieta Engineering during the 
design phase, one meeting is assumed.   

 
3. KFA will assist Smith Turrieta Engineering in preparation of the contract 

documents and technical specifications.  KFA will prepare the draft 
specifications, and Smith Turrieta will review and modify as necessary.   
 

4. Quality Assurance/Quality Control – KFA will perform QA/QC reviews of the 
plans at the 30% and 75% design levels.  Comments will be marked on a plan 
set and forwarded to Smith Turrieta Engineering.  



Description
Direct Admin

Expenses Fees
0001 Project Management

Management 8 54 16 10,190.00$   972.00$       
Meetings (4) 8 16 8 4,160.00$     324.00$       

0001 Subtotal Hours 16 70 0 24 110
0001 Subtotal Cost 2,640.00$    10,150.00$ -$            1,560.00$   14,350.00$   1,296.00$    -$            -$            64.80$        15,710.80$   
0002 30% Design

Topographic Survey 2 8 24 3,530.00$     19,876.00$ 
Environmental Archeological Geotechnical 54 4 8,090.00$     
Site Visit (2) 6 870.00$        
30% Plans 4 32 64 2 10,870.00$   
Preliminary Cost Estimates 2 20 2 3,360.00$     
QAQC 4 660.00$        972.00$       

0002 Subtotal Hours 12 120 88 8 228
0002 Subtotal Cost 1,980.00$    17,400.00$ 7,480.00$   520.00$      27,380.00$   972.00$       19,876.00$ -$            1,042.40$   49,270.40$   
0003 Design 60% PS&E

Plans 4 40 136 2 18,150.00$   
Easement Metes and Bounds
*AS AN ADDITIONAL SERVICE -$               
Specifications 8 4 1,420.00$     1,000.00$    
Estimates 4 16 2 3,110.00$     
QAQC Review 4 660.00$         972.00$       

0003 Subtotal Hours 12 64 136 8 220
0003 Subtotal Cost 1,980.00$    9,280.00$   11,560.00$ 520.00$      23,340.00$   1,972.00$    -$            -$            98.60$        25,410.60$   
0004 Design 90% PS&E

Plans 2 36 120 2 15,880.00$   
Specifications 8 2 1,290.00$     1,500.00$    
Estimates 2 12 2 2,200.00$     
QAQC Review 4 660.00$        

-$              
0004 Subtotal Hours 8 56 120 6 190
0004 Subtotal Cost 1,320.00$    8,120.00$   10,200.00$ 390.00$      20,030.00$   1,500.00$    -$            -$            75.00$        21,605.00$   
0005 Design 100% PS&E

Address Comments & Finalize PS&E 4 12 24 8 4,960.00$     
-$              

0005 Subtotal Hours 4 12 24 8 48
0005 Subtotal Cost 660.00$       1,740.00$   2,040.00$   520.00$      4,960.00$     -$            -$            -$            -$            4,960.00$     
0006 Bid Phase Services

Create Bid Documents 8 8 1,680.00$     1,832.00$    
Advertise and Manage Bid Documents 4 4 840.00$        200.00$      
Conduct Bid 2 290.00$        
Review Bids and Recommend Award 2 4 910.00$         
Conform Plans 4 16 1,940.00$      250.00$       
Phase II Bid and Award 2 16 16 10 4,660.00$      250.00$       

0006 Subtotal Hours 4 38 32 22 96
0006 Subtotal Cost 660.00$       5,510.00$   2,720.00$   1,430.00$   10,320.00$   1,832.00$    -$            700.00$      126.60$      12,978.60$   

UNIT RATES 165.00$       145.00$       85.00$         65.00$         

SUBTOTAL HOURS 56 360 400 68 STE K Friese
Inland 

Geodetics TOTAL
SUBTOTAL COST 9,240.00$    52,200.00$  34,000.00$  4,940.00$    100,380.00$  7,572.00$ 19,876.00$ 700.00$ 1,407.40$ 124,975.40$ 

NO Task Total 
Cost

SubconsultantsSmith Turrieta Engineering Labor Estimate
Project 

Manager TotalProject 
Engineer K FrieseAdminCADD 

Technician
Inland 

GeodeticsTASKS

CITY OF LEANDER
CR 269 AND HERO WAY 12 INCH WATER LINE PROJECT

July 2015
MANHOUR BREAKDOWN FOR SERVICES BY A/E CONSULTANT



Jennifer
Rectangle

Jennifer
Text Box
AS AN ADDITIONAL SERVICE

Jennifer
Text Box
$19,876.00



KFA MANPOWER/BUDGET ESTIMATE
EAST HERO WAY WATER LINE

Project 
Manager

Project 
Engineer EIT

CADD 
Technician Clerical Total Labor Total Labor Expenses Total

Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Cost Cost Cost
Lump Sum - Design & Bid Phase 

1 Project Management/Administration 4 4 8 $972 $972
2 Project Meetings (1) 2 2 $324 $324
3 Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 12 24 4 40 $4,332 $250 $4,582
4 QA/QC of Plans 12 12 $1,944 $1,944

Project Totals 30 0 24 0 8 62 $7,572 $250 $7,822

Task

6/1/2015
Hero Way WL Manpower.xls 1 of 1



Map data ©2015 Google 1000 ft 

Traffic, Bicycling, Terrain, Directions

CR 269 and HERO WAY WATER LINE
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT LOCATION MAP

Proposed 12"
Water Line



AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 

 

Executive Summary 

July 16, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Dedication of Right-of-Way from Leander Independent 
School District (LISD) for the Municipal Drive Roadway Improvements 
 
Background:  In order for the Municipal Drive Roadway Improvements to be 
completed, additional right-of-way needs to be obtained.  LISD has agreed to dedicate the 
additional right-of-way to the City of Leander to complete the roadway improvements.  
The ROW will be dedicated from two different LISD properties:  the Technology 
Building at the northwest corner of Municipal and South West Street and the middle 
school just east of the intersection of Municipal and South West Street. 
    
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests acceptance of the Right-of-Way dedication from LISD 
 
Attachments:  Two ROW deeds 
 
Prepared by:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E. 
 


	Agenda
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23



